Public Document Pack

A Meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held Virtually
on WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 AT 7.00 PM

Susan Parsonage
Chief Executive
Published on 21 July 2020
Note: The Council has made arrangements under the
Coronavirus Act 2020 to hold the meeting virtually via Team
Meetings, the meeting can be watched live at the following
link: https://youtu.be/dMy9N9Oz1VM
This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s
website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.

Our Vision
A great place to live, learn, work and grow and a great place to do business

Enriching Lives







Champion outstanding education and enable our children and young people to achieve their full
potential, regardless of their background.
Support our residents to lead happy, healthy lives and provide access to good leisure facilities to
complement an active lifestyle.
Engage and involve our communities through arts and culture and create a sense of identity which
people feel part of.
Support growth in our local economy and help to build business.
Safe, Strong, Communities
Protect and safeguard our children, young and vulnerable people.
Offer quality care and support, at the right time, to prevent the need for long term care.
Nurture communities and help them to thrive.
Ensure our borough and communities remain safe for all.






Do all we can to become carbon neutral and sustainable for the future.
Protect our borough, keep it clean and enhance our green areas.
Reduce our waste, improve biodiversity and increase recycling.
Connect our parks and open spaces with green cycleways.




Offer quality, affordable, sustainable homes fit for the future.
Build our fair share of housing with the right infrastructure to support and enable our borough to
grow.
Protect our unique places and preserve our natural environment.
Help with your housing needs and support people to live independently in their own homes.





A Clean and Green Borough

Right Homes, Right Places




Keeping the Borough Moving





Maintain and improve our roads, footpaths and cycleways.
Tackle traffic congestion, minimise delays and disruptions.
Enable safe and sustainable travel around the borough with good transport infrastructure.
Promote healthy alternative travel options and support our partners to offer affordable, accessible
public transport with good network links.

Changing the Way We Work for You





Be relentlessly customer focussed.
Work with our partners to provide efficient, effective, joined up services which are focussed around
you.
Communicate better with you, owning issues, updating on progress and responding appropriately
as well as promoting what is happening in our Borough.
Drive innovative digital ways of working that will connect our communities, businesses and
customers to our services in a way that suits their needs.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Councillors
Bill Soane (Chairman)
Maria Gee
Imogen Shepherd-DuBey

ITEM
NO.

WARD

Dianne King (Vice-Chairman) Rachel Burgess
Angus Ross
Daniel Sargeant

SUBJECT

1.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 3 June
2020

3.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

4.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions

PAGE
NO.

5 - 10

A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.
The Council welcomes questions from members of the
public about the work of this committee.
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Committee or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions
5.

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any member questions

6.

None Specific

ERNST & YOUNG AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
To receive a progress report on the Ernst & Young
audit.

Verbal
Report

7.

None Specific

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2019-20
To receive the Treasury Management Outturn 2019-20
report

11 - 26

8.

None Specific

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT
To receive the Corporate Risk Management report.

27 - 78

9.

None Specific

2019/20 INTERNAL AUDIT & INVESTIGATIONS
ANNUAL REPORT
To receive the 2019/20 Internal Audit & Investigations
Annual Report.

79 - 94

10.

None Specific

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S ANTI-FRAUD AND
ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICIES
To receive the review of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and
Anti-Corruption Policies

95 - 146

11.

None Specific

LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To receive the Local Code of Corporate Governance.

147 - 166

12.

None Specific

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20
To receive the Annual Governance Statement
2019/20.

167 - 182

13.

None Specific

FORWARD PROGRAMME 2020-21
To consider the forward programme for the remainder
of the muncipal year.

183 - 184

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any
other items to consider under this heading

Madeleine Shopland
Tel
Email
Postal Address

CONTACT OFFICER
Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist
0118 974 6319
madeleine.shopland@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN.

Agenda Item 2.
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE
HELD ON 3 JUNE 2020 FROM 7.00 PM TO 8.50 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Rachel Burgess, Angus Ross, Daniel Sargeant, Imogen Shepherd-DuBey
and Bill Soane
Also Present
Madeleine Shopland, Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist
Helen Thompson, Ernst and Young
Michael Bateman, Business Analyst
Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief Executive
Susan Parsonage, Chief Executive
Bob Watson, Head of Finance
Andrew Moulton, Assistant Director Governance
Liz McAuley, Service Manager Quality Assurance and Safeguarding Team
Daneet Penny, Customer Delivery Officer (L3)
Justine Thorpe, Ernst and Young
Jackie Whitney, Lead Manager, Customer Delivery
67.
APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Maria Gee and Dianne King.
68.
ELECTION OF A CHAIRMAN
RESOLVED: That Councillor Bill Soane be elected Chairman for the meeting.
69.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 5 February 2020 were confirmed as
a correct record.
70.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Councillor Daniel Sargeant declared a Personal Interest in Item 73 Wokingham Borough
Council – Audit Planning Report year ended 31 March 2019, on the grounds that he was a
Non Executive Director of Wokingham Housing Limited and Berry Brook Homes.
71.
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no Public questions.
72.
MEMBER QUESTION TIME
There were no Member questions.
73.
COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS
The Committee received a report on complaints and compliments.
During the discussion of this item, the following points were made:


Members were advised that there had been a slight increase in the number of
complaints received at Stage 1 and Stage 2, and also the number of complaints
investigated by the Ombudsman. The majority of cases referred to the Ombudsman
had not been upheld.

5



















Planning and housing services continued to receive the highest number of
complaints. Complaints predominantly related to high volume concerns such as
repairs to tenanted properties and decisions made in relation to planning
applications.
Some of the key learning during the year that had been implemented specifically in
School Admissions, Home to School Transport and Building Control, were
highlighted.
Members noted the summary of some of the compliments received.
The Service Manager Quality Assurance and Safeguarding Team updated the
Committee on the statutory complaints process for children’s services. During
2019-20, there had been a decrease in both the contacts made (63 to 55) and the
number of complaints progressed to Stage 1 (48 to 35). The number of complaints
that had progressed to Stage 2 had also reduced from 4 to 2. No complaints had
progressed beyond Stage 2.
Members were advised that 91% of Stage 1 responses had been completed within
the 20 day timescale.
The number of complaints received that were considered out of scope had
increased significantly from 6 to 18. It was believed that a number of these related
to complaints made about cases that were in court proceedings.
The number of compliments for Children’s Services had increased.
The Service Manager Quality Assurance and Safeguarding Team commented that
increased training for social work managers had helped to resolve some matters at
an earlier stage. Timeliness of responses and mediation had also helped to reduce
an escalation in the complaints process.
The Lead Manager, Customer Delivery indicated that the complaints management
system had been updated and the reporting function, enhanced.
Councillor Burgess questioned who designated a complaint out of scope. She was
informed that the Complaints Manager would follow the appropriate guidance.
Councillor Burgess noted that a number of the Children’s Services complaints
investigated by the Ombudsman had been upheld. She questioned how the
Council would learn from this. The Customer Delivery Officer explained that the
Ombudsman would issue a report with recommendations and that the services
would have approximately 2 weeks to respond. If no comments were given, a
deadline for specific actions to be implemented would be provided. Evidence of the
action taken would need to be provided.
Councillor Ross noted that the new way of reporting had begun in April. He asked
whether the lockdown had had any effect on this and was informed, that it had not.
Councillor Sargeant praised the presentation of the report which he felt had
improved. He questioned some of the percentages relating to age demographic
contained within the benchmarking report.

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.
74.

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019
The Committee received the Wokingham Borough Council Annual Audit Letter year ended
31 March 2019.
During the discussion of this item, the following points were made:


The Audit Results Report had been issued on 13 March 2020.

6





Helen Thompson, Ernst & Young, referred to the impact of the delay in the
certification of the Pension Fund.
With regards to the audit fee for 2018/19, Helen Thompson indicated that the final
fee was approximately £16,000 more due to extra work involved in gaining
assurance over the value for money significant risk.
Councillor Burgess sought an update on the comments made around capacity
within the Finance team and the presentation of the Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP) being difficult to follow. The Head of Finance commented that with regards
to capacity, huge steps had made in numbers and the way the team worked. The
Deputy Chief Executive stated that previous auditors had complimented the
presentation of the Council’s MTFP.

RESOLVED: That the Wokingham Borough Council Annual Audit letter year ended 31
March 2019 be noted.
75.

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL - AUDIT PLANNING REPORT YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
The Committee received the Wokingham Borough Council – Audit Planning report year
ended 31 March 2020.
During the discussion of this item, the following points were made:













The Committee was informed that it was unlikely that COVID 19 would have a
significant impact on the 2019-20 statement but it would have a significant impact
on the following year’s statement.
Justine Thorpe, Ernst & Young, highlighted the three areas where increased risk or
focus had been identified; valuation of land and buildings; pension liability valuation;
and going concern.
Members sought assurance that the issues faced around the pension fund audit
previously, would not happen again. The Committee was informed that discussions
on risks and timetables had been had with the pension fund auditor. Councillor
Ross questioned whether the Member representative on the Berkshire Pension
Fund was kept informed of developments. The Deputy Chief Executive indicated
that discussions were primarily at officer level but that he would take this forward for
high-level assurance.
The materiality had been set on the same basis as previously.
Members were informed that the timescales for the audit would be different
because of COVID 19. The draft account deadline had moved from the end of May
to the end of August.
Justine Thorpe indicated that there were two significant value for money risks
identified; commercialisation and the purchase of investment properties; and
effectiveness of the Council’s Governance and Risk Management Framework.
It was noted that the Council’s Risk Management Strategy had not been
significantly updated for some time.
Councillor Shepherd-DuBey questioned what more could be done to evaluate the
risks around investments. Justine Thorpe indicated that testing the valuation of
investments would be part of the value for money work. The Deputy Chief
Executive commented that this was something which scrutiny had also looked at
previously.
Helen Thompson provided further information around the audit fees.
In response to a Member question on the impact of COVID 19 on the ability to
undertake the external audit work, Helen Thompson stated that it took longer to

7

undertake an audit remotely as it was more difficult to gather information. In
addition, it was more difficult to verify plant, property and equipment, remotely.
RESOLVED: That the Wokingham Borough Council –Audit Planning Report year ended
31 March 2020, be noted.
76.
UPDATE ON CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Head of Finance presented a report on changes to the accounting policies.
During the discussion of this item, the following points were made:




For 2019/20, there had been no significant changes to any policies except for
general clarification around terminology, grammar and duplications.
It was noted that the implementation of changes on the accounting standard IFRS
16 – Leases had been delayed.
Members were informed that various deadlines had been amended because of the
COVID 19 crisis.

RESOLVED: That the revised Statement of Accounting Policies as per Appendix A of the
report be approved for inclusion in the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March
2020.
77.
CORPORATE RISK REGISTER
The Committee received the Corporate Risk Register.
During the discussion of this item, the following points were made:









The Chief Executive informed Members that COVID 19 had had a massive impact
and had materially changed the risk environment. Broad comments had been
made on each risk in light of the COVID 19 crisis and the Committee would receive
a fuller update at its next meeting in July.
The Deputy Chief Executive stated that there would be a fundamental rewrite of the
Corporate Risk Register. The Council’s emergency planning arrangements around
risk and recovery would be looking at risk and recovery.
Councillor Burgess commented that the risk of a pandemic had been included on
the Government risk register and questioned why it had not been included on the
Council’s Corporate Risk Register previously. She went on to ask how the Council
was addressing the risk of a second wave of infection. The Chief Executive
commented that the Council was currently responding to the crisis and that a daily
emergency response meeting was held to discuss risks. Within the next month, a
local control outbreak plan would be in place. Other issues such as the strength of
supply for PPE, were under consideration. It was noted that the Government was
introducing a clipper system to ensure more certain supplies of PPE.
The Deputy Chief Executive questioned whether a pandemic should previously
have been included on the Council’s Corporate Risk Register and emphasised that
risk management used a matrix of likelihood and risk. The Chief Executive added
that the Council was resilient and in a position to be able to respond should a
second wave of infection occur.
Councillor Burgess asked about financial scenario planning over the next 3 years
and the potential scale of the financial risk because of COVID 19. The Deputy
Chief Executive responded that there were a large amount of unknowns such as the
local government finance settlement. Similarly, the easing of lockdown might

8























release some leisure income. It was important that the Council was fully aware of
what options it had available to it.
Councillor Burgess asked whether the Council had prepared sufficiently for a worstcase financial scenario. The Deputy Chief Executive indicated that the Council was
not moving towards a Section 114 notice.
With regards to the Climate Emergency risk, Councillor Ross was reassured that
consideration was being given to preparation for possible droughts.
In response to a comment from Councillor Shepherd-DuBey, the Deputy Chief
Executive stressed that the Climate Emergency work was not on hold, and that an
officer group continued to meet. He also continued to liaise with the relevant
Executive Member. The Climate Emergency Action Plan was under development
and would be presented to Council in the near future.
Councillor Burgess emphasised the need for carbon reduction targets. The Deputy
Executive stated that these were being worked on.
Councillor Ross commented that the Risk Register did not refer to the current Local
Plan. The Chief Executive agreed that this should be included.
Councillor Sargeant welcomed the approach taken to the Corporate Risk Register.
Councillor Shepherd-DuBey emphasised that with large amounts of staff working
from home it was vital that the Council have a robust IT infrastructure in place, and
that this needed to be reflected within the Risk Register. It was agreed that this
would be referenced.
Members were informed of the Council’s emergency planning response which
considered matters such as accommodation, staffing and IT. When the first case
had been identified in the Borough, an immediate response had been identified and
uptodate service templates produced.
Councillor Shepherd-DuBey asked about lessons learnt from the Council’s initial
response to the COVID 19 pandemic. The Chief Executive indicated a paper would
be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee, which would
decide how different aspects of the Council’s response would be scrutinised.
With regards to the risk around workforce, Councillor Shepherd-DuBey commented
that no mention was made of how many staff could be unavailable due to sickness
before the Council could no longer function. The Deputy Chief Executive stated
that planning assumptions of up to 25% of staff being unavailable had been
considered.
With regards to Risk 2 ‘Corporate Governance’ and managing the impact of COVID
19 on this, Councillor Burgess felt that the wording was misleading and that the
briefings with the Group Leaders were not transparent. The Deputy Chief Executive
emphasised that officers were briefing all parties as often as they could at present
and the briefings still provided some challenge and steer.
Councillor Burgess felt that the actions identified to mitigate Risk 4 ‘Local Land
Supply (including five year land supply)’ did not sufficiently address the issue, nor
was the extension of the danger zone around AWE referred to.
With regards to Risk 6 ‘Safeguarding children and young people’, Councillor
Burgess was of the opinion that there was insufficient further actions highlighted to
address issues identified as a result of COVID 19 such as increased domestic
abuse. The Chief Executive reiterated that the current iteration of the Risk Register
was light touch whilst the Council continued to respond to the crisis and that the
Committee would receive a fuller update at their next meeting.
Councillor Burgess noted that overview and scrutiny were to monitor the risk around
Brexit. She commented that it was important that Brexit was included on the
scrutiny work programmes.

9

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.
78.
FORWARD PROGRAMME
The Committee considered the forward programme.
Helen Thompson requested that the Audit Results Report be added to the September
meeting.
RESOLVED: That the forward programme be noted.

10

Agenda Item 7.
TITLE

Treasury Management Outturn 2019-20

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Audit Committee on 29 July 2020

WARD

None Specific;

LEAD OFFICER

Deputy Chief Executive - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
To demonstrate that the Council’s treasury function has effectively managed the Council’s
debt and cash balances to support the funding of the delivery of the Council’s key priorities.
RECOMMENDATION
The Audit Committee is asked to:
1)

recommend the report to Executive on 30th July 2020;

2)

note the managed repayment of debt over time which illustrates the increased
borrowing required to fund key Council priorities which in turn generate income
streams (to repay debt) and provides revenue funding for vital statutory services
(see graph in table 2);

3)

note the asset value created through the Council’s capital investments compared
to the debt required to generate the asset value (see graph in table 2);

4)

note the capital investments made in the Council’s priorities for its community, by
category (see table 1);

5)

note the Treasury Management report in Appendix A, that shows that all approved
indicators have been adhered to and that prudent and safe management has been
adhered to.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report summarises the treasury management operations during 2019/2020. It is
presented for the purpose of monitoring and review, in accordance with Council’s treasury
management practices. The council adhered to all agreed prudential indicators during
2019/2020. This includes ensuring the necessary liquidity to deliver on the day-to-day
operations of the Council.
There are two aspects of treasury performance – debt management and cash investment:
debt management relates to the Council’s borrowing;
cash investment relates to the investment of surplus cash balances
Further detailed breakdown of the Council’s performance in these areas is summarised
below and in the attached appendices.
Capital investment funded by borrowing
Table 1 shows the capital priorities which have been delivered through its funded capital
programme of which £93m is long term sustainable borrowing.

11

Table 1:

MTFP category

Expenditure
2019/20
£'000

Investment and Regeneration

96,759

Roads and Transport

44,726

Environment

12,719

Children Services and Schools

8,770

Climate Emergency

5,026

Internal Services

1,803

Adult Social Care
Total

1,517
171,320

Capital expenditure is funded from borrowing if it cannot be sourced by capital
contributions, capital grants or capital receipts.
Further information on the 2019/20 capital expenditure was reported to the Executive in
May 2020 as part of the capital outturn report.
Borrowing outturn
As mentioned above, to be able to fund the Council’s ambitious capital programme,
borrowing is required. This can be supported in two ways:



Internal borrowing – the use of the Council’s internal cash reserves to fund the
capital expenditure.
External borrowing - receive loans from other organisations (i.e. PWLB, banks and
other local authorities).

External borrowing was contained to only £279m at 31st March ’20 through the use of
internal borrowing. This is possible due to the strength of the Council’s cash balances.
This has meant that the Council has been able to utilise its own cash holdings to finance
(in the interim) its capital programme allowing the need to borrow to be deferred to a
more opportune time. The underlying need to borrow is constantly reviewed by the
Council’s treasury team, who manage the day-to-day treasury cashflow by covering
material expenditure when due and optimising its take up of external borrowing through
the consideration of timing, duration and the balance of internal versus external
borrowing. Through this proactive management, the Council has minimised its cost of
debt by £252k per annum. The treasury function of managing the cost of debt is as
important as the investment strategy as the Council’s need to borrow to support its capital
programme increases.
Taken from the Medium Term Financial Plan, the graph below shows the Council’s
estimated debt levels from 2020/21 onwards (blue line), and when the debt will reduce
back to the original baseline (yellow line) of £100m which was the original position before

12

enhanced regeneration, commercial investments and forward funding strategic
infrastructure. Also shown is the estimate of asset values that this debt has generated
(red line). Consistent with this graph, expected future borrowing will be primarily
associated with asset value creation and income generation and should therefore have a
similar trajectory when setting future capital programmes. Furthermore, the long-term
asset value is considered to be significantly understated and therefore extremely prudent.
Asset value is based on a combination of the value of asset at completion or the cost of
construction where no market value is available. The value of the assets are reviewed on
a regular basis.
Table 2:pital investment (26) (91) (74)
Estimated Debt Levels (General Fund)

£'000
800,000
700,000

Peak Debt

600,000

Asset Value

500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000

Baseline debt level of £100m before commercialisation, forward funding & regeneration

100,000

2052-53

2051-52

2050-51

2049-50

2048-49

2047-48

2046-47

2045-46

2044-45

2043-44

2042-43

2041-42

2040-41

2039-40

2038-39

2037-38

2036-37

2035-36

2034-35

2033-34

2032-33

2031-32

2030-31

2029-30

2028-29

2027-28

2026-27

2025-26

2024-25

2022/23

2023-24

2020/21

2021/22

0

The blue line represents the continued repayment of debt that will contribute to reducing
our baseline debt level after 2048.
The movements in the Council’s external borrowings through 2019/20, are shown in the
table below:-

External Borrowing

Opening @
01-04-19

New
Borrowing

Repayments of
Borrowing

Closing @
31-03-20

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

(227,550)

(75,000)

23,380

(279,170)

In delivering the 2019/20 capital programme of £171m the council has managed to
contain it’s in year debt to £93m of which net external borrowing has increased by only
£52m.
Capital Financing Requirement
The CFR represents the total outstanding borrowing currently required to fund all of the
Council’s past capital programmes. The Council’s ongoing considered treasury
management practice working with our treasury management advisors has ensured an
optimum approach with regard to our internal and external borrowing. This enables a

13

balance between reduced revenue debt costs and exposure to the external lending
market. Through this activity, an overall saving of £380k was achieved in 2019/20.
The table below shows the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) for the Council in
2018/19 and 2019/20. The expected increase in the CFR is driven from the capital
expenditure in 2019/20 to be funded from borrowing.
Actual @ 31-03-19

Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR)
Less other long-term
Liabilities
Underlying capital
borrowing Requirement

Actual @ 31-03-20

General
Fund

Housing
Revenue Total
Account

General
Fund

Housing
Revenue Total
Account

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

249,467

86,280

335,747

329,539

86,090

415,629

(7,312)

0

(7,312)

(6,820)

0

(6,820)

242,155

86,280

328,435

322,719

86,090

408,809

The underlying capital borrowing requirement can be broken down to external and
internal borrowing as shown below:-

External borrowing

152,818

74,732

227,550

204,464

74,706

279,170

Internal Borrowing

89,337

11,548

100,885

118,255

11,384

129,639

Total borrowing

242,155

86,280

328,435

322,719

86,090

408,809

Investment outturn
Cash flow balances vary significantly throughout the year due to differences in timing of
income (council tax, grants, etc.) and expenditure (running costs - revenue, and
investment in assets and services – capital). Through careful planning and monitoring the
Council made investments which generated returns as outlined below:

14

The table below shows the Council’s investments by type, including performance and
year-end balance.

Investment Properties
Internal Loans
Fund Managers
Local Authorities
Money Markets
Total

Average
value
invested

Interest
received

Average
rate of
return

£'000
31,164
24,401
639
73,856
8,343
138,403

£'000
1,592
943
9
934
89
3,567

%
5.11%
3.86%
1.49%
1.27%
1.07%
2.58%

Balance
as at 31st
March
2020
£'000
31,164
24,610
643
67,380
11,226
135,023

As part of the Council’s policies on property investment the Council has invested £31m of
its own balances, these generate £1.6m in annual revenues which is a return of 5.11%.
Monetary investments achieve a return of c.1.9% over a similar investment term. This
equates to c£1m additional income per annum.
Prudential indicators debt and investment
During 2019-2020, the Council adhered to all of its prudential indicators whilst minimising
external debt and creating a significant revenue contribution with robust risk management
arrangements.

15

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe funding pressures, particularly in the face of the COVID-19
crisis. It is therefore imperative that Council resources are focused on the
vulnerable and on its highest priorities.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)

Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

£(380)k net
underspend on
interest received
and paid to budget
To be confirmed
To be confirmed

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

Revenue or
Capital?

Yes

Revenue

Yes

Revenue

Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
None
Cross-Council Implications
None
Public Sector Equality Duty
Initial equalities assessment indicates a further assessment is not required.
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
Not applicable
List of Background Papers
Appendix A – Treasury Management Outturn 2019-20 Report
Appendix B – Loan Portfolio
Contact James Sandford
Telephone No Tel: 0118 974 6577

Service Business Services
Email
james.sandford@wokingham.gov.uk

16

Appendix A

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

Treasury Management
Outturn Report 2019-20
Page | 1

17

Appendix A

Contents
1.

Introduction ................................................................................................................ 3

2.

Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2019/20...................................... 3

3.

Treasury Management Outturn Position for 2019/20................................................... 4

4.

The Council’s Borrowing Activity................................................................................. 7

5.

The Council’s Investment Activities ............................................................................ 7

6.

Conclusion ..................................................................................................................8

Appendices
Portfolio of Borrowing

Page | 2

Appendix B

18

Appendix A

1. Introduction
This report provides updates on both borrowing and investment activities of the treasury
function under delegated authority for the financial year 2019/20.
Treasury management is defined as “the management of the authority’s borrowing,
investments and cash flows; its banking, money market and capital market transactions;
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks”.

2. Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2019/20
The Deputy Chief Executive confirms that, throughout the reporting period, all treasury
activities have been conducted within the parameters of the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement.
These include treasury management policy, performance indicators, economic forecasts,
capital expenditure forecasts, Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy, annual
investment strategy and the Councils external borrowing policy.
The following table shows the treasury management performance indicators, authorised
limits and boundaries:2018/19
Outturn

Budget
2019/20

£'000

£'000

2019/20
Estimated
outturn
£'000

334,954

585,500

408,809

227,550

295,170

279,170

32.04%

34.51%

32.83%

334,954

492,000

408,809

% of net revenue expenditure dedicated for financing
costs

2.55%

3.59%

2.46%

Average interest rate on external borrowing

2.80%

n/a

2.46%

150,400

n/a

158,000

Prudential indicators

Authorised limit
Maximum limit on borrowing to fund capital programme and to
manage cashflow

Gross external borrowing
Actual borrowing undertaken (cumulative)

% of internal borrowing to CFR
Operational Boundary
Borrowing boundary based on budgeted capital programme

Investment balances

Page | 3

19

Appendix A

3. Treasury Management Outturn Position for 2019/20
The Treasury Management outturn position shows the actual performance, in-year, for the
Council’s investments, borrowing and cash management, to budget and previous year’s
performance. The performance of interest and dividends received and paid are also
reported.
The table below shows details of the Council’s gross debt, the book value of all the
Councils debt obligations, and is made up of external borrowing, Private Finance Initiatives
(PFI), and finance leases.
Actual @ 31-03-19
Housing
General
Revenue
Fund
Account
£'000

Opening external
69,075
borrowing
In year movements:New borrowing
141,781
Repayments
(58,038)
Total external borrowing 152,818
PFI liability
6,245
Finance lease liability
1,067
Total other long-term
7,312

Actual @ 31-03-20

Total

General
Fund

Housing
Revenue
Account

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

76,694

145,769

152,818

74,732

227,550

0
(1,962)
74,732
0
0

141,781 73,192
(60,000) (21,382)
227,550 204,628
6,245
5,754
1,067
1,066

1,808
(1,998)
74,542
0
0

75,000
(23,380)
279,170
5,754
1,066

0

7,312

6,820

0

6,820

74,732

234,862

211,448

74,542

285,990

liabilities
Total gross debt

160,130

The total gross debt of the Council increased during 2019/20 by £51m, from £235m to
£286m in order to fund the Council’s agreed capital priorities. The planned increase was
driven by capital expenditure in 2019/20.
Capital Financing Requirement: The table below shows the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) for the Council in
2019/20.
The measure of the council’s underlying need to borrow to finance its capital expenditure
programme is known as the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The CFR is calculated
from all the Council’s historic capital expenditure, less that funded from other sources such
as capital grants, capital contributions, capital receipts and capital reserves. The balance
is therefore the amount that needs to be funded from external borrowing.

Page | 4

20

Appendix A
Actual @ 31-03-19

Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR)
Less other long-term
Liabilities
Underlying capital
borrowing requirement

Actual @ 31-03-20

General
Fund

Housing
Revenue
Account

Total

General
Fund

Housing
Revenue
Account

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

249,467

86,280

335,747

329,539

86,090

415,629

(7,312)

0

(7,312)

(6,820)

0

(6,820)

242,155

86,280

328,435

322,719

86,090

408,809

The underlying capital borrowing requirement can be broken down in to external &
internal borrowing as shown below: External
External
borrowing
borrowing

152,818

74,732

227,550

189,628
204,464

74,542
74,706

264,170
279,170

borrowing
InternalInternal
borrowing

89,337
89,337

11,548
11,548

100,885
100,885

118,255
118,255

11,384
11,384
6

129,639
129,639

Total borrowing
Total borrowing
borrowing 242,155
242,155
Total

86,280
86,280

328,435
328,435

322,719
322,718

86,090
85,388

408,809
408,809
408,106

By comparing the underlying capital borrowing requirement with the actual amount, the
Council has borrowed, we deduct long term borrowing the Council has taken out, to show
internal borrowing. Against a balance of £408.8m the Council has actually borrowed
£279.2m resulting in internal borrowing of £129.6m. This is primarily because the
underlying need to borrow is considered along with available balances when any decision
to access external borrowing is taken.
The level of internal borrowing is supported by the strength of the Council’s cash balances.
This has meant that the Council has been able to utilise its own cash holdings to finance
(in the interim) its capital programme allowing the need to borrow to be deferred to a more
opportune time. The underlying need to borrow is constantly reviewed by the Council’s
treasury team with our treasury advisors, who manage the day-to-day treasury cashflow
by covering material expenditure when due and optimising its take up of external
borrowing through the consideration of timing, duration and the balance of internal versus
external borrowing. Through this proactive management, the Council can minimise its cost
of debt. The treasury function of managing the cost of debt is as important as the
investment strategy as the Council’s need to borrow to support its capital programme
increases.

Page | 5

21

Appendix A
Capital Expenditure
During 2019/20 the Council incurred £171m in capital expenditure (broken down into the
following categories and priorities).

Expenditure
2019/20

MTFP category

£'000
Investment and Regeneration
Roads & Transport
Environment
Children Services and Schools

96,759
44,726
12,719
8,770

Climate Emergency
Internal Services
Adult Social Care

5,026
1,803
1,517
Total

171,320

Capital expenditure to deliver on the Council’s key priorities has increased significantly
over the last 4 years, as shown below.

Page | 6

22

Appendix A

4. The Council’s Borrowing Activity
The Council is required to borrow to fund its capital programme where capital grants,
contributions and receipts are not sufficient. The amount of new borrowing needed each
year is determined by capital schemes approved in the capital programme. Short term
borrowing is required to manage operational cashflow requirements.
The following table shows the movement in external borrowing during 2019/20.

External Borrowing

Opening @
01-04-19

New
Borrowing

Repayments of
Borrowing

Closing @
31-03-20

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

(227,550)

(75,000)

23,380

(279,170)

The capital expenditure in 2019/20 was £171m, of which £93m was allocated to be funded
by borrowing. New external borrowing in 2019/20 was only £75m, by using internal
borrowing for the £17.8m difference, this is estimated to have notionally saved more than
£252k in debt financing costs.
In 2019/20, total debt interest payments made by the Council were £4.36m.

5. The Council’s Investment Activities
The table below demonstrates the average value invested during 2019/20 and interest
received.

Investment Properties
Local Authorities
Money Markets
Fund Managers
Loans to Subsidiaries
Total

Average
value
invested

Interest
received

Average
rate of
return

Balance
as at 31st
March
2020

£'000
31,164
73,856
8,343
639
24,401
138,403

£'000
1,592
934
89
9
943
3,567

%
5.11%
1.27%
1.07%
1.49%
3.86%
2.58%

£'000
31,164
67,380
11,226
643
24,610
135,023

In 2019/20 the average rate of return achieved on investments was 2.58%. This compared
favourably to the average 12 Month LIBOR - Historical Average rate of 1.22%, showing
that the Council’s treasury function has performed well in the current market of low interest
rates and with the Council’s priority of security rather than yield.

Page | 7

23

Appendix A
As part of the Council’s policies on property investment the Council has invested £31m of
its own balances; these generate £1.6m in annual revenues which is a return of 5.11%.
Monetary investments achieve a return of c.1.9% over a similar investment term. This
equates to c£1m additional income per annum.
The revenue budget for interest and dividends received in 2019/20 was £4.12m. Actual
interest received on investments was £4.97m (including saving received from pension prepayment), giving an actual surplus to the budget of £0.85m, not including the returns on
the property investments.
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is an annual amount set aside from the Council’s
revenue budget as a provision to repay debt (in respect of borrowing taken to finance
capital expenditure). This is a mandated requirement of the CIPFA Prudential Code; it is
a requirement for each individual Local Authority to determine what its own prudent MRP
policy will be (within the parameters of the CIPFA code).

6. Conclusion
This report shows that during 2019/20 the Council’s treasury management function has
operated efficiently, and has continued to support the capital programme aligned to the
key priorities, whilst maintaining strong financial resilience and adequate reserves
The treasury management strategy is revised and agreed annually at Council and is
monitored throughout the year, with reports to Audit Committee and Council.
Despite the recent Covid-19 pandemic, the Council has maintained appropriate balances
to support the cashflow for all liquidity requirements; this has required many of the normal
investment activities to be reduced to shorter duration investments.

Page | 8

24

LOAN PORTFOLIO - as at 31st March 2020
Counterparty

Start Date

Maturity
Date

Original
Principal

Interest
Rate

East Sussex County Council
Leicester City Council
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham
Oxfordshire County Council
Oxfordshire County Council
Police and Crime Commissioner for West
Midlands, Birmingham
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
Mid Lothian Council
Wigan Council
Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive
Middlesbrough Teeside Pension Fund & INV.
Section-Middlesbrough Council
Islington Council
Lincolnshire County Council
London Borough of Bromley
London Borough of Wandsworth
North Yorkshire County Council

28/02/2020
10/02/2020
30/01/2019
28/01/2020
23/03/2020
10/02/2020

28/02/2022
10/02/2022
30/07/2021
28/01/2022
23/03/2022
10/02/2022

5,000,000
5,000,000
10,000,000
15,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000

1.65%
1.65%
1.55%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%

LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM

18/03/2019

25/03/2022

5,000,000

1.45%

LONG TERM

18/03/2019
01/04/2019
23/04/2019
25/03/2020
28/08/2019
24/01/2020

18/03/2022
01/04/2021
23/04/2021
24/03/2023
28/04/2020
22/01/2021

5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
15,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000

1.45%
1.45%
1.40%
1.60%
0.79%
1.00%

LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
SHORT TERM
SHORT TERM

24/01/2020

04/05/2020

10,000,000

0.86%

SHORT TERM

28/03/2019
27/03/2019
19/12/2018
11/03/2019
26/02/2019

29/03/2021
26/03/2021
18/12/2020
11/03/2021
26/02/2021

10,000,000
5,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000

1.40%
1.42%
1.45%
1.45%
1.45%

SHORT TERM
SHORT TERM
SHORT TERM
SHORT TERM
SHORT TERM

Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board
Public Works Loan Board

00/01/1900
16/07/2004
15/02/2006
26/04/2006
28/04/2006
24/05/2007
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
28/03/2012
31/03/2017
31/03/2017
31/03/2017
28/03/2012

01/08/2022
01/02/2034
01/08/2051
30/09/2046
01/08/2052
31/03/2054
28/03/2032
28/03/2031
28/03/2022
28/03/2029
28/03/2027
28/03/2033
28/03/2034
28/03/2025
28/03/2028
28/03/2030
28/03/2026
28/03/2024
28/03/2023
31/03/2035
31/03/2036
31/03/2034
28/03/2021

1,000,000
2,400,000
3,000,000
1,465,490
5,722,574
10,000,000
8,516,000
7,231,000
4,199,000
6,378,000
5,415,000
9,276,247
1,000,000
3,744,000
5,981,000
6,789,000
3,971,000
4,116,000
3,483,753
8,000,000
4,000,000
6,000,000
3,482,000

4.88%
4.95%
3.85%
4.35%
4.40%
4.60%
3.30%
3.26%
2.40%
3.15%
3.01%
3.34%
3.37%
2.82%
3.08%
3.21%
2.92%
2.70%
2.56%
2.34%
2.37%
2.30%
2.21%

LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
SHORT TERM

Barclays
Barclays
Just retirement
Barclays
Barclays
Barclays

24/02/2007
11/01/2007
06/02/2006
16/02/2006
19/10/2006
19/10/2006

24/02/2077
11/01/2077
06/02/2066
16/02/2066
19/10/2076
19/10/2076

5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
2,000,000
5,000,000
2,000,000

4.35%
4.60%
4.88%
3.68%
3.73%
3.77%

LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM
LONG TERM

4.50%
3.50%

LONG TERM
LONG TERM

Total Wokingham Borough Council (including HRA) external debt
Long term
215,688,064
Short term
63,482,000
279,170,064
Internal loan form genral fund to HRA
Internal loans HRA
Internal loans HRA

25

8,873,978
1,808,000
10,681,978

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8.
TITLE

Corporate Risk Management

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Audit Committee on 29 July 2020

WARD

None Specific

DIRECTOR

Deputy Chief Executive & Director of Resources and
Assets - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) provides for robust and transparent decision-making.
Effective ERM is therefore an integral part of the council’s governance arrangements and
helps demonstrate the effective use of resources and sound internal controls. The
council’s Corporate Risk Register (CRR) demonstrates that the council is pro-actively
identifying and managing its significant risks.
RECOMMENDATION
The Audit Committee is asked to:1)
Consider and note the risks and mitigating actions of the Council’s corporate risks
as detailed in the attached CRR (Appendix A);
2)
Approve the updated Enterprise Risk Management policy and guidance (Appendix
B) and agree its onward submission to the Executive; and
3)
Consider what further training the Committee requires to discharge its
responsibilities with regard to Risk Management.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
One of the roles of the Audit Committee is to provide assurance on the adequacy of the
Council’s Risk Management Strategy and associated control environment. It does this by
periodically reviewing the Strategy, and evaluating the effectiveness of the Corporate
Risk Register.
At its previous meeting on 3 June, the Audit Committee received an initial report from the
Chief Executive and Deputy Chief Executive outlining the initial assessment of the impact
of Covid-19 on the wider community and the Council itself. The Council faces significant
challenges and risks over the forthcoming period that include financial, organisational and
reputational risks. The report highlights these risks in the latest Council Corporate Risk
Register (CRR) following a comprehensive review by Directors and Assistant Directors.
The details of the CRR is attached to this report (Appendix A).
This report includes an updated policy and guidance note on Risk Management for the
Committee to review and approve (Appendix B).
The Committee is also asked to consider what training may be helpful in supporting it to
fully discharge its specific responsibilities with regards Risk Management.

27

Background
1.1

The Council’s Constitution sets out the remit of the Audit Committee as follows
with regard to Risk Management.
Extract from Constitution (paragraph 4.4.3.2 (d))
To provide an independent assurance of the adequacy of the Risk
Management Strategy and the associated control environment. In particular:i) To receive the annual review of internal controls and be satisfied that the
Annual Governance Statement properly reflects the risk environment and
any actions required to improve it;
ii) To receive quarterly reports reviewing implementation of the Council’s
Risk Management Policy and Strategy to determine whether strategic risks
are being actively managed;
iii) To review, revise as necessary and recommend adoption of the Risk
Management Policy and Strategy to Executive when changes occur;
iv) To have the knowledge and skills requisite to their role with regard to risk
management and to undertake awareness training in respect of Enterprise
Risk Management (ERM) as and when specific training needs are identified.

1.2

With regards to (i) above, elsewhere on this agenda is the Annual Internal Audit
& Investigations report, and the draft Annual Governance Statement for the
Committee to discharge these responsibilities.

1.3

The Audit Committee has historically received a report on the Corporate Risk
Register at each meeting (ii above). The remit of the Committee is to gain
assurance on the risk management process as opposed to a detailed analysis
of individual risks. In discharging this responsibility, the Committee is advised to
focus its review in seeking assurance that the risk management framework
ensures that new key risks are identified, that risk mitigations are in place and
are effective, and that management action ensures a match with the risk
appetite of the Council.

Corporate Risk Register
2.1

The Enterprise Risk Management Policy (ERMP) states that the Corporate
Leadership Team (CLT) is responsible for identifying and managing the
Council’s risks and opportunities, and for setting an example to staff. CLT is
also responsible for identifying, analysing and profiling high-level strategic and
cross-cutting risks on a regular basis.

2.2

Since the June 2020 meeting of the Audit Committee, Directors and Assistant
Directors have participated in workshops to ensure the most significant risks to
the Council have been identified and are being managed appropriately. The
CRR has also undergone a fundamental review in the light of the impact of
Covid-19. Changes made since the last meeting fall into the category of either
presentational or new/removed risks.

28

2.3

2.4

The main changes to the presentation of the CRR are as follows:

The overall 6x4 matrix at the front of the register has been added to provide
a summary of risks visualising in a simple statement the relativity of each
risk



The description of each risk has been reviewed to clarify more precisely the
risk in terms of its cause and potential impact



Each risk has been assessed in terms of impact and likelihood of the risk
materialising



Each mitigating action has a specified owner and timescale for
implementation



Each risk has been mapped to one or more of the Council’s seven key
priorities

The main changes to the composition of the register are as follows:







New risks have been added covering Telephony (risk no.15), IT
Infrastructure (risk no. 16), Public Sector Equality Duty (risk no. 17), and
Pandemic response (risk no. 18)
Budgeting and Financial Management (risk no. 1) has been escalated as
the highest risk currently facing the Council. Members are asked to refer to
the Executive report of 30 July for further details.
Corporate Governance (risk no. 2) has been updated to reflect the revised
Local Code of Corporate Governance – details can be found elsewhere on
this agenda.
Local Plan (risk no.5) has been re-assessed to the highest impact level.
Adult Social Care Provider Failure (risk no.12) has been re-assessed to the
highest impact level.
Climate Emergency (risk no.13) has been updated to reflect the Action Plan
being considered by Council on 23 July.
No existing risks have been removed since the previous report to the
Committee.

Risk Management Strategy (Policy and Guidance)
3.1

The Risk Management Policy and Strategy was last considered by the Audit
Committee in September 2018. The Committee should also note that, this year,
the External Auditor has identified risk management as an area to be
considered a part of their Value for Money (VfM) work.

3.2

The documents (at Appendix B) have been updated with tracked changes.
Changes relate to the new Community Strategy and Corporate Delivery Plan, a
new paragraph on the impact of Covid-19, clarification on the role of Council
risk facilitator, and emphasising links to the Local Code of Corporate
Governance and the Annual Governance Statement.

29

Training
4.1

With the start of a new municipal year it is timely for the Committee to consider
what further training (if any) Members may feel necessary in order to fulfil their
responsibilities with regard to risk management.

4.2

Options available to the Committee include:



Dedicated “classroom” training at a future Committee or a special session
Online training
One-to-one training for individual Members

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result of
the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent reductions
to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough Council will be
required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the next three years and
all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

£0

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

£0

Yes

Revenue

£0

Yes

Revenue

Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
Effective risk management mitigates financial risks associated with the Council
achieving its objectives.
Cross-Council Implications
Risk management influences all areas of the Council – effective risk management is
one of the ways assurance is provided that the Council’s key priorities and objectives
will be achieved.
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
Not applicable
List of Background Papers
Previous Corporate Risk Register papers to Audit Committee
Enterprise Risk Management Strategy and Policy
Contact Andrew Moulton
Telephone No Tel: 07747 777298

Service Governance
Email
andrew.moulton@wokingham.gov.uk

30

Corporate Risk Register
Summary Page
Updated 17/7/2020

APPENDIX A

Key
Current
VH = Very High
Score (premitigation):

H = High

M = Medium

L = Low

Summary of Corporate Risks

Risk Matrix

1

31
LIKELIHOOD

6

5, 11

1

5

3, 13

4, 12

4

8

6, 7, 14, 17

3

15

2

2
9, 10

18

6

8

1
2

4
IMPACT

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

Budgeting & financial mgt (inc forecasting
demand & investment and commercial
strategy)
Corporate Governance
Workforce
Local Plan Delays & Appeals (including
five year land supply)
Delivering SEND Reforms
Safeguarding Children and Young People
Safeguarding Adults
Information and Data Management
Health and Safety
BREXIT
Inspections Regulatory
Adult Social Care Provider Market
Climate Emergency
High Needs Block
Telephony
IT Infrastructure
Equalities Duty
Pandemics

32

Key to Abbreviations
JH
Councillor John Halsall
PJ
Councillor Pauline Jorgensen
PB
Councillor Parry Batth
SM
Councillor Stuart Munro
UC
Councillor Ullakarin Clark
JK
Councillor John Kaiser
CM
Councillor Charles Margetts
WS
Councillor Wayne Smith
CHT
Councillor Charlotte Haitham Taylor
GM
Councillor Gregor Murray
SP
Susan Parsonage, Chief Executive
GE
Graham Ebers, Director of Corporate Resources & Deputy Chief Executive
SH
Keeley Clements, Director of Communities, Insight & Change
CC
Carol Cammiss, Director of Children’s Services
MP
Matt Pope, Director of Adult Social Services
AM
Andrew Moulton, Assistant Director Governance & Risk Facilitator
AC
Audit Committee
O&S Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee

Key Priorities (from Community Vision and Corporate Delivery Plan)
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Safe, strong communities
Enriching lives
Right homes, right places
Keeping the Borough moving
A clean and green Borough
Changing the way we work
Be the best we can

Risk

Risks:a.
b.
c.
d.

Forecasting and profiling the demand for
the long term.
Managing increasing public expectations to
be realistic to the resources available
Prevention strategies based on analyses of
nature of demand
Reviewing existing services and/or
placements to reduce demand and enable
independent living

Investment and Commercial Strategy

The report to Executive on 30th
July sets out the latest position
and forecast.




















Medium term financial
(MTFP) planning processes
over three years.
Budget management and
monitoring controls as set
out in financial regulations
Annual Internal Audit
programme covering major
financial systems
External Audit of Council’s
Financial Statements
Reduce capital programme
in line with delay in
receipts
Increase borrowing
Closer monitoring of onsite schemes
Quarterly refresh of capital
programme
Refreshed corporate asset
management plan
Annual capital bidding
system and capital
programme in place
Programme Board for
Town Centre Regeneration
Project
Forward Funding
Asset Review Programme
Meeting the Council's
strategic capital
requirement, incorporating

Current
Score

Demand - Effectively managing demand-led services
in areas such as Adult Social Care and Children’s
Social Care and special needs.

Measures in place includes a
weekly monitoring report,
ensuring we receive
Government funding available
and freezing expenditure
where possible, particularly
with regard to the capital
programme. Despite this, the
financial risks have inevitably
increased.



Likelihood

33

Risks: a budget that is:a. Value for money
b. Achieves priorities
c. Meets statutory duties
d. Sustainable in the long term
e. Owned and managed by those responsible
and accountable
f. Controlled and monitored to targets set

Significant impact on additional
costs for the vulnerable, loss of
income e.g. car parking, and
inability to enact in year savings
targets. Also potential
significant impact on capital
funding.

Impact

Budgeting and financial Management (inc
forecasting demand & investment and commercial
strategy).
Budgeting - Effectively and efficiently achieving
outcomes for the community as per the Council’s
Plans and Priorities.

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Member

1

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Officer

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Timescale

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

 In year monitoring of
financial position and
associated risks by
Executive – see latest
report of 30 July.

30/7/20

GE

JK

8

6

VH

 Overview & Scrutiny
(through Community &
Corporate Sub Committee)
review of 2021/22 budget
proposals commencing in
Sept 2020.

30/9/20

GE

JK

 Overview & Scrutiny
(through Community &
Corporate Sub Committee)
review of Property
Investment Portfolio.

30/9/20

GE

JK

 Ongoing response to
internal/external audits
and sources of external
assurance including
implementation of
recommendations.

Ongoing

GE

JK

 Lobbying re Local
Government Finance
Settlement for 2021 and
beyond.

Ongoing

GE

JK






34

Risk that the Council fails to deliver key investment
priorities through insufficient resources or
inadequate planning.



Risks:







Insufficient school places for children with
additional needs within the Borough
Financial shortfall
Negative PR
Loss of rental income
Scheme slippage / downsizing





This is a permanent, long-term risk to the Council.

Current
Score

The Council has significant investment aspirations
including Strategic Development Locations (SDL's),
Town Centre Regeneration, school rebuilds and
housing provision. This is in the context of limited
resources and a complex funding source. The Council
needs to ensure it guards against any unmet critical
needs and prioritise its aspirations over the long
term.

Likelihood

Risk that the Council fails to deliver key investment
priorities through insufficient resources or
inadequate planning

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

30/9/20

SP

JH

6

3

M

Strategic Development
Locations (SDL) in the
medium term financial
plan.
Resource planning for
Strategic Development
Locations (SDL)
infrastructure needs.
£100m commercial
investment approved.
Establishment of Capital
Review Group (CRG) and
Investment Group with
appropriate senior
representation.
Establishment of healthy
reserve balances in line
with good practice.
Overview & Scrutiny
reviewed 2020/21 budget
proposals (from Sept 2019)
CIPFA independent
assessment on financial
resilience – shows
Wokingham BC rated in top
20 for financial
sustainability.
Commercial Council
launched.

Key Priorities – 1 to 7

2

Corporate Governance (inc Political Governance)

Clear governance
arrangements for managing
and responding to COVID-19



Council and Borough Plan
processes.

i. Updated Local Code of
Corporate Governance

a.

b.

c.

Leadership and culture sets the tone that
models and holds to account, motivates,
and learns from delivery
Quality decisions that are based on
balancing evidence, public perceptions and
political considerations
Effective monitoring of priorities, risks and
business cases

emergency including
communications plan,
engagement political group
leader, maintenance of Council
decision-making through
introduction of virtual
meetings.






Code of Local Corporate
Governance
Constitution (e.g.
Member/Officer protocol,
delegations, Code of
Conducts etc)
Staff training (Code of
Conduct e learning Nov 18)

31/7/20

SP

JH

iii. Internal Audits of
Corporate Governance,
Performance
Management and Risk
Management and
implementation of
recommendations.

31/12/2
0

AM

JK

SP

JH

iv. LGA Peer Review action
plan completion from
2017 and consideration
of new Peer Review.

Audit Committee to monitor
progress

TBC

Current
Score

ii. Annual Governance
Statement (and
improvement action
plan) in place.

Likelihood

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Member

35

Governing effectively to ensure achievement of the
Council’s purpose and priorities within the resources
available and achieving value for money.
Risks:a. Assurance framework for carrying out
different types of assurance activity that is
understood and discharged effectively
b. Leadership culture and tone models good
governance (i.e. Nolan principles of
standards in public life)
c. Effective risk management
d. Effective decision making tools that inform
value for money proportionate to the risk
e.g. evidenced in business cases
e. Effective arrangements for the safe
delivery of services and programmes for
the delivery of projects.
Effective political governance that sets priorities to
deliver purpose, allocate resources, and holds to
account through development of policies and
strategies
Risks:-

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Officer

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Timescale

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Impact

Risk

Current
Score

f.

Likelihood

e.

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact

d.

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

2020/21

KC

JK

6

5

H

Effective Administration and effective
political opposition supported to achieve
outcomes for the community
Members partake in development and
training to effectively discharge their
responsibilities
Clarity of officer/member boundaries and
relationships to avoid politicisation of
officers.

This is a permanent, long-term risk to the Council.
Key Priority – 7

36
3

Workforce (inc Capacity)
A workforce that is stable, motivated and attracted
to work for the Council with an organisational
workload that is aligned to capacity available.
Resources are allocated proportionate to priority
and risk.
Risks:a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Reward and recognition policies
Recruitment policies
Value for money
Sustainable
Career development opportunities
Clarity of roles
Empowerment – staff have appraisal and
development that gives clarity to

The workforce risks associated
with COVID-19 are being
managed and mitigated
through the governance
arrangements in place as
described above (risk 2) and
health & safety arrangements
(risk 9).






People strategy
Corporate People
Dashboard
Management training
Employee Engagement
survey action plans

 Updated People strategy
including HR continuous
improvement plan.

Personnel Board and
Overview & Scrutiny to
monitor (through oversight
of Performance reports)

Risk

Member

Impact

Likelihood

Current
Score

h.
i.
j.

Project plan in place to
prepare a new local plan.
Resources allocated to
deliver project plan for a
new local plan.
Executive approved
consultation on Draft Local
Plan on 15 Jan 2020.
Regular monitoring of
housing developments.

Adoption of up to date Local
Plan and political support.

31/3/21

CT

WS

8

5

VH

CWD Team Review (post
Ofsted)
CIN 1 / 2 Review (post
Ofsted)

SEND strategy consultation
from 31 January 2019 with
the aim of agreeing final
strategy by end of year.

31/12/2
0

CC

UC

6

6

VH

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Officer

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Timescale

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

objectives, nurtures and develops, in
addition to holding to account.
Clarity of offer
(Over)Reliance on key members of staff
Capacity on the front-line

This is a permanent, long term risk to the Council.
Key Priority - 7

37

4

Local Plan Delays & Appeals and 5 year housing
land supply
Increased number of speculative planning
applications and appeals, with associated costs.
Significant pressure on finance & staffing resource
Attraction/retention of qualified staff to robustly
assess planning applications, defend appeals and
undertake enforcement.

Difficulty in demonstrating a
deliverable five-year housing
land supply due to
uncertainties in the rate of
housebuilding and sales.





Potential increased speculation
by developers utilising the
difficultly in demonstrating a
five year housing land supply.



Potential delays to preparation
of evidence base supporting
the preparation of a new local
plan.

5

Delivering SEND Reforms
Role of the Council in SEND in an environment of
academies and national formulas for education
budgets, and increasing special needs.

The SEND Improvement Board
is continuing to meet, but has
temporarily scaled down
membership.




d.
e.









This is a permanent, long term risk to the Council.


38

Key priority - 1





6

Safeguarding children and young people
Risk of serious or significant harm to a vulnerable
child or young person with whom the council is
working.
WBC has a duty to care for the needs of, and to
provide safeguarding services for the most

 Reduction in agencies having
contact and engagement
with vulnerable children
 Increase in Domestic Abuse

Move of Transitions team
to ASC
Team stability within CWD
Development of Written
Statement of Action
(WSoA) (Post CQC/Ofsted)
SEND Strategy Published
Launch and Development
of the SEND Improvement
Board
Key focus on Task & Finish
group work towards WSoA
Increased engagement
with parents & carers via
SEND Voices Wokingham
and SENDIASS
Improved relationships
with statutory and nonstatutory partners.
Introduction of weekly
performance tracker
Introduction of annual
review tracker to ensure
outcome and provision in
EHCP’s are reviewed in line
with SEND CoP.

 BWSCP Child Protection
Procedures and Safeguarding
Partnership
 Staff Training: informed by
professional knowledge and
skills statement

Current
Score

c.

All Task & Finish Groups have
delivered a business continuity
plan in respect of continued
activity during the Coronavirus
Outbreak.

Likelihood

b.

Relationship with education partners and
schools
Future services and delivery models that
are fit for purpose
School places meeting the growth in
population
Managing special needs demand and
public expectations of Council resources
Financial.

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact

Risks:a.

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

Ongoing

CC

UC

8

3

H

Reduce High Needs Block
overspend.

Children’s Services Overview
& Scrutiny to monitor

 Continuous Improvement
Programme (CIP) for
Children’s Services to
incorporate risks including
increasing demand
 Ongoing response to
internal/external audits
and sources of external

vulnerable children and young people in the
Borough.

 Increase in mental health
and emotional wellbeing
issues/challenges

Risks:




39

Avoidable harm to a vulnerable child
Damage to reputation
Litigation
Low staff morale – loss of staff, unstable
workforce – poor outcome for future children,
impact on budget.
 Impact of being judged inadequate by Ofsted
could lead to statutory/government
intervention.
 Not managing the transition to Adult Services

This is a permanent, long-term risk to the Council.
Key priority - 1

 Reduction in direct home
visits by children’s social
care.
 Impact on the quality of
assessments and the
judgments that people can
made.
 The ability to monitor and
implement plans, as welfare
becomes the primary focus
 Increase in LAC numbers
 Disruption of placements
 Not being able to locate or
source a placement
 Staff Shielding
 Staff becoming
unwell/infected

 Case Reviews and learning
from cases
 Policy and Procedures up to
date and easily accessible to
all staff
 Clear Practice Framework
that is implemented by all
social work staff
 Regular and high quality Staff
Supervision
 Quality Assurance
Framework embedded
across service
 Regular Case Audits
 Recruiting and retaining a
skilled workforce
 Growth of budget based on
growth of need
 Increase in work force to
reflect increase in workloads
 Reduction of case loads
 Increase in line managers,
reduction in span of control
 Increase in Practice
consultants to support all
social care staff
 Grip and Grasp of placement
spend and budget
 OFSTED informed action plan
to improve service delivery

assurance including
implementation of
recommendations.
 Staff Supervision training
and support
 Strengthen
partnership
working
to
ensure
thresholds are understood

Children’s Services Overview
& Scrutiny to monitor
-

Current
Score

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Likelihood

Existing controls

Impact

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

Current
Score

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Likelihood

Existing controls

Impact

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

MP

CM

8

4

H

 Children’s Services
Improvement Programme
focussing on agreed priorities
and projects within agreed
timescales
7

Safeguarding adults
Risk of avoidable serious harm or death of a
vulnerable adult for whom the council has a
responsibility.

40

WBC has a statutory duty to meet the care needs of,
and safeguard the most vulnerable adults in the
Borough. It is vital to ensure continued focus on
Safeguarding systems and procedures.
Risks:








Damage to reputation and public confidence in
services
Possible external intervention from statutory
agencies such as DH, CQC or Police)
Disruption of service provision
Litigation
Impact on staff morale
Recruitment and retention problems
Removal and replacement of senior managers
Not managing the transition from Children’s
Services

This is a permanent, long-term risk to the Council.
Key priority – 1

ASC has reviewed and updated
this risk due to the
fundamental impacts of COVID19

Policies and Procedures (multiagency) in place
• Referral system and
assessment processes
• Management and
supervision of staff
• Staff Training and awareness
• Berkshire West Safeguarding
Board operating effectively
• Optalis contract as
emergency provider in case of
external provider failure
• Care Governance Quality
Assurance system for providers
• Market Failure Protocol in
place
• Appointment of Principal
Social Worker to provide
additional tier of scrutiny and
oversight to lead to improved
quality of safeguarding policy
and practice.
• Risk assessment for
safeguarding completed.
• LGA Peer Review covered
safeguarding.

• Set up new ASH (Adult
Safeguarding Hub).
• Implement actions from the
safeguarding risk assessment.
• Implement safeguarding
actions from Peer Review.
• ASH will lead to process
change
• PSW to train on evidence
management oversight
• Increased capacity by
appointing Locums

Risk

Information Security
Management System governance for this area
including SIRO & IGG roles

41



Encrypted IT equipment



Secure storage/ lockers at
council offices

Loss of confidential or sensitive data, leading to a
significant fine and reputational damage for the
council, with a potentially damaging impact on the
resident/ customer to which the information relates.



Robust policies in this area



Risks: Imposition of a substantial fine



Mandatory refresher
programme recently
undertaken
Archiving of physical
records
Training for staff on
document / information
handling and basic
information security
practice
Secure e-mail solution
Document marking scheme
GDPR implemented for
25/5/18 to address new
obligations
Training for new members
Audit Committee
monitoring of data

 Reputational damage/ bad media coverage





Breach of contract and payment of damages
Loss of future business
Increased number of complaints
Loss of trust from partner
organisations/contractors.







This is a permanent, long-term risk to the Council.
Key priority - 7




Current
Score



Likelihood

Guidance from the Information
Commissioner and
Government on
data/information management
with regards to COVID-19
response is being applied
across the Council ensuring
continuing compliance with
requirements.

Impact

Information and Data Management
Risk of a significant fine and reputational damage
due to loss of confidential/ sensitive data.
The Council holds information of a confidential and
sensitive nature. There have been past breaches of
information security and it is an area under intensive
scrutiny from the Information Commissioner. The
primary risk is likely to concern paper based
documents.

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Member

8

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Officer

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Timescale

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Online data protection
training being updated to be
launched in summer 2020.

30/8/20

GE

JK

6

4

M

Internal audit review of
information and data
management arrangements.

30/8/20

Health and Safety
If the council fails to protect the health and safety of
its employees and other persons who come into
contact with the services provided by the authority
there is a risk of serious injury or death.

Exposure to virus and
redeployed staff increases risk.
Also, risk re mental health and
even domestic abuse from
isolation at home.

There is a risk that a health and safety failing could
result in an intervention by a relevant enforcement
agency and potential enforcement action or
conviction.

Risk mitigation measures
include; PPE, training,
wellbeing calls, online support,
guidance re physical and
psychological protection.






42

Risks:a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.

Enforcement notices and HSE fines for
intervention
Unlimited fine
Custodial Sentence
Publicity Order (Corporate Manslaughter
only)
Remedial Order (Corporate Manslaughter
and HSWA)
Publicity Order (Corporate Manslaughter
only)
Removal of key staff
Reputational damage
Service delivery loss due to depleted
resources

As part of the above, there is
an overarching corporate
health & safety risk
assessment.









Current
Score

9

Likelihood



Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

Ongoing

KC

JK

6

2

M

protection performance ref 25/9 Audit Committee .
Additional resource to deal
with Subject Access
Requests and FoI requests
Risk profile - Awareness of
high risk areas
Ongoing compliance with
statute policies and
procedures
Seeking Assurance
programme
Compliance with Health
and Safety policies and
procedures
Management and Member
performance monitoring
reporting from Health and
Safety staff
Contracts with third parties
include a Health and Safety
clause, setting out what
the Council expects from
the contractor in relation
to Health and Safety
obligations
Incident reporting,
following Health and Safety
process should death or
serious injury occur

Training for managers and
staff who procure and
manage contracts to ensure
that the Council as a client
discharges its H&S duties.

To set up a Lone Working and
Work-related Violence Task &
Finish Group with
representatives from all
services to develop a short
term and long term
improvement plan.
Latest statutory Health &
Safety report for 2018/19
refers to current plans – see
27/6/19 Executive for details.
Internal Audit of Health &
Safety reported April 2018
giving a category 2 “good”
level of assurance.
Building maintenance of
schools – discharging Council
responsibilities.

An avoidable death or injury


This is a permanent, long-term risk to the Council.
Key priority - 7



43


10

BREXIT
As the UK prepares to implement the result of the
2016 Referendum there is a risk that the Council fails
to plan for the implications and impacts of BREXIT.

There is also the risk that Government focus on
Brexit, delays or postpones decisions on other areas
e.g. Children’s Services (SEND agenda), Adult Social
Care, and local government financing.
This is a temporary, shorter term risk to the
Council.

Ongoing monitoring of the
Government’s position re the
negotiations with EU.

Current
Score

k.



Likelihood

Damage to individuals wellbeing

Impact

j.

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

Ongoing

SP

JH

6

2

M

Training of managers and
staff - Health and Safety
training
Annual historical
benchmarking review of
all Corporate Manslaughter
and relevant Health and
Safety cases in order to
identify the key risk area
Review across the Council
of the arrangements in
place to protect staff
against violence at work
Health and Safety training
included in the
Management Induction
Programme for all new
managers.



Self-assessment of
preparedness undertaken



Corporate Working Group
established to develop
more detailed responses.



Business Continuity Plans
updated



BREXIT risk register
established



Corporate Working
Group met regularly to
early Jan 2020 – now
stood down but will be
re-introduced later in
year if necessary

44



The challenge of
maintaining safeguarding
activity during Covid-19
and the recovery could
divert/deflect resources
away from improvement
activity

Risks:a.



Learning and development
program needing to be re
developed and delayed

The embedding of improvements in
services to be Good could be affected if
resources and action plans are redirected





Performance data
Self-evaluation
Intelligence captured in
relation to all forms of
external scrutiny that help
to drive improvement e.g.
Peer Reviews & Audits

 The continuous
improvement board set up
from February 2019 to
address actions arising.
 Wokingham Local Area
SEND Written Statement of
Action
 Wokingham SEND
Improvement Board
 Children with Disabilities
Improvement Board
 Service Plans for Children’s
Services

Current
Score

The regulatory inspections
such as ILACS, Local AREA
SEND and focus visits are
currently suspended. The
annual Ofsted conversation
was also suspended. However,
Wokingham requested that the
annual conversation proceed
in June and this has been
agreed. Ofsted plan to reintroduce focus visits from
September and we
Wokingham will receive one in
the calendar year. We have
revised practice standards to
reflect the lockdown and how
we approach visits to families.

Likelihood

Regulatory Inspections
Children’s Services are inspected regularly by the
regulators. ILACs is an inspection ‘system’ that
includes: Annual Conversations between Ofsted &
the Local Authority; Inspection at least every 3 years
and possible Focussed Visits on identified themes.
This means that Children’s Services is under regular
scrutiny from Ofsted that is carried out in a cyclical
process.
In addition the Local Area could be subject to a Joint
Targeted Area Inspection focussing on a set theme.
The Local Area is also inspected under the SEND
inspection Framework.
The directorate are not given notice of when the
inspections will occur as they are unannounced.
The SEND inspection took place in March 2019 and
the Local Area had to produce a Written Statement
of Action (WSoA) in response to 6 major areas
identified to be requiring improvement. The WSoA
was submitted to Ofsted & CQC in August 2019. The
Local Area will be re-inspected under the SEND
Inspection framework 18 months to 2 years
following the submission of the WSoA - so between
Feb 2021 and August 2021.
The ILACS inspection took place in June 2019 and the
Local Authority was found to be Requiring
Improvement to be Good.

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact

11

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

Ongoing

CC

UC

6

6

H



Diversion of people from
Annex A activity to
undertake other activities



Diversion of people from
Policy documents
undertake other activities



Delay in strategies being
completed



Improvement work
delayed and the reframing
of the direction of travel
due to the journey we have
taken due to Covid- 19

Key priority - 7

45
12

Adult Social Care Provider Failure
Stability and sustainability of the adult social care
market is of major importance in order to ensure the
continued safety, health and wellbeing of vulnerable
adults with a range of eligible social care support
needs.
COVID-19 has had a significant impact on the adult
social care provider market. The market has become
more volatile, with providers facing increased costs
(PPE and workforce) and reduced demand leading to

ASC has reviewed and
updated this risk due to
the fundamental impacts
of COVID-19







Annual Uplift Process;
agreed for 2020/21
Quality Assurance
Framework
An improved funding deal
for providers we contract
with plus ability to apply
for additional temporary
funding (sustainability
fund)
Help with supply of PPE

 Establish a rigorous
contract management
process that builds on
provider engagement
 Develop and implement a
rigorous contract
management system
(CMS)
 Review of the current
commissioning pathway to

Current
Score

Performance data ceases
to reflect the activity

Likelihood

c.



Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact

b.

due to a Focused Visit or other inspection
activity
Impact of being judged inadequate by
Ofsted could lead to statutory/government
intervention.
Lack of evidence of improvement in
services could lead to reputational damage

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

Ongoing

MP

CM

8

5

VH

Under the COVID Procurement Policy Notice,
contracting authorities must ensure suppliers at risk
are in a position to resume normal contract delivery
once the outbreak is over. Adult Social Care retains a
responsibility to ensure continuity of care if services
are likely to fail.

46

23/7/20

GE

GM

Current
Score



Likelihood



Regular advice and
guidance
Testing for staff with
symptoms.
Offer of access to staff in
an emergency Infection
control hotline established

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact



greater financial pressure. Adult Social Care has seen
an increase in the number of providers experiencing
financial difficulties. This will only increase with the
ongoing pressure of COVID-19 and economic
downturn.

13

Existing controls

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

6

5

H

ensure oversight of home
care providers
 Establish a market
sustainability strategy,
including a long term
financial support package
 Ensure flow of additional
government COVID
funding to providers in
need
 Establish a market
sustainability strategy (inc
uplift policy)

This applies to the whole market including selffunders which is a significant increase in
responsibility to the local authority in Wokingham
Climate Emergency
On July 18th 2019, a motion was passed at council
declaring a climate emergency. The council gave
itself six months to establish the boroughs carbon
footprint and develop an action plan setting how the
council would achieve its targets by 2030.

Meetings continue and further
actions are being developed.
Revised working practices
across the borough have led to
a positive impact on carbon
emissions.

The council needs to both

to reduce carbon emissions to slow climate
change, and

adapt to the impacts of extreme weather
events brought on by climate change

Key issues include ensuring
current changes in working
behaviour can be maintained
and built upon going forward.
The positive impact on this
Council objective means the

There are an increasing number of extreme weather
events, caused by climate change, affecting council

 Cross Council officer group
established
 Cross party member climate
emergency working group
 Appointed a climate
emergency strategy officer
to deliver the climate
emergency action plan
 Climate Change Initial Action
Plan approved by council on
23 Jan 2020

 Council considers detailed
Climate Emergency Action
Plan, setting out targets for
carbon dioxide reduction
and the related actions
proposed for Wokingham
Borough Council to play as
full a role as possible in
achieving a net-zero
carbon Borough by 2030.

Current
Score

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Likelihood

Existing controls

Impact

services and the borough in general. This ranges
from episodes of heavier more prolonged rainfall
resulting in flooding or higher temperatures, which
result in events such as heath fires or drought
conditions.

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

Ongoing

CC

UC

8

4

H

risk of non-achievement has
reduced.

Key priority - 5

14

47

High Needs Block
The high needs block spend forms part of the
revenue dedicated budget for schools. Its purpose is
to provide the necessary funding to support children
with special educational needs or disabilities who
have been assessed as requiring an Education,
Health and Care Plan. This funding is ring fenced and
cannot be used for other purposes. The budget
provided by Government is significantly insufficient
to meet the needs of Wokingham Borough children,
the consequence of which means that year on year
large deficit is carried forward. Most of the current
expenditure is used to purchase special educational
services from outside Wokingham Borough from
independent school providers. Last year, the
overspend on the budget was in excess of £1 million.
This year it is projected to be significantly more.

This was a pre-Covid-19 risk

 The Authority is currently in
the process of expanding
current special needs
provision at Addington
School from 200 to 250
places.
 In addition, the Council’s
pupil referral unit, is
undergoing a major
programme of
refurbishment. This will
improve facilities and
provide resources that will
reduce the need for agency
placements.
 Seven specialist resources
are currently provided by
local primary and secondary
schools. Work is underway
to improve these resources
and improve the current
level of funding for these
placements. This will when

 The Council has reached
agreement with the DfE to
build a new 150 place
special school in
Wokingham to meet the
needs of SEND children
from the
Wokingham/Reading area.
This is planned to open
21/22.
 Ongoing discussions are
being held with the
Education and Skill Funding
Agency to ascertain
whether additional funding
can be provided as part of
a deficit recovery
programme.

Likelihood

Current
Score

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

28/2/21

KC

JK

4

3

M

completed further reduce
the need for expensive out
of area placements.
 Finally, the Council is in
negotiation/discussion with
the Department for
Education to re-broker
provision for Northern
House School so as to
introduce a new sponsor to
improve provision for
children with emotional and
behavioural difficulties. This
is a local specialist academy
that has been judged by
Ofsted as inadequate.

48
15

Existing controls

Impact

Impact of COVID

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

Telephony
There are a number of risks associated with
telephony which include the age of the current kit,
capacity issues and the location of the telephony
hardware.
The impact of failure in this area would be significant
affecting one of the key customer channels and
impacting the wider service delivery capability of the
Council.
Priority - 6

This risk has been acerbated by
Covid-19 which is why it has
been escalated to the
Corporate Risk Register.

 Operational monitoring of
capacity
 Operational maintenance

 Additional investment in
telephony as part of
2021/22 budget setting.

Likelihood

Current
Score

IT Infrastructure
There are a number of risks associated with the IT
infrastructure including capacity.
The impact of failure in this area would be very
significant affecting all aspects of the wider service
delivery capability of the Council.

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact

16

Existing controls

Member

Cause

Consequence/
Impact on Key
Priorities

Officer

Ref

Risk
Rating

Lead

Timescale

Risk

This risk has been acerbated by
Covid-19 which is why it has
been escalated to the
Corporate Risk Register.

 Operational monitoring of
capacity
 Operational maintenance

 Additional investment in
the IT infrastructure as part
of 2021/22 budget setting.

28/2/21

KC

JK

8

3

H

There are no specific Covid-19
related impacts.

 Equality Impact
Assessments conducted to
support decisions wherever
appropriate.
 Equality Champions Group
in place.

 Review and update
Equalities objectives based
on sound data and
intelligence about
communities.

31/1/21

KC

JH

8

4

H

The Covid-19 emergency has
demonstrated our initial and
ongoing response plans have
been effective but also
renewed focus on recovery and
the need to ensure post
emergency lessons are put in
place.

 Emergency Plan in place and
subject to periodic testing.
 See O&S Management
Committee report of 24
June setting out existing
controls/mitigations.

 Overview & Scrutiny review
of Council wide response to
Covid-19 including
recovery programme to
identify any improvements
and/or learning.

Ongoing

SP

JH

8

2

M

Impact of COVID

Priority – 6
17

49

Equalities Duty
The Council has made progress in 2019/20 with all
key decisions taken in the context of Equality Impact
Assessments.
However, further embedding of the Public Sector
Equality Duty is required including review of equality
objectives which is required at least every 4 years –
the objectives were last updated in March 2017.
Priority – 6

18

Planning for Pandemics
The Council’s emergency planning and response
arrangements have been tested in extremis during
the previous 5 months and proved effective in
enabling the Council to respond to the Covid-19
emergency.
The risk is now focused on ensuring lessons are put
in place as appropriate.
Priority – 1 & 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Enterprise Risk Management
Policy
A Framework for Managing Opportunity and Risk

51

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Wokingham Borough Council’s environment is complex and dynamic. The
Council provides services directly, through partnership working and via
contractors to approximately 165168,000 residents of the Borough. The
Council’s gross annual budget is in excess of £300 million. Risks (threats and
opportunities) are inherent in all services and activities provided.

1.2

The importance of this Policy to the Council will increase given that the Council
is becoming less risk adverse (i.e. accepting greater levels of risk) through its
ambitious aspirations for the Borough, service delivery models (companies,
trusts and partners), and greater use of technology. Managers will be less
controlled through rules based management but empowered to take risks and
opportunities as they arise.

1.3

The Council and its partners are colloboratedworking together to
producedeliver the Council’s Corporate Delivery Plan and long term (20202024 Community Vision for the borough: “A great place to live, learn, work and
grow and an even better place to do business”. The Council has identified six
key priorities and underlying principles to enable it to deliver on its Community
Vision for the borough.

1.4

This Enterprise Risk Management Policy (ERM) commits the Council to an
effective Risk Management Guidance in which it will adopt best practices in the
identification, evaluation and control of risks in order to:
 strengthen the ability of the Council in achieving its the Community vision,
priorities, underlying principles and corporate delivery objectives and to
enhance the value of the services it provides;
 adopt best practices in decision making through identification, evaluation
and mitigation of risk;
 integrate and embed proactive risk management into the culture of the
Council;
 heighten the understanding of all the positive risks (opportunities) as well
as negative risks (threats) that the Council faces;
 manage risks cost-effectively and to an acceptable level;
 reduce the risk of injury and damage;
 help secure value for money;
 help enable the Council to be less risk adverse;
 enhance partnership and project working; and
 raise awareness of the need for risk management.

1.5

This policy will allow management to make better informed decisions and
become less risk adverse through a focus on risk and return which in turn will
enhance the value of money provided to our taxpayers (domestic and nondomestic). This policy will be implemented through the development and
application of an ERM Guidance. The ERM Guidance shall be approved by
Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit Committee and Executive on behalf
of the Council.

52

1.6

The importance of this policy has been emphasised in 2020 with the impact of
Covid-19 providing a framework for effectively managing and responding to the
new and emerging impacts on all areas of the Council’s operations and
strategic objectives.

2.0

Scope

2.1

The importance of ERM within the Council transcends every policy, Guidance
and individual transaction, since losses arising from the failure to manage risk
or take opportunities can have systemic repercussions for the Council. As such,
effective ERM is of interest to all our stakeholders including Members,
managers, inspectors, residents, taxpayers and suppliers.

2.2

This policy is also applicable to the council’s interests in its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. The officer responsible for the council’s interest in the subsidiary
should be familiar with this policy and remains accountable for the management
of all such risks.

2.3

Nothing in this policy overrides the Health and Safety risk assessment process
which aligns with Health and Safety Executive guidance and are recorded in
Business World On (BWO)WISER. Significant project and H&S risks should be
identified on risk registers where appropriate.

2.4

The Chief Executive, the Corporate Leadership Team, Extended Corporate
Leadership Team, 2nd and 3rd Tier Managers, Members of the Audit Committee,
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Executive should
be fully familiar with this policy.

2.5

All other staff and elected Members should be aware of it.

53

3.0

ERM Principles

3.1

This policy and the ERM Guidance shall be premised upon a common
understanding and application of the following principles:
PRINCIPLE 1
PRINCIPLE 2
PRINCIPLE 3

PRINCIPLE 4

PRINCIPLE 5
PRINCIPLE 6
PRINCIPLE 7

The informed acceptance of risk is an essential element of good
business guidance.
Risk management is an effective means to enhance and protect the
Council over time.
Common definition and understanding of risks is necessary, in
order to better manage those risks and make more consistent and
informed business decisions.
The management of enterprise risk is an anticipatory, proactive
process, to be embedded in the corporate culture and a key part of
strategic planning, business planning and operational
management.
All risks are to be identified, assessed, measured, managed,
monitored and reported on in accordance with the Enterprise Risk
Management Guidance based on best available information.
All business activities are to adhere to risk management practices
which reflect effective and appropriate levels of internal controls.
2nd Tier Managers should bring to the attention of their respective
executive portfolio holders all significant risks on a timely basis.

4.0

Approach to ERM

4.1

This policy is aligned with the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance
Framework. This policy recognises the actions that Council makes with respect
to the achievement of the Communityits Vision, Corporate Delivery Plan
priorities, underlying principles and business objectives are ultimately tied to
decisions about the nature and level of risk it is prepared to take and the most
effective means to manage and mitigate those risks. ERM covers all the
council’s risks in a unified and consistent manner.

4.2

Risk management at the Council shall be based on an understanding of the
quality and nature of the Council’s assets and its sources of revenue, and the
impact of any associated potential liabilities. This policy, the ERM Guidance,
the related management policies and procedures and management
committees, shall enable management and the Corporate Leadership Team to
meet their ERM responsibilities.

4.3

The Council’s approach to risk management is detailed in its ERM Guidance
which is available on the Council’s internet and intranet.

5.0

Assignments and responsibilities

5.1

Where possible, ERM shall be integrated into existing corporate processes,
thus becoming part of regular day-to-day business and activities. ERM shall be
a collective and collaborative effort by the Council in order to achieve an
effective system for the management of risk.

5.2

The following describes the roles and responsibilities that Members and
Officers will play in introducing, embedding and owning the risk management

54

process and therefore contributing towards the best practice standards for risk
management.
5.3

Chief Executive




5.4

Corporate Leadership Team







5.5

To collectively ensure that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are in place to support the Corporate Governance of the
Council;
To approve the risk appetite for each risk detailed in the Council’s Corporate
Risk Register and monitor the total risk faced by the Council;
To take a leading role in identifying and managing the risks and
opportunities to the Council and to set the example and standards for all
staff;
To identify, analyse and profile high-level strategic cross-cutting and
emergent risks on a regular basis as outlined in the monitoring process;
To ensure that appropriate risk management skills training and awareness
is provided to appropriate elected Members and staff.

Council Risk Facilitator







5.6

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the management of all
significant risk within the Council including the creation, membership and
functions of management committees with risk management roles. This
includes the Corporate Leadership Team and the assignment and
performance review of 2nd tier managers with responsibility for the
management of identified risks;
The Chief Executive also has a critical role in reporting to the Executive on
identified strategic risks and communicating the strategic value of effective
risk management to the Executive. The Chief Executive also has a role to
play in ensuring adequate funding and resources are available for risk
management activities.

To facilitate the communication and implementation of this Policy and ERM
Guidance to all elected Members, managers and staff to fully embed them
in the Council’s business planning and monitoring processes (as per their
respective roles and responsibilities);
To report to Corporate Leadership Team and Audit Committee on the
management of corporate and other significant risks and the overall
effectiveness of risk management;
To provide training and support to relevant members and managers with
regard to risk management;
To co-ordinate all of the Council’s risk management registers.
The post of Assistant Director Governance carries out this facilitation role.

2nd Tier Managers i.e. Directors


Each 2nd Tier Manager is individually responsible for proper monitoring of
the risks identified in their relevant service plans, local action plans and for
embedding risk management into the business and service planning of their
relevant services;

55








5.7

Ensuring that the risk management process is part of all major projects,
partnerships and change management initiatives;
Ensuring that all reports of a strategic nature written for Executive Members
include a risk assessment of the options presented for a decision;
Report regularly to the Corporate Leadership Team on the progress being
undertaken to manage their risks and provide updates on the nature of the
significant risks in their relevant Directorateservice areas;
To determine the risk appetite for each risk detailed in their Service
Directorate Risk Register;
Provide assurance on the adequacy of their relevant Directorate’sservice’s
risk and control procedures;
Bring to the attention of their respective Executive portfolio holders all
significant risks on a timely basis.

3rd Tier Managers i.e. Assistant Directors
In respect of risk management, each 3rd Tier Manager is individually
responsible for:
 the proper identification, assessment and monitoring of the risks associated
in their area of activity;
 bringing to the attention of their 2nd Tier Manager all significant risks on a
timely basis;
 ensuring that all reports of a strategic nature written for Executive Members
include a risk assessment of the options being presented for a decision;
 recommending (to the Council Risk Facilitator) risk management training
for their staff (where relevant);
 implementing approved risk management action plans;
 maintaining an awareness of risks and feed them into the risk identification
process;
 embedding a culture of pro-active risk assessment in their area of activity.

5.8

Audit Committee
To provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the ERM Policy and
Guidance and the associated control environment. In particular:
 to receive the annual review of internal controls and be satisfied that the
Annual Governancessurance Statement properly reflects the risk
environment and any actions required to improve it;
 to receive regular reports covering implementation of the Council’s ERM
Policy and Guidance to determine whether strategic risks are being actively
managed;
 to review, revise as necessary and recommend adoption of the ERM Policy
and Guidance to Executive on a regular basis;
 to have the knowledge and skills requisite to their role with regard to risk
management and to undertake awareness training in respect of ERM as
and when specific training needs are identified.

56

5.9

Executive Members








5.10

Executive members are responsible for governing the delivery of services
to the local community. Executive Members therefore have a responsibility
to be aware and fully understand the strategic risks that the Council faces;
Executive members have the responsibility to consider the risks associated
with the decisions they make and will be informed of these risks in the
reports that are submitted to them. They are required to consider the
cumulative level of risk faced by the authority. They cannot avoid or
delegate this overall responsibility, as it is vital to their stewardship
responsibilities;
To have the knowledge and skills requisite to their role with regard to risk
management and to undertake awareness training in respect of ERM as
and when specific training needs are identified;
To receive regular reports, as presented to the Audit Committee covering
the implementation of the Council’s Risk Management Policy and
Guidance, including updates over the management of all strategic risks.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
To have due regard for this policy, and specifically, when undertaking scrutiny
reviews to consider the Executive’s risk identification and evaluation process.

5.11

Members
To have the knowledge and skills requisite to their role with regard to risk
management and to undertake awareness training in respect of ERM as and
when specific training needs are identified.

5.12

Directorate Leadership Teams











To collate on a quarterly basis the key and consistent themes from service,
project and partnership risk registers and feed these to Corporate
Leadership Team and give feedback to the services;
To collate the highest level and most common operational risks (including
those risks of a more health and safety or liability perspective) from a
service level for communication and if required, consideration by Corporate
Leadership Team;
To monitor the implementation and embedding of risk management within
key Council processes;
To identify risk management training needs, approve training programmes
and presentations;
To facilitate services on an ongoing basis with maintaining their risk
registers and matrix;
To implement the detail of the Enterprise Risk Management Guidance;
To ensure that risks and action plans are updated in the Corporate Risk
Register;
To share/exchange relevant information with colleagues in other service
areas.

57

5.13

Internal Audit
Internal audit will
 provide assurance to the Council through an independent and objective
opinion on the control environment comprising risk management, control
procedures and governance;
 report to Members on the control environment; and
 provide an Internal Audit Plan (on at least an annual basis) that is based on
a reasonable evaluation of risk and to provide an annual assurance
statement to the Council based on work undertaken in the previous year.

5.14

Staff
Staff have a responsibility to identify risks surrounding their every day work
processes and working environment. They are also responsible for:




participating in ongoing risk management within service areas;
actively managing risks and risk actions (where appropriate); and
demonstrating an awareness of risk and risk management relevant to their
role and to take action accordingly.

6.0

Review and Continual Improvement

6.1

The Audit Committee shall review and recommend adoption of the ERM Policy
to the Council on a regular basis or when significant changes require a revision
of it.

6.2

The Council should continue to improve the effectiveness of its risk
management arrangements through:
 learning from risk events and the application of controls;
 review risk occurrences to identify emerging trends; and
 learn from other organisations about their risk occurrences in order to
consider whether there is a likelihood of the Council experiencing a similar
occurrence.

Susan Parsonage
Chief Executive

Councillor Bill Soane
Chairman Audit Committee

58

Version Control
Date:

30 June 2020

Version:

15.0

Authors:

Andrew Moulton

VERSION

DATE

DESCRIPTION

1.0

15 February 2009

Working Draft

2.0

3 March 2009

Working Draft

3.0

9 March 2009

Initial Release

4.0

11 March 2009

Draft for Consultation

5.0

25 March 2009

Draft for SLB Approval

6.0

30 April 2009

Draft for Audit Committee Adoption

7.0

13 May 2009

Draft for Approved Audit Committee

8.0

14 May 2009

Final Adopted Audit Committee 13/5/09

9.1

18 June 2010

Risk Management Group Refresh 201011

9.2

9 July 2010

Revised Draft for SLB Adoption

9.3

9 September 2010

Revised Draft for Audit Committee
Adoption

9.4

7 October 2010

Final Adopted Audit Committee 22/09/10

10.0

31 October 2012

Revised Draft for CLT Adoption

11.0

28 November 2012

Final Adopted by Audit Committee

12.0

4 February 2014

Final Adopted by Audit Committee

12.1

21 November 2014

Final Adopted by Audit Committee

13.0

27 November 2015

Final Adopted by Audit Committee

14

6 September 2018

Final Adopted by Audit Committee
(18/9/2018)

15

11 June 2020

Draft for adoption by Audit Committee
(29/7/2020)

59

This page is intentionally left blank

Enterprise Risk Management
Guidance
A Framework for Managing Opportunity and Risk
Date:

1 July 2020

Version:

17.0

Authors:

Andrew Moulton

VERSION

DATE

DESCRIPTION

1.0

15 February 2009

Working Draft

2.0

3 March 2009

Working Draft

3.0

9 March 2009

Initial Release

4.0

11 March 2009

Draft for Consultation

5.0

25 March 2009

Draft for SLB Approval

6.0

30 April 2009

Draft for Audit Committee Adoption

7.0

13 May 2009

Draft for approval by Audit Committee

8.0

14 May 2009

Final approved by Audit Committee

9.0

18 June 2010

Refresh by Corporate Governance Group

10.0

3 September 2010

Refresh for approval by Audit Committee

11.0

22 September 2010

12.0

14 November 2012

Final approved by Audit Committee
Final approved by Audit Committee

13.0

22 January 2014

Final approved by Audit Committee

14.0

21 November 2014

Final approved by Audit Committee

15.0

26 November 2015

Final approved by Audit Committee

16.0

6 September 2018

Final approved by Audit Committee

17.0

1 July 2020

Draft for approval by Committee on
29/7/2020

61 Guidance v17.0
Risk Management

Contents
Chapters

Page Numbers

1

Introduction

1

2

Purpose of the Guidance

1

3

Approval, Communication, Implementation and Review

1–2

4

What is Enterprise Risk Management?

2–3

5

Benefits of Risk Management

3

6

Critical Success Factors

4

7

Relationship between Risk Management and Internal Controls

4

8

Risk Management, Business Continuity and Emergency
Planning

9

Risk Management in Projects and Partnerships

5

10

Strategic Approach to Risk Management

6

11

Implementation Guidance Risk Management

4–5

6 – 12

Appendix 1

Overview of Risk Management Framework

13

Appendix 2

Examples of Risk Categories

14

Appendix 3

Impact Scores

15

Appendix 4

Likelihood Scores

16

62
Risk Management Guidance
v17.0

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Risk Management is about managing opportunities and threats to objectives and
in doing so helps create an environment of “no surprises”. It is a crucial element
of good management and a key part of corporate governance. It should be viewed
as a mainstream activity and something that is an integral part of the management
of the organisation; an everyday activity.

1.2

Risk Management is already inherent in much of what the Council does. Good
practices like good safety systems, procurement and contract regulations,
financial regulations and internal control are not labelled Risk Management but
these and many other processes and procedures are used to manage risk.

2.0

Purpose of the Guidance

2.1

The purpose of this Enterprise Risk Management Guidance is to establish a
framework for the systematic management of risk, which will ensure that the
objectives of the Council’s Risk Management policy are realised.
The Purpose of this Guidance
Define what Risk Management is about and what drives Risk Management
within the Council
Set out the benefits of Risk Management and the strategic approach to
Risk Management
Outline how the Risk Management will be implemented
Formalise the Risk Management process across the Council

2.2

An overview of this framework is detailed in Appendix 1.

3.0

Approval, Communication, Implementation and Review

3.1

The Enterprise Risk Management Guidance has been adopted by the Corporate
Leadership Team and has been approved by the Council via the Audit Committee.
It has been issued to:






All Members of the Council
Corporate Leadership Team
All Assistant DirectorsHeads of Service
Key Stakeholders
Other interested parties such as External Audit

3.2

It has been placed on the Council’s intranet site so that all members of staff can
have access and easily refer to it. It is included on all new staff’s corporate
induction. Therefore all individual members of staff are aware of both their roles
and responsibilities for Risk Management within the Council and their service
(depending on their own role within the Council). Risk Management is included
within the Council’s performance management framework so that staff and
managers are aware of how Risk Management contributes to the achievement of
the Council’s and Service objectives.

3.3

All elected Members have been issued with a copy of the Guidance. It is part of
all newly elected Members’ induction to the Council it has been included as a

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
631 of 16
Page

training area within the Members Training and Development Programme. The
Guidance will be reviewed annually -regularly by the Audit Committee.

4.0

What is Enterprise Risk Management?

4.1

Risk is an unexpected event or action that can adversely affect the Council’s
ability to achieve its objectives and successfully execute its strategies. It can be
a positive (an opportunity) or negative (a threat). Risk Management is the process
by which risks are identified, evaluated and controlled.

4.2

It has critical links to the following areas:
 Corporate governance;
 Community focus;
 Structure and processes;
 Standards of conduct;
 Service delivery arrangements; and
 Effective use of resources.

4.3

Enterprise Risk Management can be defined as:

“The management of integrated or holistic risk and opportunity in
a manner consistent with the virtues of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness. In essence it is about making the most of
opportunities (making the right decisions) and about achieving
objectives once those decisions are made. The latter is achieved
through controlling, transferring and living with risks”.
4.4

Risk Management therefore is essentially about identifying the opportunities, risks
and weaknesses that exist within the Council. A holistic approach is vital to
ensuring that all elements of the Council are challenged including decision making
processes, working with partners, consultation processes, existing policies and
procedures and also the effective use of assets – both staff and physical assets.
This identification process is integral to all our strategic, service and work
planning.

4.5

Once the risks have been identified the next stage is to prioritise them to identify
the key risks to the organisation moving forward. Once prioritised it is essential
that steps are taken to then effectively manage these key risks. The result is that
significant risks that exist within the Council can be mitigated to provide the
Council with a greater chance of being able to achieve its objectives. Included
within this should also be a consideration of the positive or ‘opportunity’ risk
aspect.

4.6

Risk Management will improve the business planning and performance
management processes, strengthen the ability of the Council to achieve its
objectives and enhance the value of the services provided.

4.7

In order to strive to meet the Communityour Vision, and Corporate Delivery Plan
objectivesstrategic principles and priorities, the Council has recognised the need
to further embed Risk Management arrangements. The desired outcome is that
risks associated with these objectives can be managed and the potential impact
limited, providing greater assurance that the Vision will be achieved.

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
Page 2 of64
16

5.0

Benefits of Risk Management

5.1

Successful implementation of Risk Management will produce many benefits for
the Council if it becomes a living tool. These include:

More effective &
efficient change &
project
management

Buy-in by officers
and Members

Proactively
managing the
councils operations

Better Governance

Council becomes
less risk averse &
opportunities taken

Benefits of Risk
Management

More effective
integration of
recovery &
contingency plans
Structured
approach to future
decisions

Documented
record of all key
risks & mitigating
action

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
653 of 16
Page

Achievement of
objectives

Cross cutting risks
are identified &
owned

6.0

Critical Success Factors

6.1

To develop a framework which:

Reference

Critical Success Factors

1

Enables the
opportunities.

Council’s

performance

and

take

advantage

of

2

Focus on the major risks to our strategies and objectives.

3

Provide a clear picture of the major risks the Council faces, their nature,
potential impact and their likelihood.

4

Establish a shared and unambiguous understanding of what risks will
be tolerated.

5

Develop an awareness of our ability to control the risks we have
identified.

6

Is embedded in our planning and decision-making processes.

7

Actively involve all those responsible for planning and delivering
services.

8

Clarify and establish roles, responsibilities and processes.

9

Enable and empower managers to manage those risks in their area of
responsibility.

10

Capture information about key risks from across the Council.

11

Include regular risk monitoring and review of the effectiveness of
internal control.

12

Is non-bureaucratic, cost efficient and sustainable.

7.0

Relationship between Risk Management and Internal
Controls

7.1

The Council recognises that Risk Management is an integral part of its internal
control environment. The constitution states that internal controls are required to
manage and monitor progress towards strategic objectives.

7.2

The system of internal control also provides measurable achievement of:





7.3

Efficient and effective operations;
Reliable financial information and reporting;
Compliance with laws and regulations; and
Risk Management.

Internal Audit, when evaluating risks during the course of its Internal Audit work,
will categorise risks as per this Guidance and will analyse their likelihood and
impact in accordance with the qualitative measures / tables contained in this
Guidance, thus further integrating and embedding our Risk Management
Guidance into the Council’s internal control environment.

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
Page 4 of66
16

8.0

Risk Management, Business Continuity and Emergency
Planning

8.1

There is a link between these areas. However it is vital for the success of Risk
Management that the roles of each, and the links, are clearly understood. The
Council recognises that there is a link between Risk Management, Business
Continuity Management and Emergency Planning. This is demonstrated by the
lead in all three issues being taken by the Corporate Leadership Team.
Business continuity management

8.2

Business continuity management is about trying to identify and put in place
measures to protect the Council’s priority functions against catastrophic risks that
can stop it in its tracks. There are some areas of overlap e.g. where the I.T.
infrastructure is not robust then this will feature as part of the relevant Risk
Register and also be factored into the business continuity plans.
Emergency planning

8.3

Emergency planning is about managing the response to those incidents that can
impact on the community (in some cases they could also be a business continuity
issue) e.g. a plane crash is an emergency, it becomes a continuity event if it
crashes on the office!

9.0

Risk Management in Projects, Partnerships and Health and
Safety

9.1

It is recognised that Risk Management needs to be a key part of the ongoing
management of projects, Health and Safety and partnerships.
Project / Programme management

9.2

There is a consistent and robust approach to Risk Management used in projects,
both at Project Initiation Document stage and throughout the duration of the
project.
Partnerships

9.3

The Council has a Partnership Protocol, of which Risk Management is a key
aspect. The Partnership Protocol requires that this approach to risk management
is adhered to. The Partnership Protocol is available on the intranet.
Health and Safety

9.4

The Council has a Health and Safety Policy, of which management of risk is a
critical aspect. Health and safety risks are managed in accordance with Health
and Safety Executive guidance and are recorded in Business World On
(BWO)WISER. The Health and Safety Policy is available on the intranet.

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
675 of 16
Page

10.0 Strategic Approach to Risk Management
10.1

In order to formalise and structure Risk Management the Council has recognised
that there are obvious and clear links between Risk Management and: strategic
and financial planning; policy making and review; and performance management.

10.2

The links are as follows:


Measurement of performance against the key objectives, performance
indicators and key tasks.



Management of Key Strategic Risks which could affect the delivery of the
above Council objectives/targets is undertaken by the Corporate Leadership
Team.

11.0 Implementation Guidance Risk Management
The risk management process
Implementing this Guidance involves a 5-stage process to identify, analyse, prioritise,
manage and monitor risks as shown in figure 1. This section will outline the approach.
Figure 1: The Risk Management Cycle

The Risk Management cycle
RISK IDENTIFICATION

MONITORING & REPORTING

RISK ANALYSIS

CONTROL / MANAGE
PRIORITISATION

Stage 1 – Risk Identification
The first step is to identify the ‘key’ risks that could have an adverse effect on or prevent
key business objectives from being met. It is important that those involved with the
process clearly understand the service or Council’s key business objectives i.e. ‘what it
intends to achieve’ in order to be able to identify ‘the risks to achievement’. It is important
to consider the relevant Service Plans in a broader context, i.e. not focusing solely on
specific detailed targets but considering the wider direction and aims of the service and
what it is trying to achieve.

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
Page 6 of68
16

When identifying risks it is important to remember that as well as the ‘direct threats’, risk
management is about ‘making the most of opportunities’ e.g. making bids for funding,
successfully delivering major projects and initiatives, pursuing beacon status or other
awards, taking a national or regional lead on policy development etc.
Using Appendix 2 as a prompt, various techniques can then be used to begin to identify
‘key’ or ‘significant’ business risks including: 





A ‘idea shower’ session;
Own (risk) experience;
‘Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats’ analysis or similar;
Experiences of others - can we learn from others’ mistakes?
Exchange of information/best practice with other Councils, organisations or partners.

It is also recommended that a review of published information such as other Service
Plans, strategies, financial accounts, press releases, and inspectorate and audit reports
be used to inform this stage, as they are a useful source of information.
The process for the identification of risk should be undertaken for projects (at the
beginning of each project stage), partnerships and for all major revenue and capital
contracts. Details of who contributes to these stages are explained further in the ‘Roles,
Assignments and Responsibilities’ section of the Enterprise Risk Management Policy.
Risks, both opportunity and threats, identified should be recorded in a Risk Register as
per figure 2. This standard template for recording risks has been updated is on the risk
management area of grapevine.

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
697 of 16
Page

Figure 2: Risk Register Summary (example)

6.

7.

8.
9.

10.

Appetite

 Organisational
dissonance
 disharmony
across
organisation
 lack of clarity
 different
objectives /
targets
 delivery
affected
 fall behind
neighbours
 non-compliance
with legislation

Vision and Priority
Joint Board
Joint Working Group
Council Plan
Programme and
project management
Performance
1.
management
framework
Service planning
framework being
implemented
ECLT & CLT
Monthly highlight
report on Joint Board
progress
Quarterly Council
Plan Performance
Monitoring

Current Score

There needs to be
clarity and
agreement on how
the vision and
priorities will be
interpreted and
delivered. The vision
and priorities need
to be articulated
through the
corporate and
service plans. The
service and resource
planning is being
redesigned so it will
align to the vision
and priorities of the
council enabling us
to deliver on our
priorities.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Likelihood

Risk that the council does not have buy-in
to successfully implement the corporate
vision and priorities

Further Actions to
Mitigate Risk

Impact

1

Existing controls

Consequence/
Impact

Cause

Risk Rating

Member

Ref

Lead

Officer

Risk

1. Following Council
approval of the
Council Plan this
will inform
Service Plans for
each area.

AC

KB

4

2

L

L

Stage 2 – Risk Analysis
The information that is gathered needs to be analysed into risk scenarios to provide clear,
shared understanding and to ensure the potential root cause of the risk is clarified. Risk
scenarios also illustrate the possible consequences of the risk if it occurs so that its full
impact can be assessed.
There are 2 parts to a risk scenario:


The cause describes the situation and/or event (that may be perceived) that
exposes the organisation to a risk; and
The consequences are the events that follow in the wake of the risk.

Risk Scenario
Figure 3: Example of the structure of a risk scenario
Cause

Statement of fact or perception about the
Council, service or project that exposes it
to an event. Include the event that could

Consequence

The positive or negative impact:


How big?

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
Page 8 of70
16

occur in a positive or negative impact on
the objectives being achieved
LIKELIHOOD





How bad?
How much?
Who is affected?

IMPACT

Each risk scenario is logged on the respective Risk Register. These registers could be
potentially strategic, against a specific Service Plan, or relating to a project or partnership.
The purpose of the Risk Action Log (i.e. Further Actions to Mitigate Risk) is to store details
of the risk, its likelihood and impact and mitigation activity for each risk.
For further information on the project Risk Register template and guidelines, please refer
to the project management methodology.
Stage 3 – Prioritisation
Following identification and analysis the risks will need to be evaluated, different
scenarios should be explored. Their ranking is decided according to the potential
likelihood of the risk occurring and its impact if it did occur. A matrix is used to plot the
risks (Figure 4) and once completed this risk profile clearly illustrates the priority of each
risk.
When assessing the potential likelihood and impact the risks must be compared with the
appropriate objectives e.g. corporate objectives for the strategic risk profile, and service
objectives for the Service Plan risk profile. The challenge for each risk is how much
impact it could have on the ability to achieve the objective and outcomes. This allows the
risks to be set in perspective against each other.
At the beginning of this stage, a timeframe needs to be agreed, and the likelihood and
impact should be considered within the relevant timeframe. Often a 3-year time horizon
is used at strategic level, with perhaps a 1-year timeframe used at service level, to link
with service delivery planning. The likelihood and impact should also be considered with
existing controls in place, not taking future ones into account at that time.

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
719 of 16
Page

Figure 4: Example of the Council risk matrix and filters

The matrix is also constructed around 4 filters - these being red (very high), orange (high),
amber (medium) and green (low). The red and orange filtered risks are of greatest priority.
Amber risks represent moderate priority risks. Green risks are low priority but should be
monitored.
If there are numerous red, orange and amber risks to be managed it is prudent to cluster
similar risks together. This is to aid the action planning process as a number of risks can
be managed by the same or similar activity. Each cluster should be given a title e.g.
recruitment and retention, staff empowerment etc. This technique of clustering should
only be used when there are many risks to be managed e.g. in excess of 15 red and
amber risks and where risks share common causes and consequences and therefore
could be managed in a similar way.
Stage 4 – Control / Manage
This is the process of turning ‘knowing’ into ‘doing’. It is assessing whether to control,
accept, transfer or terminate the risk on an agreed ‘risk appetite’. Risks may be able to
be: -

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
7216
Page 10 of

Controlled - It may be possible to mitigate the risk by ‘managing down’ the likelihood,
the impact or both. The control measures should, however, be commensurate with the
potential frequency, impact and financial consequences of the risk event.
Accepted - Certain risks may have to be accepted as they form part of, or are inherent
in, the activity. The important point is that these risks have been identified and are clearly
understood.
Transferred - to another body or organisation i.e. insurance, contractual arrangements,
outsourcing, partnerships etc.
Terminated - By ending all or part of a particular service or project.
It is important to recognise that, in many cases, existing controls will already be in place.
It is therefore necessary to look at these controls before considering further action. It may
be that these controls are not effective or are ‘out of date’.
The potential for controlling the risks identified will be addressed through Service Plans.
Most risks are capable of being managed – either by managing down the likelihood or
impact or both. Relatively few risks have to be transferred or terminated. These service
plans will also identify the resources required to deliver the improvements, timescale and
monitoring arrangements.
Existing controls, their adequacy, new mitigation measures and associated action
planning information is all recorded on the Risk Register, including ownership of the risk
and allocation of responsibility for each mitigating action. Full details of the risk mitigation
measures that are to be delivered are likely to be recorded in the respective business
plans and cross reference should be made to this in the Risk Registers.
A further judgement which should be made is the ‘target risk score’ and ‘target
evaluation’, which is where the risk could be managed to, should the identified controls
be successfully implemented.
Consideration should also be given here as to the ‘Cost-Benefit’ of each control weighed
against the potential cost / impact of the risk occurring. N.B. ‘cost / impact’

High cost/low impact of mitigating risk

High cost/big impact of mitigating risk

Low cost/low impact of mitigating risk

Low cost/big impact of mitigating risk

Stage 5 – Monitoring & Reporting
The Corporate Leadership Team is responsible for ensuring that the key risks on the
Corporate Risk Register are managed and the progress with the risk mitigation measures
should be monitored at appropriate intervals. 2nd and 3rd Tier Managers are responsible
for ensuring that the key risks in the Risk Registers linked to respective services are
managed. It is recommended that the ‘red risks’ feature as a standing item on ‘3rd Tier
Managers’ meeting agendas.
On a quarterly basis, the Corporate and service Risk Registers should be reviewed and
where necessary risks re-prioritised. Risks should be amended so they reflect the current

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
7311 of 16
Page

situation, obsolete risks should be deleted and new risks identified. This ensures that the
Risk Registers and resulting risk mitigation measures are appropriate for the current
service and corporate objectives. The quarterly review of the Corporate Risk Register
must be undertaken by Corporate Leadership Team and the Directorateservice Registers
should be reviewed / updated by the respective 2nd and 3rd Tier Managers with their
management teams.
During the year new risks are likely to arise that have not previously been considered on
the existing Risk Registers. Also the environment in which the risks exist will change
making some risks more critical or others less important. Every quarter the respective
Risk Registers and matrices at each level should be updated to reflect these changes. If
such risks require Corporate Leadership Team ownership and management then they
should be incorporated into the Corporate Risk Register. If the management of such risks
is more appropriate at a service level then it should be included in the respective service
Risk Register. This will need to be undertaken on a quarterly basis by Corporate
Leadership Team and 2nd and 3rd Tier Managers.
It is recognised that some Directorateservice risks have the potential to impact on the
corporate objectives and these will often be the red risks on the matrix. Every quartersix
months, the Directorate Risk Registers will be fed into the Corporate Leadership Team
where a decision will be taken on whether to prioritise any of these risks on the strategic
risk matrix and include them on the Corporate Risk Register (owned by Corporate
Leadership Team). At the relevant Corporate Leadership Team session to review risk
management, each “2nd Tier Manager will also feedback the headline risks from their
individual areas.

12.0 Risk Appetite
Risk appetite is the phrase used to describe how much risk the council is prepared to
take in pursuit of its objectives. Due to its diverse range of services the council does not
have a single risk tolerance and appetite for risk will vary between different services and
activities, or even at different times.
Considering and setting risk appetite will enable the council to optimise its risk taking and
accepting calculated risks by enabling risk-reward decision making. Equally, it reduces
the likelihood of unpleasant surprises. Risk appetite is determined on each of the risks
and is essentially the target we need to manage the risk against i.e. seeking to align the
controls with the risk appetite. Organisational culture will be aligned to the risk appetite.

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
7416
Page 12 of

Overview of Risk Management Framework
Aims and
Objectives

Risk
Registers

Approval

Review

Assurance

Scrutiny

CEO
Susan Parsonage
Corporate
Delivery Plan

Corporate
Risks

Service Plan

Service &
Team Risks

Projects &
Programmes

RM
Champions/
Departmental
Leadership
Teams
Risk
Management
Facilitator

Project Risks
Health &
Safety
Database

Partnerships
& Community
Strategy

Partnership &
Community
Risks

75

Health &
Safety

Internal
Audit

Audit
Committee

Corporate Leadership Team

Scrutiny
Panels

Executive

2 nd Tier Managers

All Staff

All Members

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
Page 13 of 16

A pp end x
i 1

3rd Tier Managers

Appendix 2 – Example of Risk Categories
Risk

Definition

Examples

Political

Associated with the failure to deliver either
local or central government policy or meet the
local administration’s manifest commitment

New political
arrangements, Political
personalities, Political
make-up

Economic

Affecting the ability of the Council to meet its
financial commitments. These include internal
budgetary pressures, the failure to purchase
adequate insurance cover, external macro
level economic changes or consequences
proposed investment decisions

Cost of living, changes in
interest rates, inflation,
poverty indicators

Social

Relating to the effects of changes in
demographic, residential or socio-economic
trends on the Council’s ability to meet its
objectives

Staff levels from
available workforce,
ageing population, health
statistics

Technological

Associated with the capacity of the Council to
deal with the pace/scale of technological
change, or its ability to use technology to
address changing demands. They may also
include the consequences of internal
technological failures on the Council’s ability
to deliver its objectives

IT infrastructure,
Staff/client needs,
security standards,
Business Continuity.

Legislative

Associated with current or potential changes
in national or European law

Human rights, appliance
or non-appliance of
TUPE regulations

Environmental

Relating to the environmental consequences
of progressing the Council’s strategic
objectives

Land use, recycling,
pollution

Competitive

Affecting the competitiveness of the service
(in terms of cost or quality) and/or its ability to
deliver best value

Fail to win quality
accreditation, position in
league tables

Customer/
Citizen

Associated with failure to meet the current
and changing needs and expectations of
customers and citizens

Managing expectations,
extent of consultation

Managerial/
Professional

Associated with the particular nature of each
profession, internal protocols and managerial
abilities

Staff restructure, key
personalities, internal
capacity

Financial

Associated with financial planning and control

Budget overspends, level
of Council tax & reserves

Legal

Related to possible breaches of legislation

Client brings legal
challenge

Partnership/
Contractual

Associated with failure of contractors and
partnership arrangements to deliver services
or products to the agreed cost and
specification

Contractor fails to
deliver, partnership
agencies do not have
common goals

Physical

Related to fire, security, accident prevention
and health and safety

Offices in poor state of
repair, use of equipment

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
Page 76
14 of 16

Impact
Level

8

Critical

6

Major

77
4

2

Marginal

Negligible

Description
Critical impact on the
achievement of objectives
and overall performance.
Hugh impact on costs and /
or reputation. Very difficult
and possibly long term to
recover.

Major impact on costs and
objectives. Serious impact
on output and / or quality
and reputation. Medium to
long term effect and
expensive to recover.

Significant waste of time
and resources. Impact on
operational efficient, output
and quality. Medium term
effect which may be
expensive to recover.

Minimal loss, delay,
inconvenience or
interruption. Short to
medium term affect.































Unable to function without aid of Government or other external Agency
Inability to fulfil obligations
Medium - long term damage to service capability
Severe financial loss – supplementary estimate needed which will have a critical impact on
the council’s financial plan and resources are unlikely to be available.
Death
Adverse national publicity – highly damaging, severe loss of public confidence.
Litigation certain and difficult to defend
Breaches of law punishable by imprisonment
Significant impact on service objectives
Short – medium term impairment to service capability
Major financial loss - supplementary estimate needed which will have a major impact on the
council’s financial plan
Extensive injuries, major permanent harm, long term sick
Major adverse local publicity, major loss of confidence
Litigation likely and may be difficult to defend
Breaches of law punishable by fines or possible imprisonment
Service objectives partially achievable
Short term disruption to service capability
Significant financial loss - supplementary estimate needed which will have an impact on the
council’s financial
Medical treatment require, semi- permanent harm up to 1 year
Some adverse publicity, need careful public relations
High potential for complaint, litigation possible.
Breaches of law punishable by fines only
Minor impact on service objectives
No significant disruption to service capability
Moderate financial loss – can be accommodated
First aid treatment, non-permanent harm up to I month
Some public embarrassment, no damage to reputation
May result in complaints / litigation
Breaches of regulations / standards

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
Page 15 of 16

Appendix 3 – Impact Scores

Score

Score

Level

6

Very High

5

High

4

Description
>95%

Annually or
more
frequently

>1 in 10
times

Almost Certain.
The risk will
materialise in
most
circumstances.

80 –
94%

3 years +

>1 in 10 50 times

An event that has a 50% chance of occurring in the next year or has
happened in the past two years.

Significant

The risk will
probably
materialise at
least once.

50 –
79%

7 years +

>1 in 10 –
100 times

An event that has a 50% chance of occurring in the next 2 years or has
happened in the past 5 years.

3

Moderate

Possible the
risk might
materialise at
some time.

49 –
20%

20 years +

>1 in 100
– 1,000
times

An event that has a 50% chance of occurring in the next 5 or has happened
in the past 7 years.

2

Low

The risk will
materialise only
in exceptional
circumstances.

5–
19%

30 years +

>1 in
1,000 –
10,000
times

1

Almost
Impossible

The risk may
never happen.

< 5%

50 years +

>1 in
10,000 +

78

Certain.

An event that is has a 50% chance of occurring in the next 6 months or has
happened in the last year. This event has occurred at other local authorities

An event that has a 50% chance of occurring in the next 10 year or has
happened in the past 15 years.

An event that has a less than 5% chance of occurring in the next 10 years
and has not happened in the last 25 years.

Risk Management Guidance v17.0
Page 16 of 16

Appendix 4 – Likelihood Scores

Likelihood

Agenda Item 9.
TITLE

Annual Internal Audit & Investigations Report 2019-20

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Audit Committee on 29 July 2020

WARD

None Specific

DIRECTOR

Deputy Chief Executive & Director of Resources and
Assets - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Public assurance with regards to the Council’s risk, control and governance environment.
RECOMMENDATION
The Audit Committee is asked to receive and note this report as a source of independent
assurance regarding the risk, control and governance environment across the Council,
noting the outcomes from 2019-20 Internal Audit and Investigations work and the
resultant ‘Substantially Complete and Generally Effective’ opinion to the Annual
Governance Statement.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
This annual report details:
The overall outcomes and key themes from Internal Audit and Investigations work
undertaken during 2019-20;

The translation of these outcomes to the resultant annual opinion on the Council’s
systems of governance, risk management and internal control that is incorporated
into the Annual Governance Statement;

The related performance of the Internal Audit and Investigations service in
delivering this work.

79

Background
1.1

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require that an annual report on
the work of Internal Audit should be prepared and submitted to those charged
with governance to support the Council’s Annual Governance Statement
(AGS), as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015.
This report should include the following:








1.2

1.3

An annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s governance, risk and control framework;
A summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived;
Any issue the Head of Internal Audit judges particularly relevant to the
preparation of the Annual Governance Statement;
A comparison of the work undertaken with the work that was planned and
a summary of the performance of the internal audit function against its
performance measures and criteria;
A statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the result of the Internal
Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme;
Disclosure of any qualifications to the opinion, together with the reasons
for the qualification; and
Disclosure of any impairments (in fact or appearance) or restriction in
scope.

Accordingly, the Internal Audit Annual Report is prepared and submitted to both
the Audit Committee. Additionally, in year update reports have periodically been
provided to the Committee detailing key issues arising throughout the year.

The Annual Report includes the following components:








Purpose and Background;
Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion and key headlines;
Areas of risk exposure;
Internal Audit service performance and contribution;
Counter Fraud;
Conformance with PSIAS; and
Context and compliance

1.4

The issues detailed in the attached report have been considered in the
formulation of the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2019-20 which can
be found elsewhere on this agenda.

1.5

The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference include ensuring that Internal Audit
is effective. Section 4 of the Annual Report sets out performance information to
enable the Committee to continually assess and consider the effectiveness of
Internal Audit.

80

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result of
the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent reductions
to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough Council will be
required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the next three years and
all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

£0

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

£0

Yes

Revenue

£0

Yes

Revenue

Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
An effective internal audit and investigations function mitigates financial and other risks
associated with the Council achieving its objectives.
Cross-Council Implications
Internal Audit works across all areas of the Council – effective internal audit is one of
the ways assurance is provided that the Council’s key priorities and objectives will be
achieved.
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
Not applicable
List of Background Papers
Annual Internal Audit & Investigations Report 2019-20
Contact Andrew Moulton
Telephone No Tel: 07747 777298

Service Governance
Email
andrew.moulton@wokingham.gov.uk

81

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT & INVESTIGATIONS REPORT
2019/20

83

CONTENTS

Section
No

Title

Page

1

Purpose of the Annual Report

1

2

Head of Internal Audit Opinion and Key Headlines

1

3

Areas of Risk Exposure

2

4

Internal Audit Service Performance and Contribution

5

5

Counter Fraud

6

6

Conformance with Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards

7

7

Context and Compliance

8

Appendix 1 – 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan Status
Appendix 2 – Internal Audit assurance levels

84

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

This Annual Report provides a summary of the work completed by the Shared
Internal Audit and Investigation Service (SIAIS) during 2019/20. Its purpose
is:o

o
o
o

To provide the annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s governance; risk management and control
framework during 2019/20 to support the preparation of the Annual
Governance Statement;
To provide a summary of the work completed from which the opinion is
derived;
To draw attention to areas of significant risk exposure which need
corrective action to improve the control framework; and
To consider the performance and contribution of the Internal Audit service.

2.

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION AND KEY HEADLINES

2.1

This report provides a summary of the work undertaken by Internal Audit in
the financial year 2019-20 and the results of that work. From the work
undertaken during the year, our overall opinion on the adequacy of the
Council’s arrangements for Corporate Governance, Risk Management and
Internal Control is that:Audit Opinion 2019/20
“Substantially Complete and Generally Effective but with some
improvements required”. Based on audits completed during the year,
most key controls are in place and are operating effectively with the
majority of residual risks being reduced to an acceptable level and
reported concerns being aimed by management to be reduced to a
predominately moderate impact level. A small number of exceptions
were identified and these have been presented to previous meetings of
the Audit Committee and the current position in respect of these specific
reviews is summarised in the body of this report. This audit opinion
supports other assurance mechanisms such as External Audit, external
professional body inspections and the Annual Governance Statement
(AGS).

2.2

Our opinion is based on evidenced assessment of the control framework in a
number of areas in accordance with our annual plan. It should be noted that in
devising the annual plan, a risk-based approach is taken and such areas of
highest risk are targeted for review of the mitigation and controls in place in
these higher risk areas. Full details of the work we have completed that has
informed this opinion can be seen in Appendix 1 together with the assurance
levels we have been able to provide for each review. For each audit review
completed, the assurance level is determined based on the level of control
found as set out in Appendix 2.

85

3.

AREAS OF RISK EXPOSURE

3.1

During the 2019/20 year, it is encouraging to note that there was only one new
Category 3 audit. This was the audit of Equalities, a summary of which is
provided below.
2019/20 Public Sector Equality Duty
The audit noted that the Council had made progress in this area with the
more consistent application of Equalities Impact Assessment to inform
decision-making and training for staff. However, there remains further work
to undertake including updating the Equality Policy.

3.2

A summary of progress made against those audits that have been reported in
2018/19 to the Audit Committee as Category 3 during the 2019/20 financial
year is provided below.

Debtors
Debtors/Accounts Receivable has received a Category 3 audit opinion for
the past two financial years. Regular updates have been reported to this
Committee, the most recent being to the Audit Committee in the Quarter 3
Progress Report (5 February 2020).
The 2019/20 audit originally resulted in a Category 3 audit opinion at draft
report stage. However, management has subsequently provided evidence
of the revised process for the monitoring, targeting and management of
sundry debt, along with evidence that monthly debt totals are reducing. In
addition, a new Debt Management Team was established to create a new
framework for debt collection going forward. None of the 9 concerns
warranted a high risk rating at that point and all were categorised as
medium risk and the report was reclassified to a Category 2 opinion.

Housing Rents
An update on the progress of the 2019/20 Housing Rents audit was carried
out and reported as part of the Quarter 3 Progress Report. Considerable
improvements have been identified this year, specifically in relation to: Housing Revenue Account property rent collection - collection for the
circa 2,600 Housing Revenue Account properties was 101.09% due to
payments made in advance (this exceeded the 98.5% year-end target),
with collection for all tenancy types at 100.94%.
 Collection of arrears – continued to improve, with a proactive approach
to arrears management. The details were reported to tenant
representatives at the end of 2019/20.

86



Write-off of tenant arrears – the policy is under review for update and
clarification to comply with updated Financial Regulations

2018/19 Public Health
Follow-up work to the final Public Health audit report 2018/19 (issued April
2019) was carried out in December 2019 and an update was provided in
the Quarter 3 Progress report to the Audit Committee which provided
assurance that the service had made many positive steps to address the
recommendations made in April 2019.
Further audit assurance work was in progress in Quarter 4 of 2019/20
however this was curtailed due to Covid-19 pandemic. It is planned to reschedule this follow-up work at an appropriate time.

2018/19 Shared Property Services
This audit was reported to this Committee on 7 November 2018 as
remaining as a Category 3 audit, although follow up work in 2018/19 had
identified positive progress.
The Shared Building Service with Royal Borough Windsor & Maidenhead
(RBWM) ended on 31st March 2020 which included the reactive
maintenance (incl. helpdesk) & statutory servicing.
For WBC, the reactive maintenance works have been tendered and the
three contractors are fully operational on the TF Cloud system including
inspection documentation, costs and confirming completed works. Linked
spreadsheets then lead to monthly payments.
The statutory servicing contracts have been extended, with tendering to
come and combining of packages for economies of scale. The current
contracts are being added to the service’s database including heating,
ventilation & air-conditioning assets, fire and intruder alarm contracts. The
remaining contracts are to be added within the next few months. The
relevant compliance documentation for these has been added, with the
Asbestos, Fire Risk Assessments and Legionella Risk Assessments to be
added later in the year.
Funding for Condition Surveys for schools has been approved and it is
planned to implement this as soon as is practical.
With the split of the Shared Service, a separate review of the new WBC
arrangements will be undertaken later in 2020/21.

3.3.

There were 3 audits where the audit opinion was improved between draft
report stage and final report stage (from a 2nd audit opinion at draft report
stage to the highest audit opinion at final report stage – 2 schools, Grazeley
Primary School and Lambs Lane Primary School and 2018/19 Capital
Accounting.

87

3.4

Audit reports are presented using lean terminology, using the concern, finding,
management action and management are given the opportunity to treat,
tolerate, terminate or transfer the concerns and associated risks. Management
Action Plans have been put in place to address issues identified during audit
work and audit follow up verification will confirm whether agreed
countermeasures for Very High and High concerns have been actioned within
agreed timescales. Where concerns are classified as being Very High or High
that have been tolerated by management, these are highlighted to the Audit
Committee. There have been no cases of Very High or High concerns being
tolerated by management.

4.

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE PERFORMANCE AND CONTRIBUTION

4.1

It is important that Internal Audit demonstrates its value to the organisation.
The service provides assurance to Members and management via its
programme of work and also offers support and advice on a range of
governance, risk and control matters making recommendations to improve the
value for money and efficiency. The value of this element of our work is
difficult to measure but is one of the performance metrics to be developed in
2020/21.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

However, in addition the team also demonstrates value as follows:
Savings Identification and Value for Money:
The Internal Audit Investigations Team provide the Council’s counter fraud
response as set out in section 5 below.
Grant Certification
Where a grant giving body requires an internal audit certificate before
releasing payment, the team carries out work to verify and certify amounts
that the Council can claim. Without this certification, grants may become
repayable. A range of such grant claims were certified during 2019/20 with a
value in excess of £10m. Details are provided in Appendix A.
Consultancy and Advice
As well as completing planned audit reviews, there are times when control
issues occur and management request an investigation requiring control
failings to be identified and remedied. In 2019/20, such requests were dealt
with (including issues relating to previous financial years) as detailed in
Appendix A (Adhoc Work Requests)

The team also provide ad hoc advice and guidance across the Council to
assist colleagues with ensuring control and governance arrangements are
considered in developing processes/policies etc.

88

5.

COUNTER FRAUD
Fraud and Irregularities

5.1

The Council has a strong counter fraud policy and a proactive approach is
taken to fraud. Whilst, the risk of fraud is ever present, arrangements are in
place to ensure it is investigated and control improvements recommended
where processes are found to be needing improvement.

5.2

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the effectiveness of the suite of the
Council’s Anti-Fraud Policies.

5.3

There have been no incidences of material fraud, irregularities or corruption
discovered or reported during the year.

5.4

Work this year has focussed on pro-active exercises which has included
 Housing tenancy fraud investigations – 3 properties returned to WBC
Housing stock during 2019/20, notional value £15k per property and £45k
in total.
 Schools Admissions referrals
 2 Councillor Code of Conduct investigations
 3 whistleblowing investigations
 1 grievance investigation
 1 disciplinary investigation
 1 consultancy investigation

5.5

In addition, the National Fraud Initiative was completed with the following
headlines:



15 cases of potential Housing Benefit fraud passed to the DWP
38 Blue Badges were correctly cancelled
1 case was referred to the Housing Team for tenancy fraud

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act
5.6

The Investigatory Powers Commissioners’ Office undertook Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Inspection (RIPA) Inspection of the Council’s Policies,
Processes and Procedures in December 2019. The inspection was completed
remotely and the plan to combine your next inspection with Bracknell and
West Berks under the auspices of the Public Protection Partnership. The
outcome of the Inspection was that some suggested revisions were made to
the Policy and Procedure (some of which are triggered by the introduction of
the Investigatory Powers Act - IPA):

5.6

No new investigations have been undertaken during 2019/20 that has
required Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act surveillance approval.

89

6.

CONFORMANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDITING
STANDARDS

6.1

In April 2013, a new set of Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
became effective. The standards apply to the Internal Audit function in all
parts of the public sector in the UK and are mandatory. Within the PSIAS
there is a requirement for an independent external review of the internal audit
function once every five years.

6.2

Members will recall that the Internal Audit service has previously been
independently assessed against PSIAS by CIPFA in 2018, the outcomes of
which was confirmation of compliance assessing the service as ‘generally’
conforming to the standards (the top category of opinion). The action plan
and progress against it has been previously reported to the Committee and
work continues to address the remaining minor action points identified to
assist the service in continuous improvement.

6.3

Internal Audit completes an annual self-assessment of its compliance with the
requirements of the PSIAS. The purpose of the self-assessment is firstly to
provide assurance to the Audit Committee and management that Internal
Audit is compliant with the PSIAS and that consequently they can rely on the
work of Internal Audit, and secondly, to further enhance delivery of the internal
audit function through the identification of opportunities for development.

6.4

The self-assessment undertaken in 2019/20 concluded that the service
continues to “generally conform” with the standards. Actions have been
identified to improve performance reporting and the internal audit manual.

7.

CONTEXT AND COMPLIANCE

7.1

Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management,
internal control and governance processes. (Source: Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note: Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy in collaboration with the Chartered
Institute of Internal Auditors).

7.2

Internal Audit is a statutory requirement for local authorities. There are two
key pieces of relevant legislation:
•

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local
authority make arrangements for the proper administration of its
financial affairs and to ensure that one of the officers has responsibility
for the administration of those affairs

•

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (England) states that “A
relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate

90

the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards
or guidance”
7.3

Internal Audit independence is achieved by reporting lines which allow for
unrestricted access to the Chief Executive, the s151 Officer, Directors, and
the Chair of the Audit Committee.

7.4

The Head of Internal Audit can confirm there have been no restrictions on the
scope of internal audit work or reporting of audit findings during 2019/2020.

91

Appendix 1 - 2019/20 Internal Audit and Investigation Plan Status (as at 1 July 2020)

AUDIT TITLE

DIRECTORATE

STATUS

DRAFT
AUDIT
REPORT
OPINION

FINAL
AUDIT
REPORT
OPINION

Key Financial Systems
Debtors

Resources and Assets

FINAL

3

2

Payroll

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

Cashiers

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

Cash and Bank Reconciliation

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

Council Tax and NNDR

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

Creditors

Resources and Assets

FINAL

3

2

Housing Rents

Resources and Assets

FINAL

3

2

Treasury Management

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

BACS CHAPS and Cheques*
Governance Building Blocks
Facilitating the preparation of the AGS

Cross Cutting

E

Key Corporate Risks
Corporate Health and Safety

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

Information security including GDPR
compliance

Resources and Assets

DRAFT

2

Direct Payments – Adults

Adult Services

FINAL

2

2

Investment Strategy

Resources and Assets

FINAL

1

1

Procurement Cards

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

Equality

Cross Cutting

DRAFT

3

Grazeley Primary School

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

1

Lambs Lane Primary School

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

1

Hawkedon Primary School

Resources and Assets

DRAFT

2

Bulmershe Secondary School

Resources and Assets

WIP

Grants including; BSOG, Troubled
Families and LTP

Cross Cutting

Key Operational Risks

Servicing the Business

92

C

Consultancy
Taxi Licensing

E

2018/19 Audits Carried Forward
Key Financial Systems
Budgetary Control and Reporting

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

Capital Accounting

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

1

Debtors (follow up)

Resources and Assets

FINAL

3

3

Fixed Asset Register

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

General Ledger

Resources and Assets

FINAL

2

2

Housing Rents (follow up)

Resources and Assets

FINAL

3

3

Corporate Governance

Cross Cutting

FINAL

3

2

Project Management

Cross Cutting

FINAL

2

2

Public Health

Resources and Assets

FINAL

3

3

Shared Building Services (follow up)

Resources and Assets

FINAL

3

3

Town Centre Regeneration

Cross Cutting

FINAL

2

2

Governance Building Blocks

Key Operational Risks

*This audit area has been fragmented in to other Key financial Systems audits to ensure
complete coverage.

93

Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Assurance Levels
Level

Assurance Opinion

Definition

1

Complete and effective



2

Substantially complete and
generally effective



3

Range of Risk Mitigation
Controls is incomplete and
risks are not effectively
mitigated



4

There is no effective Risk
Management process in
place



C

Certification

E

Exempt from classification

All necessary Treatment Measures are in place and are
operating effectively.

Residual risks have been reduced to an acceptable level

There are no unacceptable financial implications.

Concerns reported are minor.
(Risk management processes are strong and controls
are adequate and effective).
Most key Treatment Measures are in place and these
operate effectively.

The majority of residual risks have been reduced to an
acceptable level.

There are some unacceptable financial implications.

The majority of concerns are of a predominately
moderate impact/likelihood.
(Risk management processes are good and controls are
adequate although only partially effective).
Not all key Treatment Measures are in place and / or do
not operate effectively

Residual risks have not all been reduced to an
acceptable level

There are some unacceptable financial implications
associated with more than one risk mitigation control or
because of a lack of risk mitigation control.

There are a number of concerns that are predominantly
of a major impact/likelihood.
(Risk management processes and controls are adequate
but not effective in mitigating the identified risks).
There are no appropriate Treatment Measures in place.
Residual risks remain at an unacceptable level

Reported concerns are predominantly of a catastrophic
or major impact/likelihood.
(Risk management processes and controls are weak).


94

Agenda Item 10.
TITLE

Review of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and AntiCorruption Policies

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Audit Committee on 29 July 2020

WARD

None Specific

LEAD OFFICER

Deputy Chief Executive - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
This report outlines the Council’s key policies to support its Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption
culture.
RECOMMENDATION
The Audit Committee is asked to agree the proposed amendments to the Anti-Fraud and
Anti-Corruption Policy, the Whistleblowing Policy, Anti Money Laundering Policy,
Prosecutions and Sanctions Policy, Anti Bribery Policy and the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) Policy and recommend these for approval to Council, via
the Constitution Review Working Group.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
The Council’s Constitution provides for the Audit Committee to agree all of the Council’s
Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption policies prior to their adoption being recommended to
Council via the Constitution Review Working Group. This review takes place regularly and
is an important element of good governance.
A summary of the changes for each policy is set out below and a copy of each of the fraud
policies, with tracked changes, is attached at Appendix A.

95

Background
The Council’s Fraud Policies are subject to regular review and update. A summary of
the recent updated (July 2020) is below.
Anti Fraud and Anti Corruption - Policy Changes 7/2020
ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY
9.4.2.1 – deleted as it is incorrect : fraud has long been defined in English law and
there are many definitions of fraud in the Fraud Act, beyond those mentioned.
9.4.5.1 – The Council requires, as it is a requirement, not a simple expectation.
9.4.6 – expected > required // should > must
9.4.13 – list of legislation removed as (a) it is, and is always likely to be, incomplete and
(b) any changes would necessitate updating. There is no need to list legislation, as it is
covered by the phrase, “appropriate legislation”.
9.4.14 – tidied up to create separate objectives and to reference Criminal Procedure
and Investigations Act Code of Practice (CPIA) / National File Standard (NFS)
requirements.
9.4.18 – removed the section specific to CTax. There are no specific references to any
of the other type of investigation (procurement / housing &c.).
9.4.19 – turned into a statement of intent.
9.4.20 – should > must // requirement to act in accordance with the policy.
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY
9.5.6.1 – Added “(Those making reports should also note that by concealing their
identity, it is harder for the Council to ensure that they are protected in accordance with
the Act); this is because those responsible for putting the Act into effect within the
Council will not know who they are.)”
ANTI MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY
9.7.2.1 – strengthened the instruction // clarified the personal criminal liability in not
reporting
9.7.3.1 – clarified – able to prove that disclosure has been made.
9.7.7 – tidied and clarified.
ANTI-BRIBERY POLICY
We > ‘the Council’ throughout (and other grammatical changes following).
should > must, where appropriate
9.6.1.2 – strengthened and formalised language.
9.6.2 – clarified meaning
9.6.3 – clarified that working with the Council = promising to comply.
9.6.9/10 – added WHO must carry out due diligence & risk assessment.
9.6.13 – removed – it’s not a policy statement
9.6.16 – clarified that all offers/gifts regardless of value are covered
9.6.19.1 – emphasised that all good faith reports = whistleblowing
PROSECUTION AND SANCTIONS POLICY
Title changed (to reflect current practice) to CASE DISPOSAL POLICY
9.8.1.3 – clarifies who can make disposal decisions (see attached process map)
9.8.6 – to allow sanctions / penalties where a decision not to prosecute is made.
9.8.7 – Added to ensure all costs are pursued
9.8.8 – Added to bring NFS formally in to the Council

96

ACQUISITION OF COMMUNICATIONS DATA AND USE OF COVERT
SURVEILLANCE AND COVERT HUMAN INTELLIGENCE SOURCES POLICY
Added in Investigatory Powers Act to title.
Cleaned to define RIPA, IPA and DPA as abbreviations in the first section.
Provided numbering for most sub-paras.
Added the Investigatory Powers Act throughout, and changed the sections on
Communications Data (CD) to reflect the new Act.
9.9.2.1 – Referenced online investigations need the need to authorise if they go beyond
open source work.
9.9.2.2 – Amended to reflect IPA provisions and confirm the status of the statutory CoP.
9.9.2.3 – Added to ensure continuity of NAFN membership, as this is required for
access to CD
9.9.3
Appoints all AOs as VOs for CD requests – various textual amendments needed to
reflect these appointments throughout this section.
No substantive changes – there are still a maximum of six AO / VO for the Council.
NB – A person of the same rank as the SRO is required to ‘be aware’ of all comms data
requests before they are submitted.
GENERAL
Generally should has been replaced with ‘must’ (where an instruction appears to be
appropriate) and, on occasion, with ‘may’, where this appears to be the intent. It is good
practice to ensure that those to whom the policy applies are clear that this is not should
(ought to) but must (have to).
Consider a statement that deliberately or recklessly failing to comply with each policy
would normally amount to misconduct (and the consequences of this).
Analysis of Issues
See above
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe funding pressures, particularly in the face of the COVID-19
crisis. It is therefore imperative that Council resources are focused on the
vulnerable and on its highest priorities.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

n/a

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

n/a

Yes

n/a

n/a

Yes

n/a

n/a

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
N/a

97

Cross-Council Implications (how does this decision impact on other Council services,
including properties and priorities?)
N/a
Public Sector Equality Duty
N/a
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
N/a
List of Background Papers
N/a
Contact Andrew Moulton; Catherine
Hickman
Telephone No Tel: 07747 777298;
07885 983378

Service Governance
Email
Andrew.moulton@wokingham,gov,uk;
catherine.hickman@wokingham.gov.uk

98

Appendix A
Revised Fraud Policies with Tracked Changes
SECTION 9
ETHICS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Chapter 9.4 – Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy
9.4.1

Introduction

34

9.4.2

Defining Fraud

34

9.4.3

Defining Corruption

35

9.4.4

Framework for Prevention and Detection

35

9.4.5

Key Principles and Culture

35

9.4.6

Raising Concerns

36

9.4.7

Corporate Governance

37

9.4.8

Corporate Responsibility

37

9.4.9

Recruitment

37

9.4.10

System of Internal Control

38

9.4.11

Risk Management

39

9.4.12

Role of Statutory Officers

39

9.4.13

Effective Action

39

9.4.14

Procedure

40

9.4.15

Completion

40

9.4.16

Disciplinary

40

9.4.17

Reporting and Publicity

40

9.4.18

Council Tax Investigations

41

9.4.19

Working with Others

41

9.4.20

Money Laundering

41

9.4.21

Conclusion and Review

42

Chapter 9.5 Whistleblowing Policy and Guidance
9.5.1

Introduction

43

9.5.2

What is Whistleblowing

43

9.5.3

Who Should I Contact

44

9.5.4

Legal Protection

45

9.5.5

Raising Concerns Outside the Council

45

9.5.6

Making a Protected Disclosure

46

99

9.5.7

How Will the Council Respond

48

9.5.8

What if I am Dissatisfied with the Councils Response

49

9.5.9

Further Information and Advice

49

Chapter 9.6 Anti Bribery Policy
9.6.1

Policy Statement Anti Bribery

51

9.6.2

Objective of this Policy

51

9.6.3

Scope of this Policy

51

9.6.4

Commitment

52

9.6.5

The Bribery Act

52

9.6.6

Adequate Procedures

53

9.6.7

Proportionate Procedures

53

9.6.8

Top Level Commitment

53

9.6.9

Risk Assessment

53

9.6.10

Due Diligence

53

9.6.11

Communication (Including Training)

53

9.6.12

Monitoring and Review

53

9.6.13

Penalties

53

9.6.14

Bribery is not Tolerated

54

9.6.15

Facilitation Payments

54

9.6.16

Gifts and Hospitality

54

9.6.17

Public Contracts and Failure to Prevent Bribery

56

9.6.18

Staff Responsibilities

56

9.6.19

Raising a Concern

56

9.6.20

Other Relevant WBC Policies

57

Chapter 9.7 Anti Money Laundering Policy
9.7.1

Introduction

58

9.7.2

Scope of the Policy

58

9.7.3

What is Money Laundering

58

9.7.4

Suspicious Activity

59

9.7.5

The Councils Obligations

59

9.7.6

The Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO)

60

100

9.7.7

Disclosure Procedure

60

9.7.8

Client Identification Procedure

60

9.7.9

Record Keeping Procedures

61

9.7.10

Further Information and Advice

61

Chapter 9.8 Prosecution and Sanction Policy
9.8.1

Introduction

62

9.8.2

Alternatives to Prosecution - Cautions

62

9.8.3

Alternatives to Prosecution - Statutory Sanctions

62

9.8.4

Code for Crown Prosecutors - The Evidential Test

62

9.8.5

Code for Crown Prosecutors - The Public Interest Test

62

9.8.6

Other Sanctions or Penalties

62

Chapter 9.9 Acquisition of Communications Data and Use of
Covert Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Sources
Policy
9.9.1

Introduction

63

9.9.2

Policy

63

9.9.3

Appointments

64

9.9.4

Oversight and Reporting

64

9.9.5

RIPA Procedures

65

9.9.6

Training

65

9.9.7

Exceptions, Notes and Complaints

66

9.9.8

Adoption and Amendment of the Policy

66

101

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

CHAPTER 9.4 – CORPORATE ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY
9.4.1 Introduction
Wokingham Borough Council (The Council) aims to deliver high quality services and
provide value for money by being fully accountable, honest and open in everything that it
does.
Fraud and corruption undermine these aims by diverting resources from legitimate
activities, damaging public confidence in the Council and adversely affecting staff morale.
To achieve its strategic priorities, the Council seeks to ensure that measures are taken to
prevent, detect and investigate fraudulent or corrupt acts. The aim of this policy is to
reduce losses from fraud and corruption to an absolute minimum.
The Council has a zero tolerance policy regarding fraud and corruption. It has adopted the
following approach.
“In administering its responsibilities the Council is opposed to fraud and corruption whether
it is attempted on or from within the Council and is committed to preventing, deterring,
detecting and investigating fraud and corruption.”
This policy is particularly relevant to:
a)

elected Members;

b)

employees;

c)

contractors;

d)

consultants;

e)

suppliers;

f)

service users;

g)

customers (including the public); and

h)

partner organisations.

9.4.2 Defining Fraud
The Council defines “fraud” as an intentional distortion of financial statements or other
records by persons internal or external to the organisation which is carried out to conceal
the misappropriation of assets or otherwise for financial gain. This may involve, but is not
limited to:
a)

falsification or alteration of accounting records or other documents;

b)

misappropriation of assets or theft;

c)

suppression or omission of the effects of transactions from accounting records of
other documents;

102

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

d)

recording transactions which have no substance; and

e)

wilful misrepresentation of transactions or of the Council’s state of affairs.

9.4.2.1
Furthermore, the Fraud Act 2006 has defined fraud in law for the first time, defining it in
three classes:
a)

fraud by false representation;

b)

fraud by failing to disclose information; and

c)

fraud by abuse of position.

9.4.3 Defining Corruption
The Council defines corruption as the offering, giving, soliciting or accepting of any
inducement or reward which would influence the actions taken by the Council, its Members
or Officers. Areas where corrupt practices may occur include, but are not limited to:
a)

tendering and awarding of contracts;

b)

pecuniary interests of Members and Officers;

c)

the award of permissions, planning consents and licenses; and

d)

the disposal of assets.

9.4.4 Framework for Prevention and Detection
It is a management responsibility to maintain the internal control system and to ensure that
the Council’s resources are properly applied in the manner and on the activities intended.
This includes responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud and other illegal acts.
9.4.5 Key Principles and Culture
The Council will not tolerate fraud and corruption in the administration of its responsibilities
whether from inside or outside of the authority. The Council is committed to creating a
culture of opposition to fraud and corruption. The Council is determined that the authority
meets the expectations of the Committee on Standards of Public Life and is committed to
the ten general principles which govern standards of conduct in local government, namely:
a)

selflessness;

b)

honesty and integrity;

c)

objectivity;

d)

accountability;

e)

openness;

f)

personal judgement;

103

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

g)

respect for others;

h)

duty to uphold the law;

i)

stewardship; and

j)

leadership.

9.4.5.1
The Council expects requires Members (elected and co-opted) and employees (including
agency staff, consultants and contractors) to lead by example in ensuring effective
opposition to fraud and corruption. This includes ensuring adherence to legislation, local
rules and regulations, National and Local Codes of Conduct and that all procedures and
practices are beyond reproach.
9.4.6 Raising Concerns
Employees at all levels shouldmust be alert to the possibility of fraud and corruption. They
are required expected, and positively encouraged to raise any concerns relating to fraud
and corruption which they become aware of. These can be raised in any way that the
employee prefers, including with their line manager, through a Director, with the Shared
Audit and Investigation Service or through the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. Whichever
route is chosen, the employee can be assured that concerns raised in good faith will be
fully investigated and, wherever possible, those raising concerns will be dealt with in
confidence.
When management receive concerns from employees or others regarding potential fraud
or corruption, they should must immediately contact the Assistant Director, Governance
(and Monitoring Officer) with details of the concerns. The Assistant Director, Governance
will make preliminary enquiries and in consultation with the Section 151 Officer will
determine whether there are grounds for an investigation.
Councillors, service users, suppliers, partner organisations and members of the public are
encouraged to report any concerns. These concerns about fraud and corruption should be
reported either directly to the Assistant Director, Governance or via the Council’s
Whistleblowing Policy.
If employees feel that they are unable to use internal routes then they can contact the
council’s external auditors, Ernst and Young:
Ernst and Young
Helen Thompson, Wessex House, 19 Threefield Lane, Southampton, SO14 3QB,
Email hthompson2@uk.ey.com
Tel 07974 007332

Although the Council encourages its staff to report concerns acting in good faith, any
maliciously motivated and unfounded allegations may be dealt with through the Council’s
disciplinary code.

104

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

9.4.7 Corporate Governance
The main corporate policies and procedures which formulate the Council’s framework for
minimising risk and the prevention of fraud and corruption include:
a)

Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy;

b)

Internal Audit Charter;

c)

Contract and Procurement Regulations;

d)

Financial Regulations;

e)

Human Resources Policy and Guidance for Discipline;

f)

Human Resources Policy for Conduct and Personal Behaviour;

g)

Human Resources Policy for Recruitment and Retention;

h)

Member’s Code of Conduct;

i)

Money Laundering Policy;

j)

Officer’s Code of Conduct;

k)

Prosecution and Sanction Policy;

l)

Risk Management Strategy;

m)

Scheme of Delegation;

n)

Whistleblowing Policy; and

o)

Anti-Bribery Policy

9.4.8 Corporate Responsibility
Assistant Directors must ensure that all employees in their service are familiar with the
corporate policies and procedures listed in Rule 9.4.7, in addition to any other relevant
rules and regulations specific to their service. Failure to adhere to these policies and
procedures could result in the instigation of disciplinary procedures.
9.4.9 Recruitment
The Council recognises that one of the most important issues relating to the prevention of
fraud and corruption is the effective recruitment of staff and therefore takes preemployment screening seriously.
Employee recruitment is required to be in accordance with procedures laid down by the
Lead Specialist HR. As part of these procedures, particular reference is made to:
a)

verifying the identity of the applicant;

b)

obtaining satisfactory references prior to appointment;

105

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

c)

verifying the applicant is able to legitimately work in the UK;

d)

verifying and retaining copies of certificates for stated qualifications; and

e)

undertaking Disclosure Barring Service checks where appropriate.

These practices apply to all permanent appointments including those where employees
have entered the organisation as an agency worker or consultant in the first instance.
9.4.10 System of Internal Control
The risk of fraud and corruption can be minimised by good financial management, sound
internal control systems, effective management supervision, and by raising public, member
and employee awareness of fraud.
9.4.10.1
Internal control is the whole system of controls, financial and otherwise, established to
provide reasonable assurance of:
a)

proper aims and objectives;

b)

efficient and effective operations;

c)

reliable management information and reporting;

d)

legitimate expenditure;

e)

compliance with laws and regulations;

f)

performance management; and

g)

security of assets and income.

9.4.10.2
Weaknesses in the design and operation of administrative and financial internal control
systems may increase the risk of fraud. Systems shouldmust contain efficient, effective,
and well documented internal controls that cover the following:
a)

adequate segregation of duties;

b)

proper authorisation and approval procedures;

c)

adequate physical security over assets; and

d)

reliable monitoring and reporting arrangements.

9.4.10.3
It is management’s responsibility to install adequate internal controls and rectify
weaknesses if they occur. To help management discharge this responsibility, systems
may be subject to review by both Internal and External Audit. Auditors are responsible for
reporting to management on significant weaknesses in the control environment, including
deficiencies in the operation of internal controls and highlighting exposure to the risk of
fraud.

106

ChapterPage updated June 2020November 2018

High risk audit concerns are promptly followed up to ensure issues highlighted are
appropriately actioned.
Management shouldmust instigate occasional deterrent compliance checks on the
operation of internal controls within their service and are encouraged to seek advice from
the Shared Audit and Investigation Service on what checks shouldmust be carried out.
This work shouldmust be used to inform the Annual Governance Statement.
9.4.11 Risk Management
Major fraud risks relating to services shouldmust be included within local Risk Registers
and subject to regular review to ensure that appropriate controls are in place to mitigate
those risks.
9.4.12 Role of Statutory Officers
The Council has a statutory responsibility, under Section 151 of the Local Government Act
1972, to ensure the proper administration of its financial affairs and also to nominate one
of its Officers to take responsibility for those affairs. The Council’s nominated Section 151
Officer is the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate Services
9.4.12.1
The Council’s Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director, Governance) is responsible under
Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to guard against, inter alia,
illegality, impropriety and maladministration in the Council’s affairs.
9.4.13 Effective Action
Responsibility for investigating suspected fraud and corruption against the Council rests
with the Shared Audit and Investigation Service. This is to ensure that the investigation is
performed only by properly trained officers, in accordance with the appropriate legislation
as appropriate. :
a) Bribery Act 2010
b)

Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act (CPIA) 1996;

c)

Data Protection Act 1998;

d)

Fraud Act 2006;

e)

Freedom of Information Act 2000;

f)

Human Rights Act 1998;

g)

Local Government Finance Act 2012;

h)

Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) 1984;

i)

Criminal Finances Act 2017;

j)

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000;

k)

The Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992.

l)

Investigatory Powers Act 2016

107

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

9.4.14 Procedure
All referrals will initially be risk assessed and material instances of fraud or irregularity in
the Council will be referred to the Shared Audit and Investigation Service.
The Shared Audit and Investigation Service will ensure the following objectives are met:
a)

iInvestigations are undertaken fairly, objectively and in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations, so as to avoid jeopardising the outcome on legal and
procedural technicalities.;

b)

to Evidence and unused material is secured and protected, in accordance with
the law and best practice. the evidence;

c)

to prove or disprove the original suspicions of fraud;All reasonable lines of
enquiry are followed, to establish whether or not there is a case to answer.

d)

if proven, to support the findings by producing effective evidence;Conclusions
and recommendations for action are always based on (and, where appropriate,
supported by) the evidence gathered during the investigation.

e)

to present eThe case is reported and prepared in vidence in an appropriate
format, in line with the relevant procedures ; in the case of criminal process, this
means the National File Standard. accepted by the Crown Prosecution Service or
the appropriate disciplining service;

f)

to apply aAppropriate sanctions and redress is sought against those any and all
individuals and organisations that seek to defraud the Council.

9.4.15 Completion
Once an investigation is completed the Shared Audit and Investigation Service may have
responsibilities in relation to:
a)

recommending improvements to systems;

b)

attendance at disciplinary hearings and tribunals;

c)

attendance at Court as a witness; and

d)

reporting to the Audit Committee.

Conclusions will be based on fact allowing management to take forward any required
disciplinary and / or criminal proceedings as they determine appropriate.
9.4.16 Disciplinary
The Council has in place disciplinary procedures which must be followed whenever staff
are suspected of committing a fraudulent or corrupt act. The disciplinary procedures are
set out in the Disciplinary Policy and Guidance. The Chief Executive has overall
responsibility for ensuring that the disciplinary procedure is managed effectively. Line
managers, under the overall direction of an Assistant Director are responsible for day to
day management and ensuring compliance with the Disciplinary Policy and Guidance.

108

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

9.4.17 Reporting and Publicity
Incidents of fraud and corruption are reported through the following mechanisms:
a)
b)
c)

Corporate Leadership Team;
Audit Committee; and
External Auditors (currently Ernst and Young).

109

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

Where evidence of fraud and corruption is found, appropriate sanctions will be sought in
line with the Council’s Case Disposal PolicyProsecution and Sanctions Policy. The details
of any proven act of fraud or corruption, including action taken by the Council will be
publicised to employees, Members and the public. This is aimed at deterring further
attempts of fraud or corruption by demonstrating the seriousness with which the Council
views such cases. In agreement with the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, the
Council will report criminal activity to the Police at the appropriate stage.
9.4.18 – (not used)9.4.18 Council Tax Investigations
The Investigations Team within the Shared Audit and Investigation Service is also
responsible for undertaking investigations within the Council Tax Reductions Scheme. This
involves:
a)
investigating suspected fraud by false statement and/or failure to declare changes
in circumstances or other method. ;
b)

making random checks on claimants; and

c)

maximising recovery of overpayments.

Where evidence of fraud and corruption is found, appropriate sanctions will be sought in
line with the Council’s Prosecution and Sanctions Policy. Successful prosecutions will be
publicised to help deter further fraud.

9.4.189 Working with Others
The Council will put into place Arrangements are in place and continue to develop such
arrangements as it deems proportionate and necessary in order to and encourage
facilitate the exchange of information between the Council and other agencies on national
and local fraud and corruption activity. This includes participation in the National Fraud
Initiative which matches data across a wide range of public service organisations in order
to detect fraud or erroneous payments.
9.4.1920 Money Laundering
Money laundering is the process of moving illegally generated funds through a cycle of
transformation in order to create the end appearance of legitimately earned funds.
The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 details the three principal money laundering offences as:
a)

assisting another to retain the benefit of crime;

b)

acquisition, possession or use of criminal proceeds; and

c)

concealing or transferring proceeds to avoid prosecution.

In addition there are related offences for failing to report where a person has knowledge,
suspicion or reasonable grounds for knowledge or suspicion that money laundering has
taken place, as well as for tipping off a person that a disclosure has taken place.
Council Officers and Members who suspect money laundering activities should must
report their concern to the Council’s nominated Money Laundering Reporting Officer

110

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

(MLRO), the Section 151 Officer (Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate
Services). The Council has adopted an Anti-Money Laundering Policy ; all reports must
be made in accordance with that policy.
(Further details are contained in Chapter 9.7 Anti-Money Laundering Policy.)

111

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

9.4.201 Conclusion and Review
The Council has in place a clear framework of systems and procedures to deter and
investigate fraud and corruption. It will ensure that these arrangements are fair and are
monitored and updated to keep pace with future developments in preventative, deterrent
and detection techniques regarding fraudulent or corrupt activity.
To this end, the Council maintains a continuous review of these arrangements through, in
particular the Audit Committee, the Section 151 Officer (Deputy Chief Executive and
Director of Corporate Services), Shared Audit and Investigation Service, External Audit
and the Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director, Governance).

112

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

CHAPTER 9.5 – WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND GUIDANCE
9.5.1 Introduction
The Council is committed to delivering high quality services to its customers and expects
high standards from its employees and contractors. In order to maintain those high
standards a culture of openness and accountability is vitally important. The aims of this
policy are:
a)

to encourage you to raise concerns about malpractice within the organisation
without fear of reprisal;

b)

to reassure you that your concerns will be taken seriously; and

c)

to provide information about how to raise your concerns and explain how the
council will respond.

This policy applies to all Council employees, former employees, agency staff and
contractors engaged by the Council.
9.5.2 What is Whistleblowing?
In practical terms, whistleblowing occurs when a concern is raised about danger or
illegality that affects others, e.g. clients, members of the public or the Council itself. As the
person “blowing the whistle” you would not usually be directly affected by the danger or
illegality. Consequently you would rarely have a personal interest in the outcome of any
investigation into your concerns. This is different from a complaint or grievance. If you
make a complaint or lodge a grievance, you are saying that you personally have been
poorly treated. This poor treatment could involve a breach of your individual employment
rights or bullying and you are entitled to seek redress for yourself. A qualifying disclosure
means any disclosure of information that, in the reasonable belief of the worker is made in
the public interest. As a result of this employees will generally be precluded from being
able to “blow the whistle” about breaches of his or her employment contract. Although an
employee making such a complaint can still use the Council’s grievance policy.
Examples of whistleblowing concerns are:
a)

fraud in, on or by the Council;

b)

offering, taking or soliciting bribes;

c)

unauthorised use of public funds;

d)

financial maladministration;

e)

the physical, emotional or sexual abuse of clients;

f)

failure to comply with legal obligations;

g)

endangering of an individual’s health and safety;

h)

damage to the environment;

i)

a criminal offence;

113

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

j)

failure to follow financial and contract procedure rules;

k)

showing undue favour to a contractor or a job applicant;

l)

misreporting performance data; or

m)

neglect of people in care.

This Policy does not replace the Council’s complaints or grievance procedures.
9.5.3 Who shouldmust I contact?
Having considered this Policy, an employee of the Council, or any other person covered by
the Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) 1998, who has serious concerns about any
aspect of the Council’s work, shouldmust in the first instance inform one of the following
methods:
a)

Inform Line Manager
In many cases, raising concerns with the immediate line manager is the most
appropriate route for an employee. The line manager shouldmust inform the
Assistant Director, Governance of the disclosure and an appropriate course of
action will be agreed. If this is not a suitable option (for example because the
issue may implicate the manager or if the concern has been raised but remains
unaddressed) the concern shouldmay be raised using one of the other methods.

b)

Dedicated Whistleblowing Communication Channels
The Shared Audit and Investigation Service have established a dedicated 24
hour answerphone hotline for receiving disclosures.
Hot line number - 0118 974 6550;
Email:- confidential.whistleblowing@wokingham.gov.uk
By Post - Confidential Whistleblowing, Shared Audit and Investigations Service,
Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN;
In person at Shute End by asking for Shared Audit and Investigations Service at
reception.

c)

Shared Audit and Investigation Service and Assistant Director, Governance
The Shared Audit and Investigation Service can offer confidential independent
advice on the use of the Whistleblowing Policy. If you suspect an employee, a
member of the public or contractor (in their business dealings with the Council) of
fraud or corruption you can contact the Shared Audit and Investigation Service
who will discuss your concerns with you in complete confidence. If you are in
receipt of any allegation involving possible corruption, fraud or malpractice you
shouldmust notify the Assistant Director, Governance immediately on 07747
777298.

d)

Director Children’s Services and Director Adult Services
If you wish to raise a concern involving vulnerable children, you can contact the
Director of Children’s Services on 0118 974 6205 to seek guidance on how to
proceed. If you wish to raise a concern involving vulnerable adults, you can
contact the Director if Adult Services on 0118 974 6414 to seek guidance on how
to proceed.

114

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

115

ChpterPage updated June 2020March 2018

e)

Schools
You shouldmust refer to the whistleblowing arrangements for the individual
school. If it is not suitable for the school’s Governing Body to deal with, the
concern shouldmust be raised with the Director Children’s Services (contact
details shown in d)).

9.5.3.1
Advice and guidance on how matters of concern may be pursued can be obtained from:
the Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director, Governance).
9.5.4 Legal Protection
The Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) 1998 – sets out a framework of protection
against victimisation or dismissal for workers who blow the whistle (“disclosure”) on
criminal behaviour and other specified forms of malpractice.
9.5.4.1
It applies to making a ‘protected’ disclosure in respect of specific types of malpractice,
which are:
a) that a criminal offence has been committed, is being committed or is likely to be
committed;
b)

that a person has failed, is failing or is likely to fail to comply with any legal
obligation to which he is subject;

c)

that a miscarriage of justice has occurred, is occurring or is likely to occur;

d)

that the health or safety of any individual has been, is being or is likely to be
endangered;

e)

that the environment has been, is being or is likely to be damaged; or

f)

that information tending to show any matter falling within any one of the
preceding paragraphs has been, is being or is likely to be deliberately concealed.

9.5.4.2
The Act covers internal disclosures to the Wokingham Borough Council as the employer,
disclosures to prescribed ‘persons’ such as regulatory bodies (e.g. for health and safety
issues, the Health and Safety Executive), and wider disclosures, for example to the police
and the media.
9.5.5 Raising Concerns Outside the Council
In certain circumstances it may be appropriate to raise concerns outside the Council to the
appropriate ‘prescribed regulator’. This should may only be done where any disclosure of
information that is made in the public interest and where you believe the information is
true, i.e. more than just suspicion. You are advised to discuss your concerns with a legal
advisor, trade union or Public Concern at Work before reporting them outside the Council.
Examples of prescribed regulators are set out below:

116

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

a)

The Council’s external auditors (Ernst and Young);

b)

Information Commissioner;

c)

Environment Agency;

d)

Health and Safety Executive;

e)

Commissioner of the Inland Revenue;

f)

Ofsted;

g)

General Social Care Council;

h)

Care Quality Commission;

i)

The Commission for Social Care Inspection; and

j)

National Care Standards Commission.

9.5.5.1
As a last resort you may choose to raise your concern outside the Council to someone
other than a prescribed regulator, e.g. to the police or your MP. You should only do this if,
in addition to the conditions above, they meet one of three preconditions. Provided the
disclosure is reasonable in all the circumstances and is not made for personal gain, the
preconditions are that you:
a)

reasonably believed that you would be victimised if you raised the matter
internally within the Council; or

b)

reasonably believed that the matter would be ‘covered up’ and there is no
prescribed regulator; or

c)

have already raised the matter internally or with a prescribed regulator.

9.5.5.2
It should be noted that wider disclosures (i.e. to the media) can only be protected where
there is a justifiable cause for going wider and where the particular disclosure is
reasonable. The Council therefore encourages concerns to be raised initially using one of
the methods described in Rule 9.5.3.
9.5.6 Making a Protected Disclosure
This policy is intended to allow the internal investigation and resolution of any concerns
raised. In accordance with the PIDA 1998, to make a ‘protected’ disclosure the
whistleblower has to meet certain conditions:
a)

A qualifying disclosure means any disclosure of information that, in the
reasonable belief of the worker is made in the public interest. Therefore, while the
employer can seek a declaration from the whistleblower that he or she is not
knowingly making false allegations, disciplinary action is likely to be appropriate
only where there is clear evidence that the reporting worker has misused the
whistleblowing policy.

117

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

b)

Disclosure to a regulatory body will be protected where, in addition, the
whistleblower honestly and reasonably believes that the information they provide
and any allegation contained in it are substantially true.

c)

Disclosure to other external bodies will be protected if, in addition, making it is in
all respects reasonable. ‘In all respects reasonable’ means, in effect
i)

the disclosure is not made for personal gain;

ii)

the whistleblower reasonably believed that they would be victimised if they
raised the matter internally;

iii)

there is no relevant regulatory body;

iv

the whistleblower reasonably believed that evidence was likely to be
concealed or destroyed;

v)

the concern has already been raised with the employer and/or relevant
regulatory body; and

vi)

the concern is of an ‘exceptionally serious’ nature – which in a local
government setting could include, say, the alleged abuse of children or
vulnerable adults in an authority’s care.

9.5.6.1
This may be done orally or in writing. If you are writing, remember to give details of how
you can be contacted. Anonymous disclosures present difficulties for effective
investigation. Your identity will be kept strictly confidential if you so request, unless
disclosure is required by law. However the Council recognises that despite the dual
safeguards of confidentiality and legal protection from recrimination that individuals may
still feel unable to reveal their identity. In these situations individuals can report their
concerns anonymously, but should be aware that these concerns carry less weight with
the investigation teams and the disclosure may not be sufficiently detailed to provide a
successful investigation. (Those making reports should also note that by concealing their
identity, it is harder for the Council to ensure that they are protected in accordance with the
Act ; this is simply because those responsible for putting the Act into effect within the
Council will not know who they are.)
9.5.6.2
Allegations that are malicious, or allegations made for personal gain, may result in action
against the person making them. If an allegation is made in the public interest, but is not
confirmed by an investigation, no action will be taken against the person who raised the
concern.
9.5.6.3
It is preferable that a whistleblowing concern be raised as soon as there is reasonable
suspicion. Employees are not expected to investigate the matter themselves or prove that
their concern is well-founded.
9.5.6.4
Anyone who has made a protected disclosure will not suffer any detriment as a result of
raising their concern unless it is later proved that they knew they were providing false

118

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

information. In addition, whistleblowers are protected from suffering a detriment, bullying
or harassment from another worker.

119

ChapeterPage updated June 2020March 2018

Examples of detriment includes (but is not limited to)
a)

failure to promote, if linked to the disclosure;

b)

denial of training;

c)

closer monitoring;

d)

ostracism;

e)

blocking access to resources;

f)

unrequested re-assignment or re-location;

g)

demotion;

h)

suspension;

i)

disciplinary sanction;

j)

bullying or harassment;

k)

victimisation;

l)

dismissal;

m)

failure to provide an appropriate reference; or

n)

failing to investigate a subsequent concern.

9.5.7 How will the Council respond?
The action taken by the Council will depend on the nature of the concern. The matters
raised may:
a)

be investigated internally;

b)

be referred to the Police;

c)

be referred to the external auditors (Ernst and Young);

d)

form the subject of an independent inquiry; or

e)

be considered a service issue and referred to the service to respond by any
combination of the above.

9.5.7.1
In all cases, where a concern is raised, the contacted officer shall notify the Monitoring
Officer (Assistant Director, Governance) and the Section 151 Officer (Deputy Chief
Executive and Director Corporate Services). These officers will assess the nature of the
concern to decide the appropriate response. Some concerns may be resolved by agreed
action without the need for investigation. Any investigation will be overseen by the
Assistant Director, Governance.

120

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

9.5.7.2
Feedback on the outcome of the concern will be given to the person raising the concern.
This feedback may be limited due to legal obligations of confidentiality (i.e. if disciplinary
action is taken against a Council employee). The person raising a concern should normally
be told:
a)

how and by whom a concern will be handled;

b)

an estimate of how long an investigation will take;

c)

the outcome of the investigation (where appropriate);

d)

that if they believe they are suffering detriment as a result of raising the concern
that they should report it;

e)

that he or she is entitled to independent advice.

9.5.8 What if I am Dissatisfied with the Council’s Response?
This policy is intended to provide you with an avenue to raise concerns within the Council.
However, if at the end of the process an employee of the Council, or any other person
covered by the Act, is not satisfied with how a disclosure has been dealt with and wishes
to pursue matters by means of a wider disclosure, the following points of contact are
available to you:
a)

the Chairman of the Council’s Audit Committee

b)

your local Member (if you live in the area of the borough);

c)

the Council’s external auditors (Ernst and Young);

d)

relevant professional bodies or regulatory organisations;

e)

relevant inspection body;

f)

your solicitor; or

g)

the Police.

9.5.8.1
If you do decide to take the matter outside of the Council, you need to ensure that you do
not disclose confidential information and that you are ‘protected’ in accordance with the
PIDA 1998 (Rule 9.5.5). If you wish to raise a concern outside of the Council, you may
raise it with an external body from the list of prescribed persons and bodies detailed in the
‘Department for Business Innovation & Skills Blowing the Whistle to a Prescribed Person
document

121

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

9.5.9 Further Information and Advice
Independent advice on ‘whistleblowing’ can also be obtained from:

122

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

Public Concern at Work
3rd Floor, Bank Chambers, 6 - 10 Borough High Street, London, SE1 9QQ
Email: whistle@pcaw.org.uk
Tel General enquiries: 020 3117 2520
Tel Whistleblowing Advice Line: 020 7404 6609
Ernst and Young
Helen Thompson
Wessex House
19 Threefield Lane,
Southampton, SO14 3QB,
Email hthompson2@uk.ey.com
Tel 07974 007332

Professional Body or Trade Union
If you are a member of a professional body or trade union they should be able to advise
you on Whistleblowing..

123

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

CHAPTER 9.6 - ANTI-BRIBERY POLICY
9.6.1 Policy Statement: Anti-Bribery
Bribery is a criminal offence. Wokingham Borough Council (‘the Council’) We does not,
and will not, pay bribes or offer improper inducements to anyone for any purpose, nor does
it we or will weit, accept bribes or improper inducements.
9.6.1.1
To use a third party as a conduit to channel bribes to others is a criminal offence. We The
Council does not, and will not, engage indirectly in or otherwise encourage bribery.
9.6.1.2
We areThe Council is committed to the prevention, deterrence and detection of bribery.
We haveThe Council has zero-tolerance towards bribery. We The Council aim will embed
to maintain anti-bribery compliance within its usual “business processes ; the Council will
NOT treat it as as usual”, rather than as a one-off exercise.
9.6.2 Objective of this Policy
This policy provides a coherent and consistent framework to enable Wokingham
Boroughthe Council’s employees to understand and implement arrangements that enable
ing compliance with the anti-bribery rules. In conjunction with related policies and key
documents it will also enable employees to identify and effectively report any actual or
potential breaches of those rules.
We require that all personnel including those permanently employed, temporary agency
staff and contractors:
a)

act honestly and with integrity at all times and to safeguard the Council’s
resources for which they are responsible; and

b)

comply with the spirit, as well as the letter, of the laws and regulations of all
jurisdictions in which the Council operates, in respect of the lawful and
responsible conduct of activities.

9.6.3 Scope of this Policy
This policy applies to all of the Council’s activities. For partners, joint ventures and
suppliers, we the Council will require the adoption of principles (and will seek to promote
the adoption of formal policies) that are consistent with the principles set out in this policy.
9.6.3.1
Within the Council, the responsibility to control the risk of bribery occurring resides at all
levels, in every service.
9.6.3.2
This policy covers all personnel, including all levels and grades, those permanently
employed, temporary agency staff, contractors, non-executives, agents, Members
(including independent members), volunteers and consultants.

124

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

9.6.4 Commitment
Wokingham Borough Council commits to:
a)

setting out a clear anti-bribery policy and keeping it up to date;

b)

making all employees aware of their responsibilities to adhere strictly to this
policy at all times;

c)

training all employees so that they can recognise and avoid the use of bribery by
themselves and others;

d)

encouraging its employees to be vigilant and to report any suspicions of bribery,
providing them with suitable channels of communication and ensuring sensitive
information is treated appropriately;

e)

rigorously investigating instances of alleged bribery and assisting police and
other appropriate authorities in any resultant prosecution;

f)

taking firm and vigorous action against any individual(s) involved in bribery;

g)

provide information to all employees to report breaches and suspected breaches
of this policy;

h)

include appropriate clauses in contacts to prevent bribery.

9.6.5 The Bribery Act
The Council defines bribery as ‘an inducement or reward offered, promised or provided to
gain personal, commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage’.
9.6.5.1
There are four key offences under the Act:
a)

bribery of another person (section 1);

b)

accepting a bribe (section 2);

c)

bribing a foreign official (section 6); and

d)

failing to prevent bribery (section 7).

9.6.5.2
The Bribery Act 2010 makes it an offence to offer, promise or give a bribe (Section 1). It
also makes it an offence to request, agree to receive, or accept a bribe (Section 2).
Section 6 of the Act creates a separate offence of bribing a foreign public official with the
intention of obtaining or retaining business or an advantage in the conduct of business.
There is also a corporate offence under Section 7 of failure by a commercial organisation
to prevent bribery that is intended to obtain or retain business, or an advantage in the
conduct of business, for the organisation. An organisation will have a defence to this
corporate offence if it can show that it had in place adequate procedures designed to
prevent bribery by or of persons associated with the organisation.

125

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

9.6.5.3
The guidance states that a “commercial organisation” is any body formed in the United
Kingdom and “...it does not matter if it pursues primarily charitable or educational aims or
purely public functions. It will be caught if it engages in commercial activities, irrespective
of the purpose for which profits are made.” Therefore, we arethe Council is a “commercial
organisation”.
9.6.6 Adequate Procedures
Whether the procedures are adequate will ultimately be a matter for the courts to decide
on a case-by-case basis. Adequate procedures need to be applied proportionately, based
on the level of risk of bribery in the organisation. It is for individual organisations to
determine proportionate procedures in the recommended areas of six principals. These
principles are not prescriptive. They are intended to be flexible and outcome focussed,
allowing for the different circumstances of organisations. Small organisations will, for
example, face different challenges to those faced by large multi-national enterprises. The
detail of how organisations apply these principles will vary, but the outcome should always
be robust and effective anti-bribery procedures.
9.6.7 Proportionate Procedures
An organisation’s procedures to prevent bribery by persons associated with it are
proportionate to the bribery risks it faces and to the nature, scale and complexity of the
organisation’s activities. They are also clear, practical, accessible, effectively implemented
and enforced.
9.6.8 Top Level Commitment
The Chief Executive, Directors and Members are committed to preventing bribery by
persons associated with it. Bribery is never acceptable.
9.6.9 Risk Assessment
The Council will assess the nature and extent of its exposure to potential external and
internal risks of bribery on its behalf by persons associated with it. The assessment is
periodic, informed and documented. It includes financial risks but also other risks such as
reputational damage. All managers within the Council must ensure that appropriate risk
assessments are carried out in relation to the work carried out by their staff.
9.6.10 Due Diligence
The Council applies due diligence procedures, taking a proportionate and risk based
approach, in respect of persons who perform or will perform services for or on behalf of the
organisation, in order to mitigate identified bribery risks. All staff involved in managing
commercial activities must ensure that appropriate due diligence is carried out before the
council enters into a business relationship with another organisation.
9.6.11 Communication (including training)
The Council seeks to ensure that its bribery prevention policies and procedures are
embedded and understood throughout the organisation through internal and external
communication, including training that is proportionate to the risks it faces.
9.6.12 Monitoring and Review
The Council monitors and reviews procedures designed to prevent bribery by persons
associated with it and makes improvements where necessary. Wokingham Borough
Council is committed to proportional implementation of these principles.

126

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

9.6.13 Penalties
An individual guilty of an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 is liable:

127

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

a)

on conviction in a magistrates court, to imprisonment for a maximum term of 12
months (six months in Northern Ireland), or to a fine not exceeding £5,000, or to
both;

b)

on conviction in a crown court, to imprisonment for a maximum term of ten years,
or to an unlimited fine, or both.

Organisations are liable for these fines and if guilty of an offence under section 7 are liable
to an unlimited fine.
9.6.14 Bribery is not tolerated
It is unacceptable to:
a)

give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality with the expectation or
hope that a business advantage will be received, or to reward a business
advantage already given;

b)

give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality to a government
official, agent or representative to "facilitate" or expedite a routine procedure;

c)

accept payment from a third party that you know or suspect is offered with the
expectation that it will obtain a business advantage for them;

d)

accept a gift or hospitality from a third party if you know or suspect that it is
offered or provided with an expectation that a business advantage will be
provided by us in return;

e)

retaliate against or threaten a person who has refused to commit a bribery
offence or who has raised concerns under this policy;

f)

engage in activity in breach of this policy.

9.6.15 Facilitation Payments
Facilitation payments are unofficial payments made to public officials in order to secure or
expedite actions. Facilitation payments are not tolerated and are illegal.
9.6.16 Gifts and Hospitality
The Council’s Gifts and hospitality policy is included in the Code of Conduct - Employees
must ensure:
a)

when acting in an official capacity they must not give the impression that their
conduct both inside and outside work with any person or organisation is
influenced by the receipt of gifts, rewards and hospitality or any other such
consideration;

b)

they think about the circumstances in which offers are made and are aware that
they may be regarded as owing a favour in return;

c)

they have permission from their line managers before accepting such offers and
are aware that the offers may have to be returned or refused;

128

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

d)

that when gifts or hospitality have to be declined those making the offer
shouldmust be courteously but firmly informed of the procedures and standards
operating within the Council; and

e)

all offers, regardless of value and whether or not accepted, must be recorded in
the Gifts and Hospitality register.

9.6.16.1
How an employee shouldmust react to an offer depends on the type of offer, the
relationship between the parties involved and the circumstances in which the gift or
hospitality is offered:
a)

employees must not be seen to be acting in their own personal interests and
need to be careful that their behaviour cannot be misinterpreted;

b)

when receiving authorised gifts/hospitality, employees shouldmust be particularly
sensitive as to its timing in relation to decisions which the Council may be taking
affecting those providing the hospitality;

c)

an offer of a bribe or commission made by contractors, their agents or by a
member of the public must be reported to the line manager and the Assistant
Director, Governance. Hospitality from contractors shouldmust also be avoided
where employees / team are singled out for example Christmas lunch etc, this
may be perceived as preferential treatment; and

d)

employees must not accept significant personal gifts from the contractors and
outside suppliers, although the Council may wish to allow employees to keep
insignificant items of token value such as pens, diaries, etc not exceeding the
value of £25. The most common form of gift is the offer of wine and chocolates
etc. In general these are shared out among colleagues and provided the offers
are reasonable, for example a single bottle of wine, they may be accepted. It is
important that all offers are recorded in the Gifts/Hospitality Register including
those that are offered and not accepted. Directors shouldmust remind their staff
of the process to be followed with regards to gifts and hospitality.

9.6.16.2
No one working for, employed by, or providing services on behalf of the Council is to
make, or encourage another to make any personal gain out of its activities in any way.
Any person becoming aware of a personal gain being made at the expense of the Council,
contractors or the public shouldmust follow the Whistleblowing procedures on the
Council’s website.
9.6.16.3
Employees may only accept offers of hospitality if there is a genuine need to impart
information or represent the Council in the community. Offers to attend purely social or
sporting functions may only be accepted when these are part of the life of the community
or where the authority should be seen to be represented. All hospitality must be properly
authorised and recorded in the Gifts/Hospitality Register.

129

ChapterPage updated June 2020November 2018

9.6.16.4
Employees may accept hospitality when attending relevant conferences and courses
where it is clear the hospitality is corporate rather than personal, where consent is given in
advance and where it is satisfied that any purchasing decisions are not compromised.
Where visits to inspect equipment, etc. are required, employees must ensure that their
service meets the cost of such visits to avoid putting at risk the integrity of subsequent
purchasing decisions.
9.6.16.5
The acceptance of gifts and hospitality may be a subject of criticism placing the Council in
a position that it has to defend such action. Consequently, it is essential that all offers and
details of gifts and hospitality be recorded in the Gifts & Hospitality Register which will be
held by the Director or nominated Manager.
9.6.17 Public Contracts and Failure to Prevent Bribery
Under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (which gives effect to EU law in the UK), a
company is automatically and perpetually debarred from competing for public contracts
where it is convicted of a corruption offence. Organisations that are convicted of failing to
prevent bribery are not automatically barred from participating in tenders for public
contracts. This organisation has the discretion to exclude organisations convicted of this
offence.
9.6.18 Staff Responsibilities
The prevention, detection and reporting of bribery and other forms of corruption are the
responsibility of all those working for the Council or under its control. All staff are required
to avoid activity that breaches this policy.
Staff must:
a)

ensure that they read, understand and comply with this policy; and

b)

raise concerns as soon as possible if you believe or suspect that a conflict with
this policy has occurred, or may occur in the future.

As well as the possibility of civil and criminal prosecution, staff that breach this policy will
face disciplinary action, which could result in dismissal for gross misconduct.
9.6.19 Raising a Concern
The Council is committed to ensuring that we all have a safe, reliable, and confidential way
of reporting any suspicious activity. We want each and every member of staff to know how
they can raise concerns. We all have a responsibility to help detect, prevent and report
instances of bribery. If you have a concern regarding a suspected instance of bribery or
corruption, please speak up – your information and assistance will help. The sooner you
act, the sooner it can be resolved.
9.6.19.1
There are multiple channels to help you raise concerns – these are explained in Chapter
9.5 the Whistleblowing Policy. Staff who refuse to accept or offer a bribe, or those who
raise concerns or report wrongdoing can understandably be worried about the
repercussions. We The Council aim to encourage openness and will support anyone who
raises a genuine concern in good faith under this policy, even if they turn out to be

130

ChapterPage updated June 2020November 2018

mistaken. For the avoidance of doubt, any and all reports made in good faith will,
therefore, be treated as Whistleblowing and gain the protection that entails.

131

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

9.6.19.2
We areThe Council is committed to ensuring nobody suffers detrimental treatment through
refusing to take part in bribery or corruption, or because of reporting a concern in good
faith. If you have any questions about these procedures, please contact Andrew Moulton,
Assistant Director Governance.
9.6.20 Other Relevant WBC Policies
Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Ppolicy, Chapter9.4
Anti-Money Laundering Ppolicy, Chapter 9.7
Code of Conduct and Finance, Chapter 9.2
Whistleblowing Ppolicy, Chapter 9.5
Procurement and Contract Rules and Procedures (Section 13)

132

ChapterPage updated June 2020November 2018

CHAPTER 9.7 - ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY
9.7.1 Introduction
Money laundering legislation requires local authorities to establish internal procedures to
prevent the use of their services for money laundering. Money laundering legislation in the
UK is primarily governed by the following legislation:
a)

the Terrorism Act 2000;

b)

the Anti-Terrorist Crime & Security Act 2001;

c)

the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002;

d)

Serious Organised Crime and Police Act 2005;

e)

the Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (information on
the payer) Regulations 2017; and

f)

Anti Money Laundering Act 2018

9.7.2 Scope of the Policy
This Policy applies to all employees and contractors of the Council. The Policy sets out
the procedures that must be followed to enable the Council to comply with its legal
obligations.
9.7.2.1
Staff should are instructed to report any suspicions to the appointed Money Laundering
Reporting Officer (MLRO) (see section 5.0) and it is for the MLRO to consider if the
circumstances warrant the completion of a ‘suspicious activity report’ (SAR), which is sent
to the National Crime Agency.
Failure by a member of staff to comply with the procedures set out in this Policy may lead
to disciplinary action being taken against them in accordance with the Council's
Disciplinary procedures. It may also render them liable to criminal action, if their actions
have helped to facilitate money-laundering or warned the potential money-launderer of the
Council’s suspicions.
9.7.3 What is Money Laundering?
The legislation is not limited to major organised crimes, but covers proceeds of all crimes,
however small. The primary money laundering offences and thus prohibited acts under
the legislation are:
a)

concealing, disguising, converting, transferring criminal property or removing it
from the UK (section 327 of the 2002 Act); or

b)

entering into or becoming concerned in an arrangement which you know or
suspect facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or control of criminal property by
or on behalf of another person (section 328 of the 2002 Act); or

c)

acquiring, using or possessing criminal property (section 329 of the 2002 Act); or

133

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

d)

becoming concerned in an arrangement facilitating concealment, removal from
the jurisdiction, transfer to nominees or any other retention or control of terrorist
property (section 18 of the Terrorism Act 2000); or

e)

failing to disclose suspected money laundering.

9.7.3.1
The defence to these offences is to be able to show that the person has makede an
‘authorised disclosure’ to an approved person. Approved persons are Customs Officers,
Police Officers and the Council’s MLRO (Rule 9.7.6.).
9.7.4 Suspicious Activity
Some indications of suspicious activity are:
a)

any unusually large cash payment;

b)

any overpayment or duplicate payment in cash where the refund is requested by
cheque; or

c)

if a ‘third party’ is involved in any transaction (e.g. someone paying cash to settle
someone else’s bill.)

9.7.4.1
The Council shouldmust be alert to large amounts of “Cash” accepted as a payment,
which would normally arouse suspicion.
9.7.4.2
Officers involved in Treasury Management and cashiering activities are the most likely to
encounter attempts to launder money but all staff shouldmust be alert to the possibilities.
9.7.4.3
All organisations and each individual is required by law to try to prevent and to report any
attempts to ‘launder’ money (i.e. to use the proceeds of crime in apparently legitimate
business transactions).
9.7.4.4
Potentially any member of staff could be caught by the money laundering provisions if they
suspect money laundering and either become involved with it in some way and/or do
nothing about it.
9.7.5 The Council’s Obligations
Organisations conducting “relevant business” must:
a)

appoint a MLRO to receive disclosures from employees of money laundering
activity (their own or anyone else’s);

b)

implement a procedure to enable the reporting of suspicions of money
laundering;

c)

maintain client identification procedures in certain circumstances; and

d)

maintain record keeping procedures.

134

ChapterPage updated June 2020March 2018

9.7.6 The Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO)
If you have any suspicions, you must contact the MLRO. The Council’s nominated MLRO
is the Section 151 Officer (Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate Services),
Email Graham.Ebers@wokingham.gov.uk or Tel 0118 974 6557.
9.7.7 Disclosure Procedure
Reporting to the MLRO: Where you know or suspect that money laundering activity is
taking/has taken place, or become concerned that your involvement in a matter may
amount to a prohibited act under the legislation, you must disclose this as soon as
practicable to the MLRO. In order to gain the protection from prosecution of having made
a disclosure, tThe disclosure must be made as soon as reasonably practicable and, in any
case, must should be within “hours” of the information coming to your attention, not weeks
or months later. Should you not do somake a prompt disclosure, you may be liable to
prosecution. Disclosure must always be made in writing on the AML1 form, which is
available on the shared drive.
9.7.7.1
Once you have reported the matter to the MLRO you must follow any directions they may
give you. You must NOT make any further enquiries into the matter yourself.
9.7.7.2
Similarly, at no time and under no circumstances should may you voice any suspicions to
the person(s) whom you suspect of money laundering, without the specific consent of the
MLRO; otherwise you may commit a criminal offence of “tipping off”. Do not, therefore,
make any reference on a client file to a report having been made to the MLRO – should
the client exercise their right to see the file, then such a note will obviously tip them off to
the report having been made and may render you liable to prosecution. The MLRO will
keep the appropriate records in a confidential manner.
9.7.7.3
On receipt of the disclosure the MLRO will:
a)

consider the report and make such further enquiries as are necessary to form a
view on whether a person is engaged in money laundering;

b)

consider all other relevant information in making this judgement;

c)

ensure that nothing is done which could alert the person or business concerned
that a report and an investigation could ensue;

d)

make a report to National Crime Agency, if appropriate, making full notes of the
reasons for doing so;

e)

co-operate with any enquiries made by the proper authorities; and

f)

maintain all records of disclosures and reports for at least five years.

9.7.8 Client Identification Procedure
Each unit of the Council conducting relevant business where a business relationship is to
be established and an account is to be opened or a one-off transaction or series of linked
transactions amounting to 15,000 Euros (approximately £10,000) or more must maintain
procedures which:

135

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

a)

require satisfactory evidence of the identity of both internal and external clients at
the outset of the matter;

b)

require that if satisfactory evidence of identity is not obtained at the outset of the
matter then the business relationship or one off transaction(s) cannot precede
any further;

c)

recognise the greater potential for money laundering when the client is not
present; and

d)

require that where a client appears to act for another that reasonable measures
are taken to establish the identity of that person.

Staff involved in Treasury Management shouldmust ensure that all dealings are carried out
in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy and Treasury Management
Policies which ensure that transactions are only undertaken with approved counterparties.
9.7.9 Record Keeping Procedures
Each unit of the Council conducting relevant business must maintain records for at least
five years of:
a)

client identification evidence obtained; and

b)

details of all relevant business transactions carried out for clients

The precise nature of the records is not prescribed by law, however, they must be capable
of providing an audit trail.
9.7.10 Further Information and Advice
For any further information or guidance, please contact the MLRO:
Graham Ebers
Tel 0118 974 6557 or
Email Graham.Ebers@wokingham.gov.uk

136

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

CHAPTER 9.8 -– PROSECUTION AND SANCTIONCASE DISPOSAL POLICY
9.8.1 Introduction
Wokingham Borough Council (The Council) will prosecute any person who commits a
criminal offence against the systems, processes and functions of the Council and/or
assaults or threatens any member or employee of the Council, if there is sufficient
evidence and if, in the opinion of the Council, it is in the public interest to do so.
9.8.1.1
When deciding if it is in the public interest, all officers authorised to decide whether to
prosecute on behalf of the Council will be guided by the Code for Crown Prosecutors.
Whenever it is appropriate, the Council will consider offering other sanctions as an
alternative to prosecution.
9.8.1.2
The Council will consider each case on its own merits before deciding whether or not to
prosecute. If it is the case that the Council has suffered a material/financial loss, it may
take separate action to stop further payments/ recover money, irrespective of whether it
decides to take criminal proceedings, and where steps to prevent further losses or recover
losses already incurred are not available or desirable in the course of any criminal
proceedings.
9.8.1.3
The Council authorises case disposal decisions to be made in accordance with the
guidance in the Crown Prosecution Service guidance on charging responsibility, noting
that for ‘CPS’ will be read ‘Legal Services’ and for ‘police’ will be read ‘investigation
managers’, in so far as this is possible.
9.8.2 Alternatives to Prosecution - Cautions
In the issuing of Cautions the Council will be guided by the relevant statutory Guidance,
currently the Ministry of Justice – Simple Caution for Adult Offender guidance.
9.8.3 Alternatives to Prosecution - Statutory Sanctions
The Council may consider a Statutory Sanction, whether a monetary penalty or otherwise,
as an alternative to prosecution for an offence where the imposition or offer of such a
sanction for the specified offence or offences is prescribed by law.
9.8.4 Code for Crown Prosecutors – The Evidential Test
When making a decision on whether to prosecute, the Council will first consider whether
there is sufficient, admissible evidence :
a)

Iis there sufficient evidence of the commission of an offence to provide a realistic
prospect of conviction? And

b)

iIs the evidence reliable and able to be used in court?

9.8.5 Code for Crown Prosecutors – The Public Interest Test
Once the Evidential Test has been satisfied, the Council will then consider whether the
Public Interest Test is satisfied. The Public Interest Test will be assessed following the
guidance in the “Code for Crown Prosecutors” to ensure that any prosecution is in the
public interest.

137

Chapter updated June 2020March 2016

9.8.6 Other Sanctions or Penalties
Where a person engages in conduct which is not criminal, but is otherwise prohibited by
legal statue or regulation applicable to the functions of the Council, or fails in their legal
obligation to the Council, the Council may consider the imposition or offer of a sanction
and/or monetary penalty where to impose a monetary penalty or sanction for the given
circumstances is prescribed by law. The Council may also offer such sanctions and/or
monetary penalties where a person undertakes criminal conduct but the council determine
that a prosecution is not to be undertaken for any reason.
9.8.7 Investigation Costs
In all cases where the Ccouncil is put to the cost of an investigation (and this may also
include, but is not limited to, costs associated with civil and/or criminal proceedings and
enforcement action), the Ccouncil will seek to recover those costs from the party whose
conduct has caused those costs.
9.8.7.1
In cases where legislation allows the responsible party to be billed for costs, the Council
will normally do this. In litigated cases, the Ccouncil will normally seek to recover all costs
through the courts, as part of the relevant litigation. In other cases, the Ccouncil will
always consider seeking the cost directly from any party whose actions have given rise to
the .costs, either by voluntary contribution or by taking legal action to recover the costs.
9.8.8 Criminal Proceedings
The Council adopts the National File Standard as its approved method of file preparation
in all cases to be heard in the criminal courts.

138

ChapterNew Chapter updated June 2020 March 2018

CHAPTER 9.9 – ACQUISITION OF COMMUNICATIONS DATA AND USE OF COVERT
SURVEILLANCE AND COVERT HUMAN INTELLIGENCE SOURCES POLICY
(Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 / Investigatory Powers Act 2016)
9.9.1 Introduction
Officers and employees of (and contractors working on behalf of) Wokingham Borough
Council may, in the course of their investigatory, regulatory and enforcement duties, need
to make observations of persons in a covert manner, to use a Covert Human Intelligence
Source or to acquire Communications Data. These techniques may be needed whether
the subject of the investigation is a member of the public, the owner of a business or a
Council employee.
By its very nature, this sort of action is potentially intrusive and so it is extremely important
that there is a very strict control on what is appropriate and that, where such action is
needed, it is properly regulated in order to comply with Legislation and to protect the
individual’s rights of privacy.
Privacy is a right, but in any democratic society, it is not an absolute right. The right to a
private and family life, as set out in the European Convention on Human Rights, must be
balanced with the right of other citizens to live safely and freely, which is the most basic
function that every citizen looks to the state to perform.
Drawing on the principles set out in the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
(RIPA), the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (IPA) and the Data Protection Act 20181998
(DPA), this policy sets out the Council’s approach to Covert Surveillance, the use of Covert
Human Intelligence Sources and the acquisition of Communications Data.
The policy also sets out Members’ oversight of this area, adopts a set of procedures and
appoints appropriate officers to ensure that these areas are properly controlled and
regulated.
9.9.2 Policy
It is the policy of Wokingham Borough Council (the Council) that all Covert Surveillance,
the use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources (informants) and the acquisition of
Communications Data by those working for or on behalf of this Council (investigators) will
be carried out in accordance with this policy and the associated procedure (the RIPA
Procedure). Any member, officer or employee who deliberately or recklessly breaches this
policy will normally be considered to have committed an act of gross misconduct and will
be dealt with accordingly.
9.9.2.1
In so far as the RIPA allows, Covert Surveillance and the use of Covert Human
Intelligence Sources (informants) will always be subject to the RIPA application process.
(This does NOT affect monitoring activities where the actions undertaken do not amount to
covert surveillance.) Where officers wish to undertake covert surveillance or use
informants but where RIPA is not available, a similar process of considering the
proportionality and necessity of any such activities must be carried out before the activities
are undertaken and approval gained from a RIPA authorising officer. Officers are
instructed to consider when online investigations, where actions go beyond the scope of
open source enquiries, would meet the criteria for covert investigations and to obtain
relevant authorisations in those cases.

139

ChapterNew Chapter updated June 2020 March 2018

140

Chapter updated June 2020New Chapter March 2018

9.9.2.2
When acquiring Communications Data officers are instructed to use the RIPA process, as
amended byset out in the Investigatory Powers Act 2016IPA and the associated
Communications Data Code of Practice, unless they are doing so with the consent of the
data subject. DPA requests and other powers may NOT be used to seek the disclosure of
Communications Data. Communications data may only be obtained using RIPA powers
for the applicable crime purposepurposes of investigating a criminal offence. (Note that
the guidance in the statutory code of practice takes precedence over any contrary content
of a public authority’s internal advice or guidance.)
9.9.2.3
The Council resolves to maintain membership of the National Anti-Fraud Network, so that
the relevant sections of the IPA and the associated Communications Data Code of
Practice may be complied with.
9.9.3 Appointments
The Council appoints the Chief Executive as the Senior Authorising Officer (SAO) for RIPA
purposes and as Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for all purposes under RIPA and IPA..
9.9.3.1
The Council appoints the Assistant Director, Governance as the RIPA Monitoring Officer
(RMO) to monitor the use of covert techniques within this Council (whether using the RIPA
or non-RIPA processes) and reports to members on the activities the policy covers. They
are also directed to ensure that appropriate training is made available to RIPA Authorising
Officers (AOs), IPA Verifying Officers (VOs) and applicants when it is required.
9.9.3.2
The Council directs that only those appointed by this policy as AOs and VOs may
authorise covert surveillance, the use of informants or the acquisition of communications
data. In so far as is practical and possible, the council intends that the same officers
should be nominated as both AOs and VOs.
9.9.3.31
The Council appoints Directors and Assistant Directors to who meet the training criteria as
AOs, . In addition, there are identified officers trained as AOs, subject to a maximum
number of six (including the SAO) at any given time. The Council instructs the RMO to
maintain a list of all those currently authorised as part of the RIPA / IPA Procedures.
9.9.3.4
In order for the Council’s RIPA authorisations to take effect, they must be approved by a
Magistrate. The chief legal officer is instructed to authorise all those who may need to
apply to a Magistrate to appear for that purpose for the Council. The RMO is directed to
maintain a list, as part of the RIPA Procedures, of all those so authorised.
9.9.3.5
The Council appoints Directors and Assistant Directors who meet the training criteria as
VOs, subject to a maximum number of six at any given time. The Council instructs the
RMO to maintain a list of all those currently authorised as part of the RIPA / IPA
Procedures.

141

Chapter updated June 2020New Chapter March 2018

The Council directs the SAO to appoint such persons as he may from time to time see fit
to be Single Points of Contact (SPOC) (or to make such other arrangements as he deems
appropriate) for the purposes of acquiring communications data by the use of RIPA.
9.9.3.2
In order for the Council’s RIPA authorisations to take effect, they must be approved by a
Magistrate. The chief legal officer is instructed to authorise all those who may need to
apply to a Magistrate to appear for that purpose for the Council. The RMO is directed to
maintain a list, as part of the RIPA Procedures, of all those so authorised.

142

Chapter updated June 2020New Chapter March 2018

9.9.4 Oversight and Reporting
The RMO shall report to elected Members on the use of RIPA regulated activity by officers
of the Council every six months. Such a report shall be presented to the Members (or to
such a sub-committee as the full council shall deem appropriate to constitute for oversight
purposes) by the RMO and the SRO. The report must not contain any information that
identifies specific persons or operations but must be clear about the nature of the
operations carried out and the product obtained.

9.9.4.1
Alongside this report, the RMO and SRO will report details of ‘Non-RIPA’ surveillance
undertaken or informants used in precisely the same fashion.

143

New Chapter updated June 2020March 2018

9.9.4.21
Elected Members shall have oversight of the Council’s policy and shall review that policy
annually should it be deemed by the RMO that significant changes have been made. At
that review (or following any six-monthly report) elected Members shall make such
amendments as they deem necessary to the Council’s policy, and may give such
directions as they deem necessary to the RMO and SRO in order to ensure that the
Council’s policy is followed.
9.9.4.3
Elected Members shall not interfere in individual authorisations. Their function is to, with
reference to the reports, satisfy themselves that the Council’s policy is robust and that it is
being followed by all officers involved in this area. Although it is elected members who are
accountable to the public for council actions, it is essential that there should be no
possibility of political interference in law enforcement operations
9.9.5 RIPA / IPA Procedures
The RMO is instructed to create a set of procedures that provide instruction and guidance
for the use of surveillance and informants, and the acquisition of communications data.
They are further instructed to maintain and update the RIPA / IPA Procedures, ensuring
that they continue to be both lawful and examples of best practice.
9.9.5.1
The reference to ‘maintain and update’ in this section includes the duty to remove AOs /
VOs from the list if they cease to be employed in a relevant role or if they no longer satisfy
the requirements to be an AO / VO, and the right to add names to that list so long as :
a) they satisfy the policy and regulatory requirements ; and
b) at no time does the number of AOs exceed six.
If a change is required, in the opinion of the RMO, in order to comply with this part, they
are authorised to make that change without prior approval from any person.
The RMO must report any changes made under this section to Members when they
undertake their annual oversight of the Policy, as set out above.

9.9.5.2
All managers are required to ensure that their staff understand that covert investigation
techniques may only be used in accordance with this policy and the associated
procedures.

144

New Chapter updated June 2020March 2018

9.9.6 Training
In accordance with this Code of Practice, AOs / VOs must receive full training in the use of
their powers. They must be assessed at the end of the training, to ensure competence,
and must undertake refresher training at least every two years. Training will be arranged
by the RMO. Designated AOs officers who do not meet the required standard, or who
exceed the training intervals, are prohibited from authorising applications until they have
met the requirements of this paragraph. AOs and VOs must have an awareness of
appropriate investigative techniques, Data Protection and Human Rights Legislation.
9.9.6.1
Those officers who actually carry out surveillance work must be adequately trained prior to
any surveillance being undertaken. A corporate training programme will has been
developed to ensure that AOs, VOs and staff undertaking relevant investigations are fully
aware of the legislative framework.
9.9.6.2
Senior management who have no direct involvement with covert investigation will
undertake a briefing at least biannually, to ensure that they have a good understanding of
the activities that might fall into the definition of covert investigation techniques.
9.9.7 Exceptions, Notes and Complaints
CCTV cameras operated by this Council are not covered by this policy, unless they are
used in a way that constitutes covert surveillance; only under those circumstances must
the provisions of this policy and the RIPA Procedures be followed.
Interception of communications, if it is done as part of normal business practice, does NOT
fall into the definition of acquisition of communications data. (This includes, but is not
limited to opening of post for distribution, logging of telephone calls, for the purpose of cost
allocation, reimbursement, benchmarking, etc.; logging E Mails and internet access for the
purpose of private reimbursement.)
9.9.7.1
If any person wishes to make a complaint about anything to which this policy applies is
invited to use the Council’s Complaints Procedure. Any complaint received will be treated
as serious and investigated in line with this Council’s policy on complaints. Regardless of
this, the detail of an operation, or indeed its existence, must never be admitted to as part
of a complaint. This does not mean it will not be investigated, just that the result of any
investigation would be entirely confidential and not disclosed to the complainant.
9.9.8 Adoption and Amendment of the Policy
This version of the Policy was agreed prior to its adoption being recommended to Council
via the Constitution Review Group on x7 xxxx xxxxFebruary 2018 after which it will caome
into immediate effect. It replaces all previous policies on these subjects.

145

Chapter updated June 2020November 2013

146

Agenda Item 11.
TITLE

Local Code of Corporate Governance

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Audit Committee on 29 July 2020

WARD

None Specific

DIRECTOR

Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Resources &
Assets - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Ensuring that the Local Code of Corporate Governance is kept up-to-date and
demonstrates the Council’s commitment to ensuring high quality public services. In
promoting the principles of accountability and effective governance, the Council is
providing stakeholders with greater awareness of its arrangements and clarity on the
expected principles and behaviours to which the Council will operate.
RECOMMENDATION
The Audit Committee is asked:1)
To review and comment on the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance
(Appendix A); and
2)

To recommend to Council the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the Audit Committee is responsible for
considering the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing
necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice.
The current Local Code of Corporate Governance has been in place since its adoption by
the Audit Committee in June 2016. Since that date, the Council’s governance
arrangements have evolved further including the publication earlier this year of the
Community Vision and Corporate Delivery Plan.
Wokingham Borough Council’s Local Code is consistent with the principles of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework which sets on best practice for local government corporate
governance. The principles and sub-principles expressed in the Framework have been
considered, and all continue to be relevant.
The major change to the Local Code is the inclusion of evidence sources which helps to
highlight the various systems, policies and processes that demonstrate how the Council
complies with and fulfils the requirements of its Code.
The revised Code has been updated in the format suggested following a review of good
practice from other local authorities. This provides clarity for Members, Officers and
stakeholders about how the organisation uses the principles of the Code in practice.

147

Following Audit Committee’s review and approval, the suggested approval route will be to
recommend the revised Code to Council via the Constitution Review Working Group.
Council would receive the recommended Code at its meeting in September. This process
would also be supplemented by online training. Following this process would help in
raising awareness of the Code amongst Officers and Members.

Background
Local Government Corporate Governance
1.1

Good governance is about ensuring that the Council does the right things, in the
right way, in a timely, open, and accountable manner. It must therefore include
the systems, processes, cultures and values by which services are directed and
controlled, and by which we are accountable to, and engage with, our
stakeholders and communities.

1.2

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and the
Society of Local Authority of Chief Executives (SOLACE) have provided best
practice guidance on establishing a Local Code of Corporate Governance. This
was originally published in 2001 and most recently updated in 2016: Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government – Framework.

1.3

Wokingham Borough Council has previously approved and adopted a Local
Code of Corporate Governance. The Code has subsequently been reviewed
and updated to reflect best practice and organisational changes, most recently
in June 2016.

1.4

Wokingham Borough Council’s Code is consistent with the principles of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework.

1.5

The CIPFA/SOLACE guidance defines the seven core principles (A – G), each
supported by sub-principles that should underpin the governance framework of
a local authority:A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values,
and respecting the rule of law
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes
E. Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership and
the individuals within it
F. Managing risk and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver
effective accountability

1.6

The Code articulates the expected standards, principles and values by which
Wokingham Borough Council Officers and Members will operate. There should
be clear links between the principles of the Code, and the governance framework

148

of strategies, policies and procedures that underpin the Code; one outcome of
revising the Code has been to clarify these links.
Analysis of Issues
2.1

The current Code that is published on the Council’s website has been reviewed
at the start of the 2019-20 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) process, to
ensure that it remains fit for purpose.

2.2

The Code has been assessed to reflect the position of the Council particularly in
the light of the new Community Vision and Corporate Delivery Plan.

2.3

The principles and sub-principles expressed in the Code have been considered,
and all continue to be relevant.

2.4

The major change to the Code is the inclusion of evidence sources. Failing to
capture all relevant evidence sources may undermine the quality of the AGS
process and increase the risk of significant governance issues emerging outside
of the AGS process.

2.5

Including the evidence sources highlights the various systems, policies and
processes which demonstrate how the Council complies with and fulfils the
requirements of its Code. It also provides assurance that these are as
comprehensive and wide ranging as possible, therefore enhancing the quality of
the AGS process.

2.6

The revised Code has been updated in the format suggested following a review
of good practice from other local authorities. This provides clarity for Members,
Officers and stakeholders about how the organisation uses the principles of the
Code in practice.

2.7

The updated Code is presented to the July 2020 Audit Committee for
consideration. The suggested approval process would be for Audit Committee to
receive, review and recommend the revised Code to Council via the Constitution
Review Working Group. Council would receive the recommended Code at its
meeting in September. This process would also be supplemented by online
training. Following this process would help in raising awareness of the Code
amongst Officers and Members.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result of
the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent reductions
to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough Council will be
required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the next three years and
all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)

£0

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

149

Revenue or
Capital?
Revenue

Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

£0

Yes

Revenue

£0

Yes

Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
Good governance leads to good management, good performance and good
stewardship of public money, good public engagement and ultimately good outcomes
for residents and service users. However, there are costs associated with embedding
and continuing good governance practices, and as the Council’s organisational
structures develop, the costs associated with governance need to be monitored to
ensure they remain proportionate.
Cross-Council Implications
Achieving good governance affects all aspects of the Council’s services.
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
Not applicable
List of Background Papers
CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – Framework 2016
Contact Andrew Moulton
Telephone No Tel: 07747 777298

Service Governance
Email
andrew.moulton@wokingham.gov.uk

150

Wokingham Borough Council

Local Code of Corporate Governance

July 2020

151

1

1. Delivering Good Governance
1.1
Good governance is everyone’s responsibility. The Leader of the Council and the
Chief Executive have a special leadership role as custodians of the Council’s
governance arrangements.
1.2

Each year an Annual Governance Statement is published with the Statement of
Accounts (as required by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015). This
follows a review on the effectiveness of the Council’s system of internal control and
governance.

1.3

Good governance at Wokingham Borough Council is delivered and guided by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local
Authority of Chief Executives (SOLACE): Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government – Framework (2016) and the International Framework: Good
Governance in the Public Sector (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy / International Federation of Accountants, 2014).

1.4

The ‘International Framework’ defines governance as follows: “Governance
comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for
stakeholders are defined and achieved”.
It also states that:
“To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and
individuals working for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s
objectives while acting in the public interest at all times.
Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for society,
which should result in positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders”.

1.5

The Foreword to the ‘Framework’ sets out that “Good governance requires a
qualitative approach, not a mindless quantitative one. It requires integrity,
objectivity, transparency, and accountability, built on a foundation of intellectual
honesty. These principles are already embedded throughout this Framework, but it
should be read with these fundamentals firmly in mind”.

1.6

The diagram below shows how the various principles of good governance in the
public sector relate to each other.

152

2

2. The Principles of Good Governance
2.1

The Framework requires governance processes and structures to focus on the
attainment of sustainable outcomes for the economy, society and the environment.

2.2

Principles A and B are overarching principles and spread through all other principles
C to G and ensure that the Council achieves its intended outcomes while acting in
the public interest at all times. This requires:
A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values,
and respecting the rule of law.
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

2.3

In addition to the overarching requirements for acting in the public interest in
principles A and B, achieving good governance in the public sector also requires
effective arrangements for:
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and
environmental benefits.
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes.
E. Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and
the individuals within it.

153

3

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management.
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver
effective accountability.
3. Monitoring and Review
3.1

The Council will monitor its governance arrangements for their effectiveness in
practice and will review them on a continuing basis to ensure that they are up to
date. The process of review to produce the Annual Governance Statement will assess
in more detail how the Council has performed in its adherence to the adopted
principles of governance detailed in this code.

3.2

On an annual basis, the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council will publish an
Annual Governance Statement which will:
 Assess how the Council has complied with this Code of Corporate Governance;
 Provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements;
 Provide details of how continual improvement in the systems of governance will be
achieved.

4. Certification
We hereby endorse our commitment to this Code of Corporate Governance and will
ensure that the Council continues to review, evaluate and develop the Council’s
Governance arrangements to ensure continuous improvement of the Council’s
systems.

Leader of the Council – John Halsall

Chief Executive – Susan Parsonage

154

4

How the Council ensures good governance:
Principle A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law.
To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is
committed to:

This is demonstrated by:

 Ensure that members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public
interest is visibly and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation.
 Ensure that members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating principles or values for the
organisation and its staff and that they are communicated and understood. These will build on the Seven
Principles of Public Life (The Nolan Principles).
 Lead by example and using the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision
making and other actions.
 Demonstrate, communicate and embed the standard operating principles or values through appropriate
policies and processes, which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating
effectively.

 The Council’s values
 The Community Vison and
Corporate Delivery Plan
 The Constitution
 Standards Committee
 Member and Officer Codes of
Conduct
 Member Declarations of Interests,
Register of Interests and details of
Gifts and Hospitality are published
on the Council’s website
 Officer declarations of interest
 Officer job descriptions and
Appraisals
 Member and Officer induction
and training
 Whistleblowing and counter-fraud
arrangements

Demonstrating
strong
commitment to
ethical values.

 Seek to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical standards and performance.
 Underpin personal behaviour with ethical values and ensure they permeate all aspects of the
organisation’s culture and operation.
 Develop and maintain robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values.
 Ensure that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity
and in compliance with ethical standards expected by the organisation.

 The Council’s values
 The Constitution
 Standards Committee
 Overview & Scrutiny Committees
 Regulatory and other Committees
 Codes of Conduct
 Member and Officer induction
and training
 Member Declarations of Interests,
Register of Interests and details of

155

Supporting
Principles
Behaving with
integrity.

5

Gifts and Hospitality are published
on the Council’s website
 Officer declarations of interest
 Equality Policy / BAME Group
 Procurement and Contract rules,
and procedures

Respecting the
rule of law.

 Ensure that members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the law as well as
adhering to relevant laws and regulations.
 Create the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders, and members, are
able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory requirements.
 Strive to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens, communities and other
Stakeholders.
 Deal with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively.
 Ensure that corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively.

156

 Legal and finance senior officers
review reports going for Member
decision making.
 Project Managers have
responsibility to secure legal and
finance advice for projects
 Corporate complaints,
compliments and monitoring
procedures.
 Ombudsman process
 Companies – Compliance with
Companies Act and Directors
duties
 Head of Paid Service post / advice
 S151 officer post / advice
 Monitoring Officer post / advice
 The Constitution
 Roles, responsibilities and
competencies
 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy
 Whistleblowing Policy
 Data Protection Policy

6

Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is
committed to:

This is demonstrated by:

 Ensure an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the organisation’s
commitment to openness.
 Make decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes.
 Provide clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and explanations to
Stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, rationale and considerations used. In due course,
ensure that the impact and consequences of those decisions are clear.
 Use formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective
interventions / courses of action.

 The Council’s values
 The Community Vison and
Corporate Delivery Plan
 Communication Strategy / Policy
 WBC website
 Committee meetings
documentation, standard report
templates and minutes
 Call-in periods for Executive
decisions
 Overview & Scrutiny panels
 Forward Plan
 Publication Scheme
 Consultation Policy, webpage and
e-Petitions
 Transparency data published
 Freedom of Information processes
 HR Policies and procedures
 Equality Framework and Equality
Impact Assessments

Engaging
stakeholders
effectively,
including
individual
citizens and
service users.

 Establish a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve
communities, individual citizens, service users and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other)
provision is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes.
 Ensure that communication methods are effective and that members and officers are clear about their
roles with regard to community engagement.
 Encourage, collect and evaluate the views and experiences of communities, citizens, service users and
organisations of different backgrounds including reference to future needs.
 Implement effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how views have been taken into
account.
 Balance feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure
inclusivity
 Take account of the impact of decisions on future generations of tax payers and service users.

 Consultation Policy, webpage and
e-Petitions
 Corporate complaints,
compliments and monitoring
procedures
 Customer Service Strategy
 Public attendance at meetings and
web stream
 Annual Budget consultation
 Wokingham Borough News
surveys

157

Supporting
Principles
Openness.

7

Engaging
comprehensively
with
institutional
stakeholders.

 Effectively engage with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended
outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and
sustainably.
 Develop formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used more efficiently and
outcomes achieved more effectively.
 Ensure that partnerships are based on:
trust;
a shared commitment to change;
a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners; and,
- that the added value of partnership working is explicit.

 The Community Vison and
Corporate Delivery Plan
 Local Enterprise Partnership
Arrangements
 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
 Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy
 Community Safety Partnership
 Berkshire West Children’s
Safeguarding partnership
 Wokingham Integrated
Partnership
 Public Protection Partnership

Principle C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits.

158

Supporting
Principles
Defining
outcomes.

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is
committed to:

This is demonstrated by:

 Have a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended
outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation’s
overall strategy, planning and other decisions.
 Specify the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could
be immediately or over the course of a year or longer.
 Deliver defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available.
 Identify and manage risks to the achievement of outcomes.
 Manage service users’ expectations effectively with regard to determining priorities and making the best
use of the resources available.

 The Community Vison and
Corporate Delivery Plan
 Directorate and Service Plans
 Medium Term Financial Plan
 Capital Strategy
 Statement of Accounts
 Corporate Risk Register and
project risk assessments
 Performance Framework and
reporting to Officers and
Members

Sustainable
economic,
social, and
environmental
benefits.

 Consider and balance the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies and plans when
taking decisions about service provision.
 Take a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk and acting transparently
where there are potential conflicts between the organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors
such as the political cycle or financial constraints.
 Determine the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between achieving the

 Standard templates for Business
Cases and Executive papers
 MTFP, Capital and Investment
Strategies
 The Community Vison and
Corporate Delivery Plan

8

various economic, social and environmental benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to
ensure appropriate trade-offs.
 Ensure fair and equal access to services.

 Directorate and Service Plans
 Adults social care strategies and
policies
 Children’s social care strategies
and policies.
 Climate emergency objectives.
 Air Quality Management Group
 Health & Wellbeing Strategy
 Development and Planning
policies
 Housing policies
 Equality Framework and Equality
Impact Assessments

Principle D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes.

159

Supporting
Principles
Determining
interventions.

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is
committed to:

This is demonstrated by:

 Ensure that decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options indicating how
intended outcomes would be achieved and associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved
however services are provided.
 Consider feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions about service improvements or
where services are no longer required in order to prioritise competing demands within limited resources
available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts.

 Standard templates for Business
Cases and Executive papers
 Consultation Policy, webpage and
e-Petitions
 Corporate complaints,
compliments and monitoring
procedures.
 Annual Budget consultation

Planning
interventions.

 Establish and implement robust planning and control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans,
priorities and targets.
 Engage with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services and other courses of action
should be planned and delivered.
 Consider and monitor risks facing each partner when working collaboratively, including shared risks.
 Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering goods and services can
be adapted to changing circumstances.
 Establish appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify

 The Community Vison and
Corporate Delivery Plan
 Directorate and Service Plans
 MTFP, Capital and Investment
Strategies.
 Consultation Policy, webpage and
e-Petitions
 Performance Framework and

9

Optimising
achievement of
intended
outcomes.

how the performance of services and projects is to be measured.
 Ensure that capacity exists to generate the information required to review service quality regularly.
 Prepare budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies and the medium term financial plan.
 Inform medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital
expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy.

reporting to Officers and
Members
 Corporate and service risk
registers
 Project management policies and
guidance

 Ensure that the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities, affordability and
other resource constraints.
 Ensure that the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full cost of operations over the
medium and longer term.
 Ensure that the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing decisions on significant
delivery issues or responses to changes in the external environment that may arise during the budgetary
period in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage.
 Ensure that the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and commissioning (The Public
Services (Social Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional benefit to the community…. over and
above the direct purchasing of goods, services and outcomes”.

 MTFP, Capital and Investment
Strategies
 Capital and revenue monitoring
and reporting to officers and
Members
 Annual budget consultation
 Consultation Policy, webpage and
e-Petitions
 Resident surveys

160

Principle E - Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it.
Supporting
Principles
Developing the
entity’s
capacity.

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is
committed to:

This is demonstrated by:

 Review operations, performance and use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing
effectiveness.
 Improve resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as benchmarking and other
options in order to determine how resources are allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved
effectively and efficiently.
 Recognise the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved
 Develop and maintain an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources.

 The Community Vison and
Corporate Delivery Plan
 Asset Management Plan
 Highways Asset Management
Strategy
 Benchmarking within Directorate
and Service plans
 Local Enterprise Partnership
Arrangements
 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
 Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy
 Community Safety Partnership
 Berkshire West Children’s

10

Safeguarding partnership
 Wokingham Integrated
Partnership
 Public Protection Partnership
 Shared Services arrangements
 Workforce plan

Developing the
entity’s
leadership and
the capability
of individuals
within the
entity.

161

 Develop protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate with each other regarding their
respective roles early on in the relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is
maintained.
 Publish a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the
collective decision making of the governing body.
 Ensure that the leader and the chief executive have clearly defined and distinctive leadership roles within a
structure whereby the chief executive leads in implementing strategy and managing the delivery of
services and other outputs set by members and each provides a check and a balance for each other’s
authority.
 Develop the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve effective leadership and to enable
the organisation to respond successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic,
political and environmental changes and risks by:
Ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that
ongoing training and development matching individual and organisational requirements is available
and encouraged;
Ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil
their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their knowledge on a
continuing basis;
Ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including
lessons learnt from governance weaknesses both internal and external.
 Ensure that there are structures in place to encourage public participation.
 Take steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to constructive
feedback from peer review and inspections.
 Hold staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development
needs.
 Ensure that arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support
individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing.

 Member / officer protocol
 Constitution including delegated
powers
 Training plans for officers and
Members
 Standard induction and training
for both officers and Members
 Mandatory e-learning modules
 Intranet guidance, policies and
procedures
 Corporate recruitment processes
with job profiles and
competencies
 Appraisals and 121s
 Corporate staff surveys
 Apprenticeship scheme
 Coaching Cadre
 Peer Reviews – council and service
Specific
 Companies – Companies Act,
Articles of Association, Directors
duties
 Health and Wellbeing policies,
guidance and events

11

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management.
To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is
committed to:

This is demonstrated by:

 Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must be considered in all aspects
of decision making.
 Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and ensuring that they are working
effectively.
 Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated.

 Risk Management Strategy
 Corporate Risk Register
 Directorate and Service risk
Registers
 Standard templates for Executive
decision making
 Audit Committee
 Overview & Scrutiny panels
 Audit & Investigation service

Managing
performance.

 Monitor service delivery effectively including planning, specification, execution and independent post
implementation review
 Make decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice pointing out the implications and
risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and environmental position and outlook.
 Ensure that an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which provides constructive challenge and
debate on policies and objectives before, during and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the
organisation’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is responsible.
 Provide members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress
towards outcome achievement.
 Ensure that there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation
reporting (e.g. financial statements).

 Performance reporting framework
to officers and Members
 Standard templates for Executive
decision making
 Overview & Scrutiny panels and
quarterly performance reporting
to them
 Directorate and Service plans
 MTFP
 Capital and revenue budget
Monitoring
 Statement of Accounts
 Project monitoring
 Internal and External Audit reports
 Peer reviews / inspections

Robust internal
control.

 Align the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving objectives.
 Evaluate and monitor risk management and internal control on a regular basis.
 Ensure that effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in place.
 Ensure that additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of
governance, risk management and control is provided by the internal auditor.
 Ensure an audit committee which is independent of the executive and accountable to the governing body:

 Audit & Investigation annual
plan
 External Audit
 Audit Committee
 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy
 Whistleblowing Policy

162

Supporting
Principles
Managing risk.

12

-

Provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for managing risk and
maintaining an effective control environment; and,
That its recommendations are listened to and acted upon.

 Anti-Money Laundering Policy
 Financial Procedure Rules,
Regulations and Contract Standing
Orders
 Chief Audit Executive annual
report
 Annual Governance Statement
 Risk Management Strategy and
Policy

 Ensure that financial management supports both long term achievement of outcomes and short-term
financial and operational performance.
 Ensure that well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels of planning and control,
including management of financial risks and controls.

 MTFP
 Financial Regulations / Contract
Standing Orders
 Capital and revenue reporting to
officers and Members
 Standard templates for Executive
decision making
 Annual budget process

Managing data

 Ensure that effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data,
including processes to safeguard personal data.
 Ensure that effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other
bodies.
 Review and audit regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance
monitoring.

 Information Security and
Acceptable Use of ICT Policy
 Data Protection / GDPR
Guidelines
 Privacy Notices
 Mandatory GDPR e-learning
 Data sharing agreements with
Partners
 E-mail security classification
 Freedom of Information policy
 Records Retention guidance
 Internal Audit
 Caldicott Guardians

163

Strong public
financial
management.

13

Principle G - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability.
Supporting
To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is
Principles
committed to:
 Write and communicate reports for the public and other stakeholders in a fair, balanced and
Implementing
understandable style appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and
good practices
interrogate.
in transparency.
 Strike a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands and
enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide and for users to understand.

This is demonstrated by:

164

 Standard templates for public
reports
 Committee Agendas, papers and
minutes published
 Forward Plan
 Publication Scheme
 Only using Part 2 reporting for the
purposes intended
 Website streaming of meetings
and public questions
 Transparency Data published
 Annual Governance Statement
 Companies – Companies House
reporting and submissions

Implementing
good practices
in reporting.

 Report at least annually on performance, value for money and stewardship of resources to stakeholders in
a timely and understandable way.
 Ensure that members and senior management own the results reported.
 Ensure that robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles contained in this
framework have been applied and publishing the results on this assessment, including an action plan for
improvement and evidence to demonstrate good governance (the Annual Governance Statement).
 Ensure that this Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service organisations as appropriate.
 Ensure the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a
consistent and timely basis and the statements allow for comparison with other, similar organisations.

 Statement of Accounts
 Annual Governance Statement
and improvement plan
 Annual External Audit report and
Letter

Assurance and
effective
accountability.

 Ensure that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are acted upon.
 Ensure that an effective internal audit service with direct access to members is in place, providing
assurance with regard to governance arrangements and that recommendations are acted upon.
 Welcome peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing
recommendations.
 Gain assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and that this is evidenced
in the Annual Governance Statement.

 External Audit reporting to Audit
Committee
 Internal Audit reporting to Audit
Committee
 Peer reviews / inspections
published results and monitoring
of outcomes

14

 Ensure that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and the need for wider
public accountability has been recognised and met.

 Overview & Scrutiny panels
 Partnerships Governance
Protocol

165
15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12.
TITLE

Annual Governance Statement 2019/20

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Audit Committee on 29 July 2020

WARD

None Specific

DIRECTOR

Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Resources &
Assets - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Provides assurance on the Council’s governance arrangements including any areas
where improvement is required.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Audit Committee notes the report and:a) Considers the draft 2019/20 AGS, identifying any specific matters which should
be brought to the attention of Council or Executive.
b) Recommends the 2019/20 AGS to the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive
for signature and publication with the council’s Statement of Accounts.
c) Requests that update reports be provided to the Audit Committee summarising
progress in achieving the governance improvement action plan on those areas
identified as requiring action in the AGS Improvement Plan.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
This report presents the draft 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement (AGS), including
the AGS Improvement Plan, attached as Appendix 1.
It recommends that the Audit Committee considers the content and recommends the
2019/20 AGS to the Leader and Chief Executive for signature and presentation with the
Annual Statement of Accounts.
The recommendation is being made to ensure that the Council meets its statutory
requirements and those of the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference to be satisfied that
the Council has in place appropriate corporate governance systems and controls.
A governance improvement plan is included with the AGS setting out those areas
identified as exceptions and therefore requiring attention. It is recommended that the
Audit Committee closely monitors progress in implementing these actions and receives
an update later in the municipal year.

Background
The annual review of the council’s governance framework is required under the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015 which state that ‘A relevant authority must ensure that is has a

167

sound system of internal control’ (Regulation 3) and ‘each financial year conduct a review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and prepare an annual governance
statement’ (Regulation 10).
The AGS is required to demonstrate that systems and processes are in place to ensure
that Council business is conducted lawfully and in accordance with proper standards and
to identify areas where compliance could be improved.
The AGS has been produced by the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT). This followed
consideration of a number of Management Assurance Statements (MAS) produced by the
Council’s five Directors, in conjunction with their senior management teams.
Analysis
The draft AGS and Improvement Plan for 2019/20 are set out in Appendix 1 to this report.
Once recommended by the Audit Committee, the AGS is required to be signed off by the
Chief Executive and the Leader of Council and presented with the council’s 2019/20
Statement of Accounts to fulfil the council’s statutory obligations. It is currently planned to
present to the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts to the September meeting of the Audit
Committee. The external auditor is then required to comment on the content of the AGS in
terms of whether it correctly represents the organisation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result of
the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent reductions
to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough Council will be
required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the next three years and
all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

£0

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

£0

Yes

Revenue

£0

Yes

Revenue

Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
Good governance leads to good management, good performance and good
stewardship of public money, good public engagement and ultimately good outcomes
for residents and service users. However, there are costs associated with embedding
and continuing good governance practices, and as the Council’s organisational
structures develop, the costs associated with governance need to be monitored to
ensure they remain proportionate.
Cross-Council Implications
Achieving good governance impacts all aspects of the Council’s services.

168

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
Not applicable
List of Background Papers
CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – Framework
Contact Andrew Moulton
Telephone No Tel: 07747 777298

Service Governance
Email
andrew.moulton@wokingham.gov.uk

169

This page is intentionally left blank

##

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - 2019-20
Scope of Responsibility
1.

Wokingham Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards. It needs to ensure that public money is
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

2.

The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In meeting this overall responsibility, the Council must put in place proper arrangements for
the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, including
arrangements for the management of risk.

3.

The Council has adopted a code of corporate governance (last reviewed in June 2020) which
is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accounting)/IFAC (International Federation of Accountants): International Framework:Good
Governance in the Public Sector.

4.

This statement explains how the Council delivers good governance and reviews the
effectiveness of these arrangements. It also meets the requirements of the Accounts and
Audit Regulations (2015), as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus)
(Amendment) Regulations 2020, which require the council to conduct a review, at least once
a year, on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and include an Annual
Governance Statement reporting on the review with the Statement of Accounts.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework
5.

The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by
which the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to,
engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement
of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery
of appropriate, cost-effective services.

6.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risks of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives, and therefore provides reasonable assurance of effectiveness.

7.

The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives. The
system is designed to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

171

Page 1 of 11

8.

The Council’s governance framework has been in place for the year ended 31 March 2020
and up to the date that the statement of accounts was approved.

The Governance Framework
9.

At Wokingham Borough Council good governance is everyone’s responsibility however the
Leader of the Council and Chief Executive acknowledge their leadership role in relation to
good governance.

10.

The Council’s governance framework has evolved over successive years and is defined in its
Local Code of Corporate Governance. This is reviewed annually to ensure its continuing
effectiveness with regard to the principles of the International Framework:Good Governance
in the Public Sector in delivering good governance, which are:
 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law.
 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits.
 Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes.
 Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it.
 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial
management.
 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit, to deliver effective
accountability.

11.

A brief description of the key elements of Governance Framework in place at Wokingham
Borough Council is included as Appendix A.

Review of Effectiveness
12.

Wokingham Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of
the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The
system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies and
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness.

13.

The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the senior managers within the
council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance
environment, the Chief Audit Executive’s (Assistant Director-Governance) annual report, and
by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

14.

The key elements of the review of effectiveness are:
 The council’s internal management processes, such as performance monitoring and
reporting; the staff performance appraisal framework; internal surveys of awareness of
corporate policies; monitoring of policies, such as the corporate complaints and health and
safety policies; and the corporate budget challenge process.
 The role of the Cabinet and committees, including overview & scrutiny panels, the Audit
Committee and Standards Committee

172

Page 2 of 11

 An annual self-assessment and management assurance statement signed by directors,
confirming that the Code of Conduct, Financial Standing Orders, Financial Regulations
and other corporate governance processes, e.g. Health & Safety, equalities duties, have
operated as intended within their directorates throughout the year. This also includes the
Council’s trading companies.
 The work of the Council’s overview & scrutiny panels.
 The work of EY, the Council’s external auditor.
 The annual report of the Chief Audit Executive provides an opinion to members on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system and on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the council’s risk management, control and governance process
 The work of the audit, governance and standards committee which includes responsibility
for monitoring the development and operation of corporate governance in the council.
 Other review agencies and inspectorates, e.g. Ofsted, CQC, etc.
15.

The review has been led by the Chief Audit Executive in collaboration with the Chief
Executive, the Corporate Leadership Team and Directorate Leadership Teams.

16.

The review has considered the following evidence:
a) Management Assurance Statements – Each Director, in conjunction with their Assistant
Directors, has completed a self-assessment covering the effectiveness of governance
arrangements in their area. The self-assessments, which have been reviewed by Internal
Audit, have been used to identify areas for improvement both at a service level and,
where, applicable, corporate level and inclusion in the improvement plan at Appendix 2.
b) The annual opinion of the Lead Specialist-Audit and Investigation, on the Council’s control
framework, delivered to the Audit Committee, as the body charged with governance.
c) Based upon the results of work undertaken during the year, it is the Lead Specialist overall
opinion that the Council has an adequate and effective governance, risk management and
control framework for 2019/20. Areas for improvement were identified in a number of
reviews and action plans agreed with senior management to resolve the control /
governance deficiencies identified.
d) External audit reports issued and reports from other agencies and inspectorates.

17.

The review has concluded that arrangements are fit for purpose and working effectively. A
small number of governance issues have been identified and in order to further strengthen
arrangements, an improvement plan to address these issues is set out in Appendix B.

18.

Review of 2018-19 Governance Issues
Table 1

AGS19
1

Governance issue

Current status

Internal Audits of the following areas
concluding a third level of assurance indicating
that a range of risk mitigation controls were
incomplete and risks not effectively managed.
Action plans are in place to improve these areas
o Housing Rent
o Debtors
o Shared Building Services

Progress has been made in all three
areas, with the 2019-20 internal audits
identifying an improvement in the
overall audit opinion for Housing Rent
and Debtors, and the Shared Building
Services key concerns were addressed,
leading up to the ceasing of the shared
arrangement with RBWM in April 2020.

173

Page 3 of 11

AGS19
2

A delay in the implementation of the finance
module for Technology Forge has limited the
information of rental payments due impacting
the effective management of the property
portfolio.

AGS19
3

In Children’s Services, staffing turnover and the
use of agency staff has adversely impacted
the service.

AGS19
4

In Adult Social Care, the fragmented statutory
pathway has meant a less effective service
for residents. The Executive decision in June
2019 to transfer some functions from Optalis
to the Council is designed to address this.

AGS19
5

During the last year, the Council’s senior
leadership team has seen significant turnover
and positions occupied by interim staff.
However, all posts (Chief Executive and Director
level) are now filled by permanent
appointments.

19.

Due to the priority of other corporate
IT projects during 2019-20 this has
progressed. The system should be
ready for User Acceptance Testing at
the end of July 2020 and with
successful testing, this should be live in
early August.
A permanent director and permanent
ADs are now in place.
Over the past 12 months, the use of
agency staff has remained steady,
however, the staff turnover dropped
noticeably in 2019-20 Quarter 2 and
this has been maintained.
In November 2019 the transfer of
functions and officers took place and
helped mitigate the statutory pathway
issues. During the year, governance has
been further strengthened through
recruitment to senior management
roles.
An updated five directorate corporate
structure was introduced in February
2020, and all posts are filled by
permanent appointments.

2019-20 Governance Issues
Table 2 (See also Appendix B – Improvement Plan)

Governance issue
AGS
20.1

HR Policies
Use of Market Supplements and Honorariums across the organisation are not always in
line with policy.

AGS
20.2

Public Sector Equality Duty
The Council has made progress in 2019/20 with all key decisions taken in the context of
Equality Impact Assessments.
However, further embedding of the Public Sector Equality Duty is required including
review of equality objectives.

AGS
20.3

Tree inspection
The approach to tree inspection on the highway set out in the Wokingham Highways
Inspection Policy (WHIP) was not in accordance with the Council’s adopted Tree
Inspection Framework (2016).
The operational practice has since been addressed and now consistent with the existing
policy but further work is underway to the review the existing policy.

AGS
20.4

Home to School Transport Appeals

174

Page 4 of 11

The Ombudsman recommended an appeal process be introduced for Home to School
Transport appeals. This has since been put in place.
AGS
20.5

Property Development
During 2019/20, the Council took over the management of former WHL development
sites which has identified governance areas for improvement.

AGS
20.6

Local Code of Corporate Governance
With the refresh of the Local Code of Corporate Governance, awareness needs to be
embedded with officers and Members, including training.

Conclusion
The Chief Executive has identified the actions required to strengthen these areas of governance and
will monitor their implementation (Refer Appendix 2).
Overall, the governance arrangements are substantially complete and generally effective but with
some improvements required. This is a reflection of the Council’s governance framework and the
management assurance statements, together with assurances from the Shared Audit and
Investigation work and External Audit, and supported by the systems and procedural controls in
place against identified risks and mitigating treatment measures.
The Council therefore concludes that its governance arrangements are fit for purpose.
Signed:
John Halsall,
Leader of the Council:

Date:

Susan Parsonage
Chief Executive:

Date:

175

Page 5 of 11

2020

2020

Appendix A
Annual Governance Statement 2019-20
Governance Framework – Key Elements for 2019-20

Principle A:
Behave with integrity,
demonstrating a strong
commitment to ethical values
and respect the rule of law.

 The Constitution sets out the how the Council operates; the
roles and responsibilities of Members, officers and the scrutiny
and review of functions; how decisions are made and the
procedures that are followed to ensure that these are
efficient, transparent and accountable to local people.
 Codes of Conduct are in place for officers and Members and
declare any financial interests, gifts or hospitality. Members
and officers are required to comply with approved policies.
 The council has a Standards Committee to promote and
maintain high standards of conduct by Members of the council
and deal with any allegations of a breach of their Code of
Conduct.
 The Council is committed to protecting any funds and property
and expects the highest standards of conduct from Members
and officers regarding the administration of financial affairs.
 The Council's Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy conforms to
legislative requirements and sets out steps to minimise the risk
of fraud, bribery, corruption and dishonesty and procedures
for dealing with actual or expected fraud.
 The Council is committed to achieving the highest possible
standards of openness and accountability in all its practices.
 The Council's Whistleblowing Policy sets out the options and
associated procedures for Council staff to raise concerns about
potentially illegal, unethical or immoral practice and
summarises expectations around handling the matter.
 The Council has a process for handling complaints, supported
by the Corporate Complaints Policy, setting out the guidance
on logging, handling and monitoring complaints. This is to help
drive service improvement across the Council.

Principle B
Ensuring openness and
comprehensive stakeholder
engagement.

 The Council has a dedicated Consultation webpage inviting
public contributions and also an e-Petition facility.
 The Leadership encourages an open and supportive culture.
 Committee meetings are streamed on the website with
reports and minutes available. There are call-in periods for
Executive and the Overview & Scrutiny panels review
performance.
 For 2020-21, an annual budget consultation was held at
various locations in the Borough.
 The Council complies with the Government Transparency Data
publication requirements and Freedom of Information laws.
 Well established corporate complaints, compliments and
monitoring procedures are in place, with a Customer Service
Strategy.

176

Page 6 of 11

 Wokingham has numerous partnership and shared service
arrangements in place encompassing services such as Health &
Wellbeing, Local Enterprise, Community Safety, Children’s
Safeguarding, Public Protection, Audit & Investigation, Legal.
Principle C
Defining outcomes in terms of
sustainable economic, social
and environmental benefits.

 Approval of a new corporate plan - Community Vison and
Corporate Delivery Plan.
 Directorate and Service Plans in place for the new
organisational structure.
 There is a Performance Framework and regular reporting to
officers and Members, and published on the website.
 The Medium Term Financial Plan sets out the finance forecasts
and are supported with Capital and Investment strategies.
 Climate Emergency objectives were set in the year and an Air
Quality Management Group instigated.
 There are standard templates for Business Cases and Executive
Papers to support decision making.
 There are numerous strategies and policies encompassing
services such as Children’s Social Care, Adult Social Care,
Planning and Development, Health & Wellbeing, Housing.

Principle D
Determining the interventions
necessary to optimise the
achievement of the intended
outcomes.

 The objectives and analysis of options are included in the
standard templates for business cases and Executive decisions.
 Papers are subject to review by Legal, Finance, Monitoring
Officer, etc, prior to submission.
 A Consultation Policy is in place, with a dedicated webpage
and a facility for e-Petitions.
 There is transparent reporting of Key Performance Indicators.
 Corporate strategy and operational planning are incorporated
within the Community Vison and Corporate Delivery Plan,
together with Directorate and Service Plans.
 Project Management policies and procedures guide the
supervision and administration of projects.
 The MTFP, Capital and Investment Strategies guide financial
activity with capital and revenue monitoring and reporting to
officers and Members.

Principle E
Developing the Council’s
capacity, including the
capability of its leadership
and the individuals within it.

 Training plans for officers and Members are in place with
standard induction and training. There are mandatory elearning modules with intranet guidance, policies and
procedures.
 Corporate recruitment processes include job profiles and
competencies.
 There are numerous partnerships and shared services to help
ensure that added value can be achieved.
 For the companies - Articles of Association are in place and
Directors’ duties are set out within the Companies Act.
 Appraisals and 121s are undertaken for officers, an
Apprenticeship scheme is in place and the Coaching Cadre is
there to support officers.

177

Page 7 of 11

Principle F
Managing risks and
performance through robust
internal control and strong
financial management.

 There has been a renewed focus on organisational risks and
are overseen by the Risk Management Strategy, Corporate Risk
Register and Directorate / Service risk registers.
 A performance management framework includes reporting to
officers, Members and the public.
 Overview & Scrutiny panels are in place and they receive
quarterly performance reporting.
 The Medium Term Financial Plan guides the finance resources
with performance reported in the annual Statement of
Accounts.
 The Audit & Investigation Plan aligns with corporate
Risks and the annual audit opinion comments on the
organisation’s control environment.
 Finance statements are reviewed annually by External Audit.
 The Audit Committee oversees the work of Finance, Audit &
Investigation and on risk management.
 Policies for Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Whistleblowing and
Anti-Money Laundering are in place.
 For the management of data, there are Data Protection / GDPR
Guidelines and mandatory GDPR e-learning.
 Data sharing agreements with partners are in place.

Principle G
Implementing good practices
in transparency, reporting and
audit, to deliver effective
accountability.

 Committee Agendas, papers and minutes are published and
only Part 2 reporting is used for the purposes intended
 There is website streaming of meetings and public questions.
 Government Transparency Data requirements are published.
 There is regular reporting on performance.
 For the Companies, the Companies House reporting and
submissions are met.
 There is publication of the Statement of Accounts, Annual
Governance Statement and improvement plan, and the Annual
External Audit report and Letter.
 There is publication of peer reviews / inspections, where
appropriate and monitoring of outcomes.
 There is Finance, Audit & Investigation and External audit
reporting to the Audit Committee.

178

Page 8 of 11

Appendix B
Annual Governance Statement 2019-20
Improvement Plan
Ref.
AGS 20.1

Area for Improvement
HR Policies
Use of Market Supplements and
Honorariums across the organisation
are not always in line with policy.

179
AGS 20.2

Public Sector Equality Duty
The Council has made progress in
2019/20 with all key decisions taken in
the context of Equality Impact
Assessments.

Actions
a. Move to single job evaluation
process

Owner
Keeley
Clements

Timescale
30/6/21

b. Reconsideration of job
description and role family
design

30/6/21

c. Review of pay & conditions to
reduce reliance on market
supplements

31/3/22

Improvement Outcome
Consistent, transparent
process of pay and reward in
line with Policy.

Executive review and approval of
Council’s equality objectives

Keeley
Clements

31/01/21

Full discharge of the Public
Sector Equality Duty.

a. Review existing policy to assess
its appropriateness with regard

Chris
Traill/

31/12/20

Effectively governed, riskbased approach to tree
inspections.

However, further embedding of the
Public Sector Equality Duty is required
including review of equality objectives.
AGS 20.3

Tree Inspection
The approach to tree inspection on the
highway set out in the Wokingham

Page 9 of 11

Highways Inspection Policy (WHIP) was
not in accordance with the Council’s
adopted Tree Inspection Framework
(2016).

to added focus on higher risk
trees.
b. Implement a system for
maintaining an effective audit
of inspections.

Keeley
Clements

A new appeals process is being
developed as part of the Policy
review that responds to the
Ombudsman recommendations
(introduction of a two stage
appeals process).

Keeley
Clements

The operational practice has since been
addressed and now consistent with the
existing policy.
AGS 20.4

Home to School Transport Appeals
The Ombudsman recommended an
appeal process be introduced for Home
to School Transport appeals.

31/12/20

Improved experience for
parents and carers who may
wish to appeal HTST decisions.
Reduction in appeals raised to
the Local Government
Ombudsman.

180

A basic two stage process as
identified by the Ombudsman, will
be introduced pending completion
of the Policy re-development.

In place
WBC will be compliant in
relation to appeals
arrangements.

AGS 20.5

Property development
During 2019/20, the Council took over
the management of former WHL
development sites which has identified
governance areas for improvement.

Review of internal control
environment and improvement
plan in place.

Graham
Ebers

30/9/20

Assurance with regards to the
governance of former WHL
sites.

AGS 20.6

Local Code of Corporate Governance
With the refresh of the Local Code of
Corporate Governance, awareness
needs to be embedded with officers
and Members, including training.

a. Audit Committee approval of
the refreshed Code at its
meeting of 29 July 2020.

Graham
Ebers

31/12/20

Culture of good governance
embedded and understood
amongst officers and
Members.

b. Council approval on 17
September 2020.

Page 10 of 11

c. Training plan in place before
end of year.

181
Page 11 of 11

This page is intentionally left blank

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL’S AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD PROGRAMME

DATE OF MEETING
Wednesday 23
September 2020

DATE OF MEETING

183

Wednesday 4
November 2020

ITEM No. ITEM DESCRIPTION

RESPONSIBLE OFFICER

1.

Corporate Risk Register Update

Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief
Executive

2.

Statement of Accounts (Possibly November)

Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief
Executive

3.

Annual Governance Statement

Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief
Executive

ITEM No. ITEM DESCRIPTION

RESPONSIBLE OFFICER

1.

Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2020/21

Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief
Executive

2.

Corporate Risk Register Update

Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief
Executive

3.

Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22

Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief
Executive

4.

Internal Audit and Investigation Q2 Progress Report
2020/21

Shared Audit and Investigation
Service

Agenda Item 13.

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL’S AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD PROGRAMME

DATE OF MEETING
Wednesday 3 February
2021

ITEM No. ITEM DESCRIPTION

RESPONSIBLE OFFICER

1.

Corporate Risk Register Update

Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief
Executive

2.
3.

Internal Audit and Investigation Q3 Progress Report
2020/21
Annual Audit & Investigations Plan 2021-22

4.

Audit Plan

Ernst & Young

5.

Annual Audit Letter (possibly November)

Ernst & Young

6.

Compliments and complaints

Shared Audit and Investigation
Service
Shared Audit and Investigation
Service

Customer Services

184

